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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The investment objective of TR Property Investment Trust
plc is to maximise shareholders’ total returns by investing
in the shares and securities of property companies and
property related businesses internationally and also in

investment property located in the UK.

Introduction

TR Property Investrment Trust ple (the Company’) was
formed .n 1905 and has beer a dedicated property
nvestor snee 1982 Tre Company 1s an investment
Trust and its shares are premusum I'sted on the London
Stock Exchange.

Benchmark

Tre benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Net Total Return Index i sterling

Investment policy

The Cormpanry seeks to achieve 1ts objective by
nvesting in shares and securities of property
compan-es and property related businesses on an
international basis, although, with a pan-Edropean
berchmark, the major ty of the investments will be
located inthat geograpnical area The Company also
mvests in mvestrent property located in the UK ony

Furtner detans of the Investment Policles, the Asset

A location Guidel neg ard policies regarding the use of
gear.ng are et out in the Strateqic Report on page 34
and the entire portfoio s shown on page 27

Investment manager

Columbia Threadreedle Investirent Busiress Limited
acts as the Company's alternative investment

fund manager (AIFM" with partfolio Tanagement
delegated to Thames River Capital LLP (the 'Portfolio
Manager or the ‘Marager’) Marcus Phayre-Mudge
nas managed the portfolio since 7 Apr.l 20171 ard been
part of the Fund Management team since 1897

Annuz Report & Accoun's 2025

Independent board

Tne Directors are al' ‘ndependent of the Manager

and meet reguiarly to consder investment strategy,

to monitor adherence to the stated ohjective and
invesiment policies and to review nvestment
performance Detal's of now the Board operates and
fulfi s its responsibilities are set out 1IN the Report of the
Directors on page 47

Performance

Tqe Financial H ghtignts for the current year are set out
on page 2 and Historical Performance can be found o-
page 3 Key Performarce indicators are set aut inthe
Strategic Report on pages 35 ard 36,

Retail investors advised by IFAs

The Compary cuirertly conducts its affairs so that

i1s shares can be recommended by Independent
Financ'ai Advisers (IFAS’) In the UK 1o retal investors
in accordance with the Firancia: Corduct Authority
(FCAT rules ir relatior to no~-mainstream investment
products and intends 1o continue to do so. The shares
are excluded from the FCA's restrictions, which apply
1o non-ma.nstream investment products because they
are ghares in an authonsed rvestment trust company

Further information

Genera! shareholder information and details of now
toinvest ':n the Company, -ncluding investment
through an 1SA ar savings scneme, can be found or
pages 118 onwards Tris nformat'on can also be
found onthe Comrpany's website www trproperty com
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Financial highlights and performance

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2023 2022 Change
Balance Sheet
Net asset value per share 305.13p 492 43p -38.0%
Shareholders’ funds (£000) 968,346 1,562,739 -38 0%
Shares in issue at the end of the year (m) 3174 317.4 +0.0%
Net debt" 12.3% 10.2%
Share Price o o
Share price 279.00p 456.50p -38.9%
Market capitalisation £885m £1,449m -38 9%
Year ended Year ended
371 March 31 March
2023 2022 Change
Revenue
Revenue earnings per share 17.22p 13.69p +258%
Dividends?
Interim dividend per share 5.65p 5.30p +6.6%
Final dividend per share 9.85p G.20p +7.1%
Total dividend per share 15.50p 14 50p +6.9%
Performance: Assets and Benchmark 7 -
Net Asset Value total return - -35.5% +27.4%
Benchmark total returny -34.0% +12.2%
Share price total return~ -36.2% +19.9%,
Ongoing Charges®® o -
Including performance fee 0.73% 2.19%
Excluding performance fee 0.73% 060%
Excluding performance fee and direct property costs 0.67% 0.58%
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Historical performance

for the year ended 37 Marcn 20232

Performance for the year:

Total Return (%)
NAV:=
Benchmark

Share Price”

Shareholders’ funds (£'m)
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Net revenue (pence per
share)

Earnings
Dividends-

NAV per share {pence)

Share price (pence)

Indices of growth

R CX IR IEC TR

Share price

Net Asset Value
Dividend Net
RPI

Benchmark®

Figures have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards.
{A] The NAY Tolai Return for each vear 1s calculated by reinvesting the dividends n the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-div.dend date Draidends

2013

21.5
17.8
258

684

674
7.00

21525

186.30

100
100
100
100
100

2014

22.4
149
37.7

809

8.09
7.45

25494
247 50

133
118
106
102
107

2015

283
23.3
285

1,010

8.89

7.70

31812
310.50

167
148
110
103

128

2016

8.2

54

-1.6

1,065

8.36
8.35

335.96
297.50

160
156
119
105
131

2017

8.0
65
91

1,118

11.38

10 50

352.42
31450

169
164
150
108
136

2018

155
10.2
25.5

1,256

13.22
12.20

39564
382.50

205
184
174
112
146

2018

2.1
5.6
6.2

1,328

14.58
13.50

418.54
394.00

211
194
193
115
146

2020

115
-14.0
-16.8

1,136

14.62
14.00

35811
317.50

170
166
200
18
124

2021

20.7
159
283

1,326

12.25
14.20

417 97
382,50

2711
194
203
119
141

2022 AP

21.4
12.2
19.9

1,563

1369
14.50

492.43

456.50

245
229
207
130
155

-35.5
340
-36.2

968

17.22

15.50

30513

279.00

133
142
221
148

are deeired 1o be e rivested at the ex-d widend date as this s the protoca! used by the Campany's bench—ark and otherindces Tisis cons deredtobean

alternztive Performance Measure as defined on page 106,

(B1 Benchrmark ndex compos te ndex corrpns ng the FTSE EPRA NARLIT Geveloped Europe TR Index up to March 2013, and thereafter the F "SE EPRANARE T
Deve oped Eurape Capped Index Source Thames R ver Capital
(Gt The Share Pree Tota! Return s caloulated by -einvestng te diidends in the snales o’ tne Company from the resevant ex dvdend date

(C) Dvidends pe-shareinthe vear tc whicn ther dec’aration reiates and not the year they were paid

(Er Shereproesony These do net reflect diedends pa d

(Fi Capnalonlyvalues ~hese donot refect dividends paid

(Gy Proeomyva ueof the ndces set out iniBlabove
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Chairman’'s statement

@@ Markets have had to
absorb huge increases
in the cost of capital and
real estate equities have
suffered consequential price
adjustments. However, this is
an unusual cycle where both
interest rates and rents are
rising. In many of our markets
property fundamentals are
sound and we see few signs
of over-supply.

David Watson

-

This has been a very difficult year for the property
market, for property shares and for the Company. Net
asset value total return was -35 5%, slightly worse than
our benchmark at -34.0%. The share price total return
was -36.2% as the discount between the NAV and the
share price widened slightly, reflecting weakeér investor
sentiment as a whole. Although the change in the second
nalf was modest (first half NAV total return of -33.6%
March to September 2022) we have experienced some
very dramatic price action in the interveming six months.

Macro-economic ferces continued to dominate. The
drivers and trajectory of inflation remained everyone’s
focus. Central bankers appeared as unsure of the
conseguences of their actions as market participants.
Volatility remained elevated. Whitst our total return
figures are clearly very poor, the autumnal rally in
property stocks, somewhat punctured (in the UK} by
political events in November, did resume in earmest in
January. This three month rally, based squarelyon a
change in the expected trajectory of interest rates, gave
us, at last, a taste of a more optimistic attitude towards
our asset ¢class The last few weeks of the financial year
saw market sentiment damaged by the failure of two
regional banks in the US and the final take out of Credit
Suisse. This raised kriee-jerk concerns of bank contagion
which here feels sensationalist given the enhanced levels
of regulatory oversight and controls on European banks
post the globai financial crisis.

Your investment management team have a long track
record of alpha generation through dynamic stock
selection Itis fair to say that the investment dynamics of
the last 12 months have not been their preferred context.
The dramatic price falls and bear market rallies have
been largely undiscriminating between the good and the
bad. Foreed sellers were interested in volume not price.
Small caps, as usual, struggled in these conditions This
macro-driven environment is hopefully, finaily, abating as
investors appear increasing'y interested in differentiating
between individual companies’ prospects following the
significant correction

Our investment universe has now seen a rumber of
companies who have suspended or reduced dividends
These were, inthe main the likely suspects and it would
be & surprise to us if many others now emerge given the
econormic cycle Ore of the core attractions of real estate
investing is the potential of iIndexed income and tn's is
showing through and remains our focus,

TR Eopery roestrert Trus!
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Earnings per share increased by 26% from 13 69p per
share to 17.22p. This 1s an all-time high. Although
company earnings did in general recover to pre-
Covid-19 levels, our headline earnings were further
flattered by changes in the timing of some dividend
payments More detail of this is set cutinthe
Manager's repart

The Board is pleased to annonnce a final dividend

of 9.85p taking the full year dividend to 15.50p,
representing a 6.9% increase. In determining the
dividend the Board has been very sensitive to investor
appetite for income but has also been conscious

of the underlying income growth and the potential
impact of interest and exchange rates on future
earnings

Following a record level of earnings in 2022/23, the
Board expect to report a reduction in net incorme for
the year to 2023/24. This is not only as a result of the
non-recurrence of certain tems which enhanced the
current year earnings, but also because of the number
of companies that have announced dividend cuts or
suspensions. All companies have had 1o adjust to the
change in the price of debt. For some the impact has
peen immediate, while for others it will be sormewhat
delayed as they continue to benefit from historic
fixed rates. However, on the income side of the
equation, index-linked rents will benefit. Companies
need to balance the pluses and minuses and some
have reacted quickly and cautiously to protect their
balance sheets The medium o longer-term cutlook
forinterest rates is difficult to predict so it could be

a while before compantes feel confident about the
longer-term outlook.

[
wbo

Gearing at 12.3% is an almost identical figure to that
at the half year. Inevitably these numbers are just
snapshots in time; the level of gearing has varied in
response to the market volatility and as investment
opportunities have occurred

Sterling weakened over the year by just over 4%. This
marginally enhanced our income account as nan-
steriing dividends were worth more in sterling terms.

As our balance sheet is dencminated in sterling a
weaker pound served to help the reported value of
non-sterling assets. The balance sheet exposure
remains materially in ine with the benchmark as we
hedge exposure to match the benchmark.

The discount of the share price to the NAV widened
slightly over the year from -7 3% 1o -8 6%. However,
the spread over the year has been much wider,
swinging between close to-1% and over -10%.

This volatility 1s indicative of the rapid changes in
sentiment towards the sector. The average over the
year under review was -5.8%, close ta the 10-year
average of -4.9% and an improvement on the -6 6%
average since the invasion of Ukraine.

In light of the transient nature of the discount
volatility, no share buy-backs or issues were made
during the year.

Ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return over 10 years (rebased)

B Benchmark Tatal Return @ TR Property Share Price Total Befurn
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Chairman's statement
continued

I reported at the half year that we had commenced
the search for a new Director who would broaden
and strengthen the Board and add diversity of age,
experience and ethnicity In January this year we
were delighted to announce the appointment of
Busola Sodeinde to the Board as an indépendent
Non-Executive Director and we have greatly
appreciated her early insight and perspéctive ona
wide range of issues.

We also announced my intention to step down from
the Board with effect from the conclusion of the
forthcoming AGM. As announced, Kate Bolsover
will succeed me as Chairman and Tim Gillbanks will
succeed Kate as Senior Independent Director.

ESG reports within annuat accounts are becoming
longer and contain more and more detall. This

15 wholly appropriate for an opérating company
and we welcome the additional disclosure. As an
investment trust company and primarily an investor
N companies, we have to think about what ESG
should mean for us.

Cur ESG approach covers three areas Firstly, the
governance and policies which apply directly to the
investment trust as a Company under the direct
contror of the Board. Secondly, ESG considerations
as part of the investment process for our equity
portfolio adopted by cur Manager Although our
Manager cannot have any direct control over ESG
polictes In underlying investee companies, it can, and
does, use its influence carefully through corporate
voting and engagement with the companies in
which we invest. Thirdly, our Manager does have
contral over cur direct praperty portfolio and here we
continue to drive for greater energy efficiency and
environmentai care in all that we do

Qur Responsible Investment Report on pages 16 1o
25 sets out our approach ir each of these areas with
some case study examples This s of course an area
of active evoiution
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Macro conslderations continue to dominate. Markets
have had to absorb a huge adjustment in the cost of
capital and real estate equities have certainly borne their
share of price adjustments. However, this is an unusual
cycle where both rates and rents are rising. In many of
our areas of focus, real estate market fundamentals are
sound and we see few signs of over-supply. Our central
assumption is that the interest rate cycle will peak this
year but that inflation will remain above central banks’
targets. Listed property companies are generally more
conservatively geared than their private counterparts
and this should stand them in good stead. The sector
has been hit hard and many of our companies are
trading at large discounts to asset values that have

also been recalibrated. As in previous cycles, if the
sector 1s undervalued then private capital will be quick
1o step in. Just after the year end, Industrials REIT, cne
of the Company's 10 largest holdings, announced a
recommended bid for cash at a 40% premium to the
undisturbed share price. More recently i early May,
Civitas, the social housing landlord announced a cash bid
from an Asian conglomerate at a similar prermium. These
businesses are chalk and cheese but both have proved
attractive to very different groups of investors. These
events remind us that, for many, real estate is seen as a
crucial part of the investment 'gsaw particuiariy in these
inflationary times.

David Watson

TR RProceryleyvesTment Trust



Manager's report

For a sector where returns are
anchored by income, these
leveis of volatility and multiple
directional shifts are almost
unparalleled. The whole
period has been dominated
by the ebbs and flows around
interest rate expectations

and real estate fundamentals
have taken the proverbial
back seat. However, looking
forward, we anticipate a
renewed focus on those

sectors offering rental growth.

Marcus Phayre-Mudge

The Company's net asset value {NAV') total return for

the 12 months to 31 March 2023 was -35 5%, whilst the
benchmark, FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe TR (in
GBP), fell -34.0%. These figures are clearly disappointing
but not materially different from those reported at the

half year, where the NAV had fallen -33 6% in the first six
months of the financial year Equally important to note

15 that these figures are snapshots In very volatile times,
To illustrate the point, the first four months of the second
half of the financial year (1.e October to January) saw our
universe rally +14 5% only to then give up all of those gains
in the subsequent nine weeks. The end result was a finish
to the year which was marginally worse than where we
were at the half year stage.

In the half year review, | wrote that shareholders wili

no doubt be concerned that given the scale of the
correction, the direction of tfravel was cbvious and more
protective action should have been taken. It always looks
clear in hindsight but as we walk through the year in the
next few paragraphs, the dramatic swings in sentiment
will help explain some of the difficulties we faced in
trying to rctate the portfelio into the headwinds, avoid the
rip currents but then also catch the spring tides of
sentiment recovery

The first quarter of the financial year saw the sector

fall 24% as investers really focused on the impact of
rising interest rates. However, you could still have made
money over a four-week period {in May and early June)
and this highlights the sense of sentiment rather than
facts driving markets in mid-2022 Everyone became
central bank-focused whilst real estate fundamentals
were ignored. July saw a strong reversal (+9 5%) as bond
markets responded to the theme that rising interest rates
were having the required deflationary effect. However,
the summer break was followed by hawkish statements
from the US Federal Reserve at Jackson Hole and our
benchmark fell -30% between mid-August and mid-
October as investors began to believe the 'higher for
longer' mantra This severe bout of pessimism was

then followed by a +25% raliy in pan-European property
stocks between mid-Cctober and the end of January
The tail end of the financial year saw this recovery then
ebh away with the sector falling 13% in the last two
months of the financial year
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Manager’s report
continued

Benchmark Performance

B FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe Cappec Total Return Net GBP {Dally)

5%

0%
-5%
-10%
“15%
-20%
-25%
-30%
-35%
-A5%
-45%
Mar-22

Apr-22

May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22

For a 'value' sector where returns are driven — year

in, year out — by income, these levels of volatility and
multiple directional shifts are almost unparalleled What

1s happening? Essentially, the whole period has been
dominated by the ebbs and flows around interest rate
expectations and bond market behaviour. Real estate
fundamentals have taken the proverbial back seat. A
longstanding real estate equity market cbserver with over
30 years' experience recently wrote to clients ‘I can't recall
a pericd of time whnen capital values have fallen so sharply
and yet occupier demand in most sectors has remained
pretty robust’ | have reproduced the statement verbatim
as it neatly encapsulates the environment we find
ourselves in. In other words, vields are nising but so are
rents, this is atypical. It is now clear that, through 2022, 1
placed too much emphasis on this qualty of earnings (and
indeed earnings growth) in many of our companies. The
rmarket paid little heed, choosing to focus on the impact of
rising yields/capitalisation rates on asset values

The speed at which central banks responded, as
inflation gathered pace, tock many participants by
surprise The rising cost of debt affected all property
stocks, but it had the greatest impact on two particular
cohorts of companies. Those companies which had
successfully utilised unsecured bond market financing
now discovered that this source of (rejfinanc’ng was
effectively shut. Germran residentia: businesses
particularly the larger ones, Vonovia, LEG and the
more diversified Arcundtown (part owner of Grand
City Properties), are all seeing their cost of debt rise
dramatica'ly as tne expiry of existing bonds require
refinancing. The other heavily impacted group were
thase with tigher foan to value compounded by nign
levels of floating rate debt. The impact on earnings

for this group has been dramatic and the majonty of
Swedish companies fall into tnis category. Both these

o
bl

Sep?2 Qct-22 Nov-27 Dec-22 Jan-23 Fet-23 Mar-23

cohorts share a couple of similar outcomes, firstly, those
companies which have reduced or suspended dividends
are disproportionately represented and secondly, these
two groups nave expenienced the greatest volatitity within
our universe. To llustrate the point, Swedish property
companies collectively fell 40 5% in the year to 31 March
2023 however, within that period there were three sharp
bear market ralties of +17% (May), +39% (July to mid-
August) and +53% (mid-October to the end of January).
These groups were highiy susceptibie 1o changes in
sentiment towards the outlook for rates and margin on
new (or refinanced) debt instruments

Previotsly, | have written about the merits of the market
fundamentars of German residential. The vast supply/
demand imbalance and the persistent widening of the
gap betweern regulated rents and open market values
remains in place. What has been most frustrating Is that
our largest relative position in that area is Phoenix Spree
Deutschiand, which has no refinancing requirements
until 2026 and 1s @ market minnow (portfolio value less
than €750m) where all sales, however few, will make a
difference performed in line with its larger cousins,

Collectively the market capitalisation of the German
residential businesses reduced by 57%. Meanwhile, the
undertying asset values have corrected iess than 10% in the
year and top line earnings have grown with vacancy levels
stable and the ‘'mietspegie’ (the rent tabie) continuing to
ncrease rents, albeit ar a sub-inflatonary rate. The asset
class offers consistently low vacancy, steady rental growth
and the opportunity to move ta market rents through
refurbishment or sales to owner-occuplers. As a result,
yields stead.y tighteried as the cost of finance fell By the
beginning of 2022, capitalisation rates were below 3%, fully
reflecting the stability and low risk profie of the iIncome. At
such low capitalisation rates, a modest reversal upwards of
100bps has a very dramatic effect on valuation

“F Property Investment frus:



Much the same effect was telt in the valuation of the
other low yielding sector - Industnal/logistics. This sector
had enjoyed a surge in investor demand as strong rentas
growth fuelled the attractiveness of the asset class and
we saw capitalisation rates tighten dramatically over the
lastthree years Agan, the impact of the abrupt risen
the cost of debt led to a quick reversal in yields. However,
unlike regulated residential rents in Germany, which
deliver sub-inflationary growth, we are confident that
strong rental growth will persist in ndustrial/logistics
property given market fundamentals.

Offices continue to be the sector most under scrutiny
and rightly so. The repercussions and evolution of

the working from home (WFH') regime are still being
warked through by tenants and landlords. Much has
already been written on the topic and firm conclusions
are hard to pin down given the speed of change.
However we are confident that since the haif year we
have seen more data to support our current thesis.
Offices remain crucial infrastructure for knowledge-
based businesses - physical interaction is a vital part
of business life. However, the amount of space reguired
has reduced whilst crucially the demand for better
guality space has risen. This demand for better quality
working environment is augmented by the requirement
for better energy efficiency and green credentials. The
result is a historically wide market bifurcation between
bestin class, well tocated, energy efficient buildings
and the rest. Offices account for approximately 15% of
our benchmark and well over 50% of that exposure isto
London and Paris, hence our focus on those markets in
this commentary.

Gecing, gur largest European office exposure (see top
17 holdings) in their Q1 2023 results hightighted that
their prime inner Paris assets recorded an eye-catching
30% reversion, whilst their outer ring assets saw negative
reversion. Overall rental growth was positive at 7% but
that statistic highlights the gulf between the growth
achieved in central assets and the rest. Covivio, which
owns offices in Paris, Milan and several German cities
reported the same phenomenon, with central Mitan
recording sofid demand and rental growth. Central
London office vacancy is elevated at 8%, however the
divide between West End (3.7%) and the City (17 9%)

1S almost as stark as it has ever been. The situation in
Docklands i1s even more dire with a number of major
financial institutions who have announced either a
reduction in their space reguirements {(including HSBC,
Citi and JPMorgan) or wholesale relocation (e.g. Clifford
Chance). In the case of the latter, the firmis also cutting
its space requirerments by 40%. One should be careful
not to read single statistic across to the wider market
as that particular firm has had excess space in Canary

Arrdz Report & Accournts 2023

Wharf for several years. This increasing vacancy in
financial services-focused districts such as Canary
wharf, La Defense and further afield Lower Manhattanis
a reflection of both WrH but also the lack of headcount
growth. Thig 1s a particular problem in London where
post Brexit, global financial services businesses continue
1o increase their footprint in Paris, Frankfurt and Dublin
at the expense of London.

This bifurcation of 'best and the rest’ can be clearty
seen in recent valuation in the specialist London office
landlords. Great Portland reparted in their H1 2023
results a divergence in performance based on their
buildings” EPC (energy efficiency) ratings. Those at the
highest levels {A&R) saw value declines of 2.5% whilst
C&D rated were -4.2%. Derwent London produced data
based on values per foot. The most valuable (>£1,500 per
ft) saw capital drft of -3.5% and rental growth of +2%,
whilst the least (<£1,000 per ft} saw value falls of -11.8%
and rental growth of just 0.3%.

Even though the bestin class continues to enjoy steady
rental growth, this is partly due to its scarcity The bulk
of all office markets are made up of much more average
product and take up levels in the post pandemic world
have been weak. Paris Centre West (the core) saw
avallable supply fall year on year (-19%) whilst it rose in
all other markets. The further out, the greater the supply,
with La Defense just +4% whilst the Inner Rim (+35%).

Alt of this has fed through into negative sentiment
towards all offices except the best guality in the best
locations MSCI/IPD's office sector capital decline in
H2 2022 was -15 7%, underperforming retail which fell
14 5% Central London initial vield has moved 80bps
from 4.8% (December 2021) 10 5.6% (January 2023).
As discussed many times, the UK's independent valuer
community have always attempted to mark-to-market
rather than the Continental apprcach which is maore
'mark-to-model’. The latter approach resuits in a
smoother correction of values but can equally lead to
the criticism that valuations are woefully historic when
markets are correcting fast As a result, we feel that
highlighting the modest moves in Continental Eurcpean
valuations in H2 2022 would be misleading. They will
catch up over the course of 2023 and beyond.

It feels as though this much maligned asset class has
finally passed through the worst of the impact of the
shift to onfine retailing, the way we search for products
{and pricing) as well as the increasing demand for
entertainment/|eisure ahead of mere 'stuff’. The huge
reduction in values has been felt more acutely in the
UK. Alongside the differences between the UK and
Continental Eurcpean shopping malls, it is also crucial
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Manager's report
continued

to highlight the sub-sectors within retall as they have,

largely, performed very differently over the last few years.

The worst performing group remains the larger malls
which are, quite simply, too big with an excess of floor
space, cften a shuttered department store (or twe) and
a service charge with a chunky non-recoverable elerment
(due to voids) None of this is new information | hear you
say Agreed. However, the update is that we have now
seen capitulation by landlords {and lenders), rents have
re-rated (often halving) and vacant space beginning

to be repurposed for ather uses. Malls must become
community hubs with a range of {lower value) uses
such as fitness, medical uses. nurseries, day care etc.
Landsec successfully acquired the 50% of the St David's
Centre in Cardiff which they did not own, The seller

was the administrator of Intu and Landsec acquired

the cutstanding ioans on the asset. The price equated
to a yield of over 9% cn & rent roll which has dropped
materialty over the last decade We are confident that

at the right rents (and yields) those centres which can
reinvent themselves such as this dominant city centre
asset will deliver acceptable returns

The strongest sub-sector remains retalj warehousing

and outlet malls. For different reasons both offer retailers

sales channels which complement online. In the case

of the farmer, it is the convenience and pricing of edge
of and out of town retail parks Free home delivery will
become unsustainable from both a profit and an ESG
perspective. Click and coilect and free returns to store
will drive demand for these super convenient locations.
The Company is a large holder of Ediston Froperty which
has announced a strategic review given the subscale
size of the business We are hopeful that this will provide
further evidence of supportive valuations in the sector
Cutlets help retailers offload lines without damaging

fuil price/premium offerings. The success of the likes

of Bicester Village (where Hammerson have a non-
controlling stake) arnd Gurwharf Quay in Portsmouth
{owned by Landsec) are proof of the concept and we
remain confident about their prospects.

The combining of retall, leisure and food continues,
particularly in tourst destinations. BNP have hignhghted
the pick-up In post Covid footfall in the most upmarket
lccations such as Regent St, Champs Elysees, Portal

de Angel (Barcelona), Viz del Corso (Rome) and
Kaufingerstrasse (Munich) with footfall increasing on
average by 1/3and, in some cases, more than 65% (Pars
and Murnich)

Retaii investment has been resilient, particuarly in
Continental Eurcpe where investors see affordable rentg
and higner yields than other sectors Whilst investrment
levels are unsurprisingly below the 2012 1o 2022 decade
average, they did increase year on year to €40 1bn {+2.6%)

according to BNP In the UK, retall warehousing continued to
dominate volumes {(+60%) over 2027 and 2022 This figure
was lower across Europe and hughlights the continued lack
of farge shopping centre transactions in the UK

UK logistics take-up in Q1 2023 was 8.6m sq ft, a slowing
when compared to a quarterly average of 12 0msqg ftin
2022 and 13.8m sg fi in 2027 but still ahead of the guarterly
average of 8.3m sq ft inthe pre-Covid decade Vacancy
remains at 3% and rents centinue to rise Against this
comfortable backdrop we saw yields nise by 175bps for
prime distribution units betwean June 2022 and March
2023. Such was the impact of the cost of meney, whilst
market fundamentals are deemed less relevant. Even an
asset with strong rental growth prospects cannot have a
capitalisation rate 200bps below the risk-free rate. However,
that pricing adjustment has largely been completed in our
view. We are beginning to see stability in asset prices.

In Continental Europe the picture was very similar. Savills
report 32m sg metres taken up in 2022 across the 13
largest markets, just 6% below the record year of 2021 and
ahead of the S-year average in virtually all markets Higher
construction and finance costs led to reduced speculative
construction maintaining the intense supply-demand
imbalance in so many markets Over £50bn wag invested in
20272, again below the record of 2021 but well anead of the
Syear average. Yield expansion (¢ 100bps) was much less
than in the UK but again we expect upward pressure to ease
as fundamentals drive capital back into the sector.

We have long been cheerleaders for multi-let industrials
(MLI}, generally terraces of smaller units, management
irtensive, but often located ir dense urban locations.
Very littie new stack has been built over the last few
decades with alternative (multi-storey) uses being

far more valuable. Rents remain low in many parts of
the country making new development unviable The
tenant rosters have evoived huge'y in the last 20 years,
undergoing gentrification’ from being the domain

of ight :ndustriai 'metal bashers’ to a much broader
swathe of uses, many born out of Internet connectivity
and the abi.ity to access customers directiy Cur fargest
exposure was through industria's REIT, where we owned
11% of the company. Just after the year erd (3 April)
Blackstone announced an agreed cash bid at a 40%
premium t¢ the undisturbed share price The private
eguity behemoth already has substantial exposure to
this sub-sector but it is a timely reminder tnat if guality
assets are 'eft undervalued then private capital will
acquire then. Our other ML exposcre 18 through Sirius
(65% Gerrrany, 35% UK) and diversified names such as
Pictor and London Metric {which acquired Muckiow in
2027 where we owned 5%). The hea'tny supply-demand
imbalance makes 't a sub-sector we are keen to mairtain
exposure tc
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The shortage of private sector rental accommeodation
remams acute, yet the listed companies focused on

this sector were amongst the peorest performers in

the financial year. This group of companies {mostly in
Germany and Sweden) highlighted how management
teams were lured into increased leverage given the
stability of the underlying income streams and occupancy
levels. However, very low yielding assets struggle to
provide positive cashflows when interast rates nse

At the asset level, rental growth has remained weil below
current inflation rates given the backward-looking nature
of regulated rents. We fully expect to see these rents

rise at historically fast rates as they factor in some of
the dramatic inflation datapoints The serious shortage
of housing underpins long-term values. The fly in the
omtment 1s the cost of improving the energy efficiency of
this housing stock through both insulation and the type
of heating. In open market regimes such as the UK and
Finland, the cost of these improvements will be passed
through to rent prices. In reguiated markets where only
a proportion of the capital expenditure can currently be
rentalised, this remains an impediment to rental growth

Within open market regimes such as the UK we have
seen strong rental growth through the combination of a
shertage of rental stock {amateur landlords leaving the
market due to higher regulation and lower tax efficiency),
high levels of employment/wage inflation and market
timing (where buyers decide to continue to termporarily
rent awaiting price corrections).

Purpose built student accommodation continues to fare well,
with rising numbers of students across the UK and Eurcpe.
The traditional accornmodation alternative of private rented
houses {HMOs - Houses in Multiple Occupation) are reducing
as regulation pushes up kcensing costs and {correctly) impedes
overcrowding and sub-standard accommodation. Unite, our
largest student accommodation stock was cne of the few
companies to see positive captal value appreciation in 2022
with 4% annualisad growth it has recently increased its rental
growth cutlook for academic year 2023/24 from 5% o0 6-7%.
Self-storage continues to confound the sceptics. Rate
growth and occupancy have begun to normatise post the
‘Covid boom’ but remain encouragingly positive Safestore,
our largest holding in the sector, enjoyed like-for-like rental
growth of 10.7% in the year to October 2022

Hatels particularly leisure and tourist focused have also
enjoyed strong growth as consumers continue to make up for
lost opportunities to travel in 2020 and 20271, Recent STR data
highlights London hotels across the quality spectrum showing
RevPAR growth of +22% year on year. UK hotels ex London
was also strong at +11% year on year and 25% versus 2019.

‘nnua Report & Accounts 2023

Healthcare was the poorest performer of the alternatives
group. Profitability of private care providers is being
constantly squeezed through wage and cost inflation
Continental European healihcare operators have been
rocked by the scandal at Orpea The level of state support,
both direct and indirect, are the crucial figures required by
investors Even then, the rate of rental growth can be quite
pedestrian as seen at Primary Health Properties and Assura

v

Both debt and equity markets were very subdued during
the year The total capital raised in 2022 was £714bn
compared to €£32bn in 2027 and €21bn in 2020. Over
£9bn of the total raised in 2022 was debt in the first
quarter. T illustrate the ghange in pricing over the

last year, we need only review the most prolific issuer,
Vonovia, Europe’s largest property company In March
2022, it issued 4. 6 and 8 year maturities totalling €2 5bn
priced at 1.375%, 1.875% and 2.375% respectively. By
November, new 2027 and 2030 maturities were costing
475%and 50%.

Short-dated leverage risked the vicious cycle of
increased interest costs resulting in lower earmings, so
risking credit downgrades leading to even higher cost of
debt Leverage needed to be reduced to defend earnings,
if asset sales weren't possible then equity (even when
trading at deep discounts tc asset values) needed to be
raised through nghts issues

At the half year, | detailed the capital raising by TAG
Immaebilien, who had over stretched themselves with the
acquisition of a Polish housebuilder. They raised £200m
at a 27% discount to the theoretical ex-rights price to
help pay off the bridging loan from the acquisition. In
November, VGP a Belgium iogistics developer raised
£302m. This was mare front-footed with the raise
diluting NTA by 10% in a one for four share issuance.
The business is overly dependent on selling assets into
Allianz private funds and this capital makes them less
dependent on one customer The CEQ and CFO own 49%
of the equity and 'stood their comer’ which reassured
investors. In Sweden, Catena, another logistics developer
raised SEK 1 4bn (F135m) as its share price hovered
close to NTA and, whitst small, it was unusual as it was
an accelerated bookbuild and not a rights issue. Balder
raised SEK 1.8bn which it used to repay a hybrid bond
and strengthen its overall balance sheet,

The only merger and acquisition activity in the 12
maonths to 31 March (the privatisation of industrials
REIT was announced on 3 April) were two mergers,
both widely expected bBut the timing less sure. The
joining of Shaftesbury and Capeo finally happened after
a tortuously long period of negotiation, capped off by

a CMA review on whether the combined entity could

be a price setter. The most disappointing aspect for
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Manager's report
continued

shareholders (we do not own either company) was
that the deal results in the repayment of much of
Shaftesbury’s cheap debt due to a change of control
provision. When coupled with further increases in
debt costs next year and some extracrdinarily high
advisor fees (given it was an agreed transaction)
there will be precious little earnings benefit from
the anticipated synergies. The other merger was
between LX| and Secure Income REIT on a NAV for
NAV basis It was a much more straightforward
affair. We were a large shareholder in SIR and
benefited immediately as the 12% discount closed
to NAV. The managers of SIR were also large
shareholders in the company and their excellent
timing in previous property cycles was once agan on
display They even sold the management company
which had a contract to run SIR for the next three
years

Portfolio turnover (purchases and sales divided by
two) totalled £477m in the year, considerably less
than the £549m 1n the previous year. With average
net assets over the year of £1 18bn, turnover

was 40% of net assets, which was higher than

the previous year's figure of 36% and reflects the
volatility in the year

In the half year report, | recorded that each rally then
trended down to a new low and therefore virtuaily

all buys locked poor and all sells locked clever,

The second half of the year saw the largest and
longest recovery from Qctober to the end of January,
foliowed by the most dramatic correction back to the
October lows, this new low point virtually coinciding
with the year end Throughout the year, the renewed
bouts of negative sentiment towards the sector
were based on either a change in the cutlook for
interest rates (and the concern that central banks’
behaviour would become more hawkish) or renewed
speculation of a fallure in the credit transmigsion
mechanism Esgentially, investor sentiment was
driven by the expectation of the change in the price
and availability of debt.

In hindsight, maintaining our ‘ong-standing
discipiine of buying {or adding) to companies where
we felt confident in the resilierce of earnings driven
by market fundamentals just wasn't encugh.

As would be expected, we have carefLlly analysed

all of our companies’ balance sheet capacity (in
terms of the quantum of leverage, cost and duration
of debt) In many cases, the market had quickly
adjusted the earnings expectations but what became
apparent as the year progressed was that we were
being overly rational about these revised earnings

forecasts. The market was not interested in supply and
demand at the property/occupational market level or
whether there were still profits 1o be achieved from the
development pipeline.

The ability of the market pendulum to (over) swing
between exuberance (greed) and melancholy (fear) was
very much inevidence and we battied to

react accordingly.

A good example of this was our collective underweight

10 Swedish property companies. Whilst this calf was our
largest contributor to positive relative performance over
the year, the volatility in the group resuited in multiple
phases of repositioning. Whilst the broad statement that
Swedish property companies are amongst the mast
leveraged ir our investment universe is true, some are
cbviously more exposed than others. It was therefore
crucial to understand which company would suffer the
fastest earnings degradation from rising interest rates but
also to assess when the market had over reacted. Those
most at risk were those exposed to bond markets rather
than bank iending or had complex hybrid instrurments
drearnt up by bankers when money was cheap. The scale
of share price vclatility 1s best explained in a handful

of figures. EPRA Sweden fell -42% in the first quarter

only ta recover +33% in the next six weeks followed by
another 40% drop to mid-October and ther the long
recovery (+36%) to the end of January, foilowed by a
renewed bout of nerves sending the sector down almost
to the October lows. These figures are the colective
impact of 18 companies. For the most leveraged (SBB,
Castellum, Corem and Balder) the volatility was far greater.
Underlying property market fundamentals do not drive this
level of price action, this was caused by changes in the
market outlock for the cost/availability of debt impacting
on a tiny market segment {free float capitalisation of just
£20bn)

Our expasure to German residenrtial was the poorest
asset allocation decision of the year | remamned
convinced, for too icng, that the market fundamentals of
virtuaily full occupancy and (sub-market) reguiated rents
would underpin investor sentiment. The fact that even at
prices a year ago all of these narmes were trading below
the reinstatement cost of the underlying assets mattered
not a jot The market focused exclusively on the impact
of the cost of debt. Duning the year we reduced exposure
in the larger names (Vonovia, LEG) but maintained

the holdingir Phoen s Spree, the smail Berlin focused
vehicle. It is an externally managed fund which has an
annually renewed contract with QSix, the manager tts
assets are al prime Berl'n, where cpen-market rents
continue to grow. The share price total return in the year
was -50%_ | remain convinced that once prices stabilise
the smaller companies will benefit disproportionately
frorr the impact of portfolio sales. With a market cap of
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just £190m and the share price at half the asset value,
it s an excellent example of a portfolic of assets which
are no longer benefiting frem being held in a listed
company.

With the price of money nsing s rapidly in the year,

It was the owest yielding assets which saw the most
aggressive repricing and so it was with German (and
Swedish) residential. The compression in yields in
the previous five years was a rational response to
the combination of strong market conditions, {high
occupancy and rental growth) combined with very
low cost of barrowing. This strong yield compression
{and capital value growth) was even greater in the
industrial/logistics sector. The structural tailwinds
have been discussed, ad nauseurn, in previous reports
For many markets these persist but capitalisation
rates had simply been driven too low with insatiable
investor appetite for assets with income growth.

The reversal (yield expansion) described earlier was
dramatic and the sector was hit very hard. Again,

our smaller companies suffered disproportionately
as they fell alongside larger names on the way down
but often failed ta catch the bounice in any recavery.
We are confident that these conservatively managed
businesses with the right amount of leverage and
quality portfolios wili perform well However, if the
stock market continues to undervalue them, then no
one should be surprised when more privatisations
occur. In the industrial group in the UK, | would include
Industrials REIT, Picton Property and CT Property
Trust. Whilst in Europe the fist would include Argan,
Sirius and Catena.

With the lowest yielding {(highest growth} names
suffering from capitalisation rates rising above the
new cost of debt, it was the highest yielding sectors
which suffered the least from this devaluation. Retail
property has clearly been out of favour for many years
as the wegkening in tenant demand for physical retail
space continued In Continental Europe, we focused
on Eurccommercial and Kiepierre given their high

earnings yield but crucially their secure balance sheets.

We avoided Unibail-Rodamco and Wereldhave. Here
you have two companies at either ends of the asset
quality spectrum but both suffered from weak balance
sheets and the need to de-leverage Unibail announced
2 years ago its intention to sell its US portfoiio whilst
Wereldhave has continued to sell assets whenever

it can European retait as a subset outperformed the
full benchmark and our stock selection also added to
perfarmance with Unibail -27.5% and Klepierre -2.5%
over the year.

UK retail is now a small part of the listed universe,
For most investors the only way to gain exposure
is through the diversified portfolios of Landsec

Anraal Repors & Accounts 2022

and British Land The bulk of our expesure is through
Ediston Property which owns only retail warehouses
However, its market cap at £140m is toco small for the
listed market and we applaud the announcement from
the board that they are carrying out a strategic review
for the future of the company. We rermain hopeful that

a merger with another listed company is a viable option
which will ensure the assets remaimn in the listed space
The company was a relative outperformer in the year
(-18%) as were virtually all the high yielding retail names
Hammerson remains a play on carporate reconstruction
rather than a bellwether for retail property We believe
they are on the right path and we opened a halding in
the year. The crown jewels are the mincrity cwnerships
in the premium autlet malls controlled by Value Retail.
nvestors will need to remain patient as the breakup will
take time, but value is reappearing.

Investors” attitudes towards office property has been
highlighted earlier. We fully subscribe to the bifurcation
of returns between the best and the rest. Smaller
European cities have also performed better with lower
WFH and higher occupancy levels. We have sought
greater exposure to those cities through Arima {(Madrid},
Wihlborgs (Malme, Lund) and Fabege (Stockholm). Care
CBD exposure in the largest cities has been through
Gecina (Paris), Great Portland and Landsec (London).
We have also added to the short lease, flexible offering
business maodel through Workspace (London) and Sirius
(primanly German flexspace). Both of these names

had a poor year with total returns 0of -35% and -32%
respectively but we found recently published operational
datareassuring. Landsec (-16%) was a top perfermer as
it continued to reduce leverage through sales of newly
completed prime offices in Central London. We are
strong advocates of capital recycling and expect to see
maore sales from non-core assets such as hoteds and
leisure.

In the alternatives space, our overwelight to self-storage
was entirely thraugh Safestore (-27%) rather than Big
Yellow (-21%). Safestore has outperformed on a three-
year and five-year view but clearly not in this last period
In fact, we find it hard to chocse between these two
very well managed companies. Both own irreplaceable
estates with core holdings in densely populated areas.
Demand for space has beenremarkably stable given
the economic backdrop. Unite (-16%), the student
accoemmodation provider was another relative winner

in the year. The combination of increased earnings
guidance and solid market evidence on modest yield
maovement continues to support the asset class.

Both these asset types have intensive operational
requirements and we are confident that the market
undervalues the platform through the traditicnal asset
value model. This was certainly the case with Industrials
REIT where Blackstone paid a premium for the operating
business alongside the assets.

G
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Manager’s report
continued

As noted in the Chairman's Statement, the current
year's income benefited from a number of non-recurring
items Eurocommerciat and Swiss Prime both changed
their pattern of distributions during the year effectively
resulting in an additional half year payment from

each of these companies. The Argan annual dividend
which generally goes ex-dividend on or around the last
business day in March therefore moves between March
and April. In the year to 31 March 2023, we received
dividends 1in April 2022 and March 2023, resulting in two
full year payments. If the dividend due around 31 March
2024 talls back into next April, there will be no income
recorded from this company in the year to March 2024.
We have nc control over these timings and there are
several companies where dividends go ex-div around
the year end Each of three holdings noted above are
approximately 2.5% of the portfolio so this has had

a sigrnificant impact. Without these (and the small
enhancement due to foreign exchange movements), we
estimate the earnings would have been around 1.13p
lower than reported. The dividend for the year to March
2023 is therefore well covered.

The dividend for the previous two years was partly paid
out of revenue reserves as the effects of COVID forced
revenue down. In 2022/23, the earnings, adjusted for the
one-offs set out above, are just over 10% higher than the
last reported pericd before COVID-19 {being the year to
31 March 20719) The full year dividend to 31 March 2023
is almost 15% ahead of the pre-COVID dividend as the
Board recognises the importance of a growing dividend
1o our shareholders

Looking ahead to the 2023-24 financial year, at this
stage, we expecttoreporta fall in earnings. This is partly
expiained by the one-off adjustments highlighted above.
However, the additional impact 1s from the number of
the German residental and Swedish companies that
nave announced dividend suspensions and/or cuts as
they work to reduce their gearing levels 'n the face of
rising debt costs. The residential names in particular
are making progress wth their disposal programmes
so we expect to see their div'dends resuming, although
possibly at a lower level N the not too distant future.

Tre impact of higher interest rates will feed through to
earrings as fixed or capped debt structures come up for
refinancing. The impact of this of course deperds on the
duration of such debt packages and this varies hugely
across our companies. it is encouraging to note that

for most of them, the majority of their debt s fixed (or
capped) unti! 2026 and beyond

On a more encouraging note, top line revenueg is
benefiting from inflation. All of our Eurcpean companies
and a significant number of our UK names benefit from
rents inked to some farm of indexation. it varies widely
across countries and sectors but is clearly an important
part of our revenue growth trajectory.

Although the revenue for the forthcoming year 1s likely
to be under some pressure given all these competing
factors, we are optimistic that growth will return over
the medium term. Market fundamentals continue to
drive organic rental growth in so many of our sectors. In
the meantime, the Company still has plentiful revenue
reserves to maintan dividend levels cver short term
income falls, as was seen through the COVID-19
pandemic.

Gearing began the year at 10.2%, increased to 12.0% by
the half year and finished the year at 12.2%. This does
not represent the changes in gearing seen throughout
the pericd as gearing has been actively changed

In response 1o the very variable market conditions
throughout the year and has ranged between 10%

and 16%

The cost of our debt has increased through the year

as our revolying credit facilities and CFD financing

are linked to SCNIA (or other currency equivaients).
However, an important part of our debt bock are the
EUR 50m and GBP 15m loan notes both at fixed rates of
interest. The combination of the fixed and floating rate
debt gives us a high degree of flexibility with some price
stability at ower levels of gearing. Generally, where
higher levels of gearing are appropriate (so drawing on
the floating rate financing) the market conditions are
such that returns are not too sensitive to the pricing

In the year to the end of March the physical property
portfolio produced a total return of -13.7%, made up of
a capital return of -17.5% and an income return of 3.8%
The MSCI Morthly UK Property Index returred -14 7%
over the same period. made up of an ncome ret.rn of
5.0% and a capital fa'l of 18 8%.
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During the year we sold the residential element of the
Colonnades developrment for £5m on a new 999 year
lease at a peppercormn rent. The value of this element

1S determined by the outstanding lease extensions
remaining on the individual fiats. During the Company’s
ownership we completed lease extensions over 75% of
the flats and received more than £12.5m in premiums.
In addition, the sale facilitated the simplification of the
leasehold structure of the asset. The Company has
retaned the freehold of the island site as well as all the
commmercial elements The locality continues to improve
with the redevelopment of the oid Whiteleys shopping
centre nearing completion This is an important next
phase in the further gentrification of Bayswater

It was g busy 12 months for asset management at
Ferrter Street, Wandsworth The strategy remains to let
the estate on a short-term basis, retaining the flexibility
for aither a refurbishment of the existing or a more
comprehensive redevelopment under the planning
permission secured in June 2022. During the year the
Company concluded 10 new leases (five renewals and
five new lettings) covering over 60% of the estate. This
secured over £500,000 of rent with the average rent on
new lettings exceeding £30 per sq. ft. The attractiveness
of the estate continues to benefit from the further
reduction in supply of London industrial space, whilst
the depth of demand from ocoupiers has increased.
The diversity of our occupiers reflect this broad based
demand and range from photographic studios to food
production and even a plant nursery
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Inflationary pressures persist. Central banks appear
resolutely determined to remain hawkish with another
round of base rate increases in May, Whilst a refatively
blunt instrument, there are signs that the medicine of
increased interest rates is having the required effect with
reduced retail sales growth. Energy has been a major
driver of cost inflation and the spot price of gas has
fallen back to pre-invasion prices. This will socn beginto
feed into lower headline inflation figures and also reduce
the likelihood of a recession. We expect wage inflation,
driven by high employment levels, to persist, resulting in
inflation remaming ahead of central banks'target rates.

Against this backdrop real estate fundamentals, In

our preferred sectors, remain solid with little signs of
over-supply and stable demand. Economic growth is
likely to be at best anaemic, for a while, and speculative
development will remain subdued. Income, often index-
linked, will rernain the key valuation underpin. We will
maintain cur focus on the mest judiciously leveraged,
avoiding those with large near-term refinancing
requirements. With such a large number of weli financed
listed companies, we also expect cpportunities to gather
assets from those struggling to refinance in a world
where debt availability is getting more restricted

The sector has a long tail of micro-cap companies

and we continue to encourage boards to explore the
opportunities for consolidation where it improves share
liguidity and reduces costs Otherwise, we will continue
to see the steady stream of privatisations as these
smaller companies are attractive bite sized morsels for
large private real estate owners. Whilst the Company has
often benefited from these premium bids {and continues
to hold a wide range of small caps) we also believe that
growing the number of larger companies is in the best
interests of the sector and investors.

As we go to print at the beginning of June, we are
pleased to report an all-paper bid by London Metric
(market cap. £1,700m) for CT Property Trust (£180m).
The Company owns 10% of CT Property Trust and the
price rose 25% on the annguncement.

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Fund Manager
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Responsible investment

Introduction

The Board recognises the mportarce of considering
Envirormental, Soca and Governance (ESG' factors
when makirg investments and in acting as a respons ble
steward of capital This covers the Company s own
responsibit'es on governance and reporting and, tme
most mateniai way in which the Company can have

an impact, through resporsib e owrersnp of tre
investr-erts that are made onits beha f by ts Manager

1. The Company's own approach to
Corporate Governance and Reporting
Maintainirg a high level of Governance and d'sclosure

in the Company's own operations and reporting

is extremey important Cur Fund Managers are
ercouraging ard support' ng tus from the comparies
N whhch we imvest and we cannot fall short of these
sta~dards ourselves

The Company's comp ance w'ih the AIC Code of
Corporate Governance 1s deta’'led nthe Corporate
Goverrance Report 01 page 50

Urder Sectior 414 of the Compan-es Act 2006 tere is
arequirement to detail information about emrployee and
murran rights, nc uding irformatior aboLt any polc es
Ir re at on to these mMatters ard the effectiveness of
trese poicies Asthe Company has no employees, th's
requirement does 1ot apply The Company i1s rot within
t~e scope of tne UK Modern Slavery Act 2015 hecavse it
nas ot exceeded the turnover trresncld ardis therefore
~ot obl ged to make a siavery and nurar trafficking
stateme~t The Drectors are sat.sfled that to the best
of the r know edge the Companys prnc pa! suppliers,
which are i sted on page 120, compiy with the provis ors
of the UK Miodern S avery Act 2015 Tneseareprncipa v

prefessional advisers ard serv.ce provders i the “marc’al

services ndostry, consequertly the Board cons ders the
Corpa~ytobe ow nskirreatior to tr s ~atter

Tne Board coirenty coTpr ses three mae D recters
a~d trree femaie Directors The Board & s meets tre
FCAsrues for dversity and ~clus.or, folow ~gtre
recorrerdaticrs of tie Parker Review

The actry t es of the Nor~.orat or Committee rrelat or
tc Board charges are referred tc 1n t-e No™ nat-ar
Corittee Report o0 pages 56 ard 57

Tre Boardsdverstypo oy scut ~ed rmroredeta. -
t~e Corporate Goverrance Report

Tre Compary 7as »o green™ouse gas e™ 85 015t repart
from ts cperat ons ~or does it nave resparaib ty forany
octher ermmissions prodoc g sources under the Compar es

Iplalal

Act 2006 {Suategic Report ard D rectors’ Reports

o

Regu.ators 2013) Investrrent trust companies are
current y exempt from report.ng agarst the Task Force or
Climate-Related Firancial D'sclosdres (TCFD), nowever,
the Firancia’ Conduct Authority { FCA) Fas now publisked
regJdlatons that require the Company's Manager, as its
Alternative Irvestme~t Fund Manager {AIFM), to report
agairst TCFD at both tne AIFM ard product evel by Jure
2024 This means that there will be a TCFD disciosure
specific to the Company's portfelio available i the future,
wnich wibh be published on the Manager's website The
Manager Fas produced a report on its overall climate
charge approach, whicnis stroctured using the TCFD
categor.es and 1s avallab:e on 'ts website,

2. Our Portfolio Manager’'s Approach to ESG
Our Portfoiic Manager's prirary duty is to pursue te
object've set out at tne beginning of t~ s annual report,
wh'cs to1mvest nproperty and property related
cormparies with the cbjective of exceeding the retLrns of
oJr bencrmark

Tne Compary 1as et set out its starlto be an ESG
foclsed furd Fowever as a cng-term mvestor,
goveriance and sJstainabilty considerat ors have
always been errbedded ir aur Manager's irvestrent
process ESG rsk assessnerts and considerations are
factors wn ch feed irto the investment decisions Th s
ref ects tne be ief that stiong governance conhined wtn
a resporsible approach to soc'a obl gations and tne
commitrert 1o protect odr ervirorment wii entrance
snareno derreturng rthelorg term

Ir tre part of the portfolio tnat s ~vested directly into
caommerc'a real estate we endeavoLr 1o pract.ce what
we preach

LISTED EQUITY PORTFOLIO
As a dedicated nvestor . tre property sector our Ma-ager
‘s rot-avigto consider sore of e more controvers.al
areas of wrat s et~ ca rvestrert However we are
~vest agir baid ngs wrere constroct.or a~d onge ng
managemert rave a direct impact on I7e ery ror et
A propertyis  sore way deaver rg a social purpose
NMaoderr buird rg pract.ces are very miuce rore focused
A red.ecngerergy corsamiptor and effic ency tran r
i~e past. Propertes rave varying fesparsbut are b it
for the omgter™ Clder buildmgs whr ¢ are less energy
eficient tna- ther moderr counterparts are a fact of

fe trerreplacer-ent vas w dererv ronTenta. arc
SGC al repercussiors 3s we as Nuge oestimpheal.ons
Treyarege ~gtoformpart of tre rwest.ble L overse for
t-e foreseean e fotore and tneir effic ent irproverent
a~drraragemert 1s LSt as importatt as ersaring rew
developmerts fo low the » grest possih e emvironmental
standards At-olgncderbuidirgs w  ~ost ke yshow
nferior scores tothermore modert coorterparts ¢ a

TF Prozerty Irvestmert Trust




rumber of environmental measures, we are lcoking for
dernonstration of best efforts to 'mprove these measures,
recogrisirg that there w.l be im:tations on what can be
achieved but wanting to see a positive direction of trave.

Tnere are two fundamental congiderations to nvestment
T property compan:es: the assets thermselves and therr
rmanagemrent The Manager seeks to irvest in long-term
assets which are managed by quality tear~s in a we'l
governed corporate structure. As aresu t, there has been
a long-stand'ng and strong culture of stewardship in the
Manager's investmert approacn The Manager believes

that engaging with companies 1s best N the first instarce,

rather tran simpiy divesting or excluding investment
apportunit-es However, there are instances where
governance matters have driver a decision not to nvest
It a company As one of the .argestteams investing ir
pan-European reai estate equities, odr Manager meets
with a s'gnificant number of maragemert teams of
irvestee and potential investee companies each year ard
has arobust recerd of engagemert, with arv agenda of
reducing rigk, improving performarce and encouragng
best practice. This 1s augmented by the strength of
Coiumbia Threadreedle's Responsibie Investment
team and ts broader enrgagement. Over the course of
the year, our management team partic pated n 227
irdividual or group meetings with companies and therr
management teams.

he Manager ‘s comimitted to responsibie investment
and s actively developing new procedures and ways in
which inforrration 1s gatnered and used to support thei
engagement with companies on ESG matters

Carporate Governance d:sclosure regl rements have
mcreased transparency erormously in recent years and
enabled closer scrutiny and engagement on Governance
issues for some years Ervironmental measures are now
rapidly coming to tne fore and, with wider disclosure
requirements being placed Lpon our investee companies,
tne Manager IS increasing.y able to scrutinise other
measLres such as climate change and sustainability
policies and outcomes,

However, the Board and Manager are stili of the view that
the ESG rating industry and its approach and processes
ras significant mitatiorns making it difficult 1o draw

true comparisons and make fully informed decis ons

The assessrments from the variods data prov.ders

reach different conclusions asthey donot a2l score n a
congistent way Some of the assessments are subjective
and differe~t data providers have d'fferent definitions and
criera.

Annual Repor: & Accounts 2027

This may eventually converge into some for of
consensus or standardisatior but it still has a way to

go Conceptually, making ESC comparisons between
companies and portfolios appears simple, but it 1s
actually rather comp'ex and it 1s impertant to ensure that
valild comparnisons are being made As lthe shortcomings
are bergurccovered and tme different approaches
hignlignted we hope that this waill put pressure on the
data providers to improve the guality and clarify the basis
of the'r aralysis The data services are subscribed to so
have to be fit for purpose.

Having roted the snortfalls above with the data coliected
from the different providers, our Manager is ennancing
the way » which ESG date s collected and compared.
Their own compary database covers financial and
operational information together with extensive
modelling ESG data is berng collated alongside this,
aliowing comparnisens to be made more easty between
the various data sources for a s'ngle corpany and
irterrogated rather than re ying on high leve "scores”.
Interactions with companies on ESG matters are

noted ard progress, or otherwise, can be tracked more
efficiently

The Manager 1s therefore dedicating direct resource to
tne analysis of the information availatle and also nas
tne benefit of input from its award-w nning Responsible
Investment Team. Thig 1s work in progress and a
significant investment inresource but it will improve the
Manager's ability to engage with our inveslee companies
on environmertal matters a~d play out our respensible
imvestment aims.

It1s crucial to disaggregate between guality companies
wh'ch also have strong ESG credentials ard companies
whch may appear to have strong ESG credentiais {on
e surface at least) but wili make poor investments O-e
examp e of this approach is Home REIT. On the face of it
Home REIT's ESG credent’als appeared strong given the
company's business mode 1s focused on the provision
of accommrodation to help tackle homelessness in the
UK. In addition, its :eases are 100% "green’, meaning
Home and ts tenants agree to ‘dentify and implement
approptiate strategies for the improvement of the
properties’ environmental performance. However, we
elected not to participate in the company's IPO, and

the fund ~as never owned the shares subsequently, as
we had reservatiors about the overall economics of

the business We were concerned about the covenant
quanty of the teranrts (often newly-formed charities)
ard believed that the long ease structures put In piace
by Home RE!T r'sked overstating a realistic value of

the Lnderying assets. This approach proved correct

- short seiler Viceroy pubhshed a report or Home

REIT in November 2022 which highl'ghted numerous
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Responsible investment
continued

concerrs with the business ard the comrpany nas been
mvestigated by regulatory bod’es ona n.mber of iters
nrecent months The shares are current y suspended
perding a decision over tne future of 1ne bus ness,
naving dropped 61% frem the or giral IPG price

Anexample of a ‘aige haoldirg where we believe tre ESG
credentia-s comp ement the nvestment case s Landsec
Aswell as adnherng to the governarce standards

we would expect from a leading I'sted cormpany, the
company also has a cearly oLtlred sustairabil ty
framework. Thisinc.udes long-term targets, progress
aganst wnich:sregular y monitored ard preserted
back to nvestars such as operatioral carbor emiss’'ons
reduction of /0% by 203C (with a 2013/74 baseline} and
average ermbodied carbor reduct.on of 50% compared
witt atypical bulldirg by 2030 The company's newest
developmerts, which 1 our view cortribute positive v
1o the nvestirent case given thed ability to contribute
to both earn.rgs and ret tangbie asset vaiue over time
are also allnet zerc hulld ngs wnicn we heeve wili
contrnibate to an mproved rerta growth tone wher the
assets are let As such there s a symbiot ¢ relatiorsihp
between the conpanys strang ESG credertia s and its
Lnderlying economr.c performance

Governance

Governance covers ™Matters sucr as hoard strocture,
effectveness diversity ard independence, executive
pay and cntera, shareho der ngrts ard finarcial ard
governarce reporting and standards

The Manager bas a corporate goverrarce voting pchey
WHCH T 18 0prion accords vatn currert best practice
whlst maintanag a premary focus o firarca returns
Treexerc se of voting r'gkts attacred te the portfo o
nas been delegated to the Manager Where practcab e,
a srarenc'drgs were voted at a l compary Teet rgs

" ine financ a year 1 accordance w it Colurba
Threadreed es cw™ corporate governarcepc.ces 113
emsdres that a strong, cors stert approac™ 1s taken to

proxy votimg w~ ch backs .p and rer-forces engage e,

takes a robLst e o0 key goverrance 1ssees s.ch as
exec .t ve pay ard ~tegrates env ronrenta socia &
divers ty ss.es a~d s.staimabity practices rictre
VOl ~g process

Coluta Trreadneed s Stewards~ p Report 2022
proqades —ore ~for~—ator or isfirr-oese stewardshp
PO T es as welias mow INese corp y vt tre

expectat omg of tne UK Steveards p Code 2020 to wr cr
t~e Manager s a signatory Its statement of corp arce
can be foud or tre wehsite at

MHps ¢ waw co untb atmreadneed e comer.

Dor mgtrefimarc a vear the Ma~ager voted aga ~st at

TR

o

east one manage™ent propasa! at 52% of shareho det
meet 1gs. This represents 13% of total 1ems voted Of
the items voted agairst, tne proposals car be broadiy

categorsed as foliows:

% 2%

Remuneration
Shareholder rigﬁ-t's
Election s Reelection of
Directors

Share repurchase policy
' other
Director terms

Ratify Auditor

For the year the Marager ergaged with 24 compan.es
drectly onarange of ESG related imatters Tnese
ergagemerts were cordacted at both the board ard
senior exec.tive level as well as directiy w th investar
relations. Topics of engagement were spl't as follows

£ Climate Cﬁéhge
Environmental Standards
Labour Standards
Carporate Gevernance
Human Rights

The Manager tracks the milestones of t1e ergagemert
strategy a~d ras see” progressta s year or a nurber

of matters Exa™ples nclude tre pLblcat on of
sustairab !ty reports ard board accountabiliy on neran
rgnts nisk manageent

Sccial

4 bo dmgsaaveasoca furchior to scme extert,
prov.d ~g p aces 1o live work eat s1op. store etc
Maragemertof bo ¢ ~gs needsic ersare any soc a
obigatorstothe occoparts are et~ ters of

Heat~ & Safety, e~ p oyvee —anageme~t ard we 'be g
andcorm imerttc commonit es Most of these
obhgat ons are therespoms b ity of tre tenant bat our
nvestee comMpar.es are ob 'ged o report or ~atters
affect ngtrerowre~poyvees a~d sug” statements are

cors dered

“FEraperty Insestmert Tross




Environmental

Environmrertal policies 10 the property sector focus

large y on sustaimability and climate change. C mrate
change 's ore of the defiring chailerges of modern times

The management tearm have scurced data and research
from several providers, inciLdirg the Co'umbia Threadneedre
Responsible Investment tear, MSClard Giobai ESG
Benchmark for Real Assets (GRESB)

Tre quartity and depth of data ava. ah e in our sector
vanes greatly; the larger companies now have teams
dedicated to providing erw ronmertai ‘'mpact data and
reporting. However mary of our companies are sma.l and
donot currently have the rescurces to contribute data

1o the organisatiors providing analysis to the investor
community As a carseguence, we see strong correlatiors
between company size, maturity ard overal. scores, Since
our.nvestment strategy leads Jus tc own focused mid-sized
comparies in preference to some of the arger dversified
ones, the portfoiids overall ESG score might tend to be
Jnflattering campared 1o the wider benchmark. The rigour
of cur process ensures tnat these companies receive
scrutimy by the team.

GRESB s a mission-driven and investor-ed crganisation
providirg standardised ard validated ESG data to the
capta- markets. Established in 2009 GRESB now covers
over USD 5tnllion in rear estate assets, publisking Jar
annua rea estate assessment score for participatirg
corrpanies, and ) a public disclosure score for a.d isted
real estate companies. The real estate assessmert score
ranks Environment, Sociai and Governance metrics based

Data coverage as % of weight of the invested equity portfolio

2023 L

" Real Estate Assessment -
Rated __ bb% 62%
Unrated 34% 38%
Totai 100% 100%

on data cortributed directty from partic pating corpanies,
whilst the pubiic disclosure score evaluates the .evel of ESG
disciosuie by listed property companies and REITs

Further deta:l on GRESB can be found at
wiww gresh.com

For 2023 there is ncreased GRESB Real Estate
Assessment coverage of the Company's equity partfcho
(£6% from 50%)

German residentia compan es represerting 11.6% of tne
index do not submit data 1o GRESB due to the reguirement
to subrmit data at the asset or bullding «evel and concerns
arcund far comparnscrs of data aggregation We continue
to engage with GRESRE, encouraging them to modify the
requirements to encourage wder participation.

MSCIESG research covers a wide range of ervronmental
impact measures includ:ng CO2 and greenko.ase gas
erissiors, energy and water Jsage, in additior 1o wider
corporate governarce scores Further detail can be found at
Www MSCI coim/odrsolutions/esg-investing/esg-ratings

Coverage of our sector reduced from 99% to 96% and the
Company's portfoig increased from 89% 10 96%. Where
coverage s based on public data, a significant proportion
Is 1ncluded, whereas where specific data has to be
submitted by compan:es the coverage is currently much
thinner.

The table below compares coverage by both data
providers year on year.

99% 96% 96% 96%

1% 4% 4% 4%
100% 100% 100% _100%

Source CRESE, WSS, Coumnbia Threadneedie investments Dataas at 31 03 2023 Fund exposure calcihated as ine S weight of the nvested squity portfoha

2022

Rated 50% H4%
Unrated 50% 46%
Total 100% 100%

97% 97% 89% 9%

3% 3% 11% 1%
100% 100% 100% 100%

Sourse GRESE MECI Calurbiz Thieadneed e Invest—ents Dates as 4t 3103 2027 Fund expasure ca culated as the % weight of the invested equ tv poartfal o

Annus' Report & Accounts 2023
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Responsible investment
continued

We cort nue to collect data on ermissions and compare
to proryears with the emphasis berrg rore on direct or
of travel than the absclute measures themselves Tris
Is a'so an area where we expect to see further cnarge
wrich is aiso expla ned.

For the year erded 31 March 2022, we disclosed, as best
we were able to, the portfol o-weighted carbon rtersity
of tve tatal portfc'io for the first time

Carbor Risk rmmeasures exposure to carbon irtensive
comparies MSCIs definition and calculation, witn

data based on MECI CarbhoMetrics, is the portfoiic-
we'ghted average of Issuer carbon inters'ty Atthe
IssLer ievel, carbon inters:ity s tre ratic of annual
scope 1and 2 carbon emissicns 1o anrcal ievenue
Carbor Risk is categorized as Very Low (010 <15,

Low (15 to=70). Moderate {70 to <250), H gh {250 to0
<525) and Very Hqr (>=525) Tre Carbor Risk of the
eqJity portfol © measuied at tre finarcial year end, was
43 6T COZE/SM Sales (2022 63 3T CO2E/5M Sales),
fali~gwih'~the owrisk MSCicategory The Corpany's
portfolio-weighted carbon intensity was lower thar that
of the benchmark ¢t 48 8 T COZF-5M Sales.

Comparing agarst tre resd ts from last vear snows a
headline ¢ 31% decrease in carbon rteasity for both our
own equ:ity portfo o and -18% for tre index Tnere arc a
number of reasors for thr's Whilst the rat' o 15 a snapsnot
taker at each financial year end, ref ecting tne change

in equity hoidirgs aver the period tnere1s a so w.der
coverage of data at tne 2023 “~anc a year erd {98%

for t~e current year fund holdings vers.s 89% for the
prior year; Tre latest errissiors data for each co™pary
15 captored by MSCl or publicat or cf their data. eacn
compary 370t re eas ng their data at t~e same point
sctmng differerces wilarse Theratow ! alsc be
impacted by the 2rargng va ce of SSa es mocudirgtre
rmpact of FXrates. However win- thesel mitat ors
we can be reazonabiy confide~t trat the Carbor Risk of
tre partfol e s ™prow-gard corrert y Detter tnan e
be~crmark

20

T CO2E/3M Sales

o0

2023 2022
% TR Properiv irvestment [-ust

FTSE EPRA'NAREIT Deve oped Eurape Capped ndex

In order to attempt te g've a pictore of the direct on of
travel, we have looked at the indiv dual companies the
Corpany he ds 10 assess whic ~ave improvirg of
deterorat ~g carbo™ rtersty metrnics over tiree and
‘ive year per ods

Tr.sanaysis deperds Lpon the ategrity of tne
wnder'ying data and breadth of data coverage, so we
wodld caution that tn s s a work iy progress, but t
ndicates a posit ve trerd as awareress mMproves ard
companies are obliged 1o disclose data

3yr
momentum

5yr
momentum

B \fﬁprovmg
' Deter-grating
| Neutral
By ~.~berof cormpan es Ipree g wrere ena of per od
a.e 5 esstoa- start of percd Detengratrgwrere end
of per g vace s greater 3vs Datafor 47 of 61 stacks
Svre Datafor 43 cf €7 stocks

L L s zae 2 B e
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For the property sector, the focus is currently on the
energy efficiency of buldings once they are occupied,
but we expect " Ume more attentior will be paidto the
carbon emitted In getting tkem bu'lt and cvertually
dismart ed which accounts for a large proportion of a
buldirg's enussions over its ifespan.

DIRECT PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

Sustainabilty is core to the strategy of the direct propeity
portfolio wh ch we invest ir, 1o d ard manage or beha |
of srareholders and this nas beer a key focus for the
managemert tear n ther asset management approach

Certra' lo the year's approach was energy consumplion
As the primary source of carbon erissions wthin the
portfalio, a pr onty over the last twelve months has
been to gain a clear understanding of the consuamption
intensity across the portfol'o, establishing a benchmark
frorm which we can map the strategy to manage the
environmental impact of tnese assets through energy
saving intervent-ons This data collect on aliows us to
fix the base year from which to set out fut.re targets as
well as a ciear pathtoward a net zero carbon portfolo
Alorgside this we have also worked hard to future-proof
tne portfoiio aga nst the forthcoming Minimam Energy
Efficiency Standards

YWe aiso recognise that the baiit environment plays a
fundamental role intre | fe of loca’ communit'es. Asa
landlord the Company continues to enhance 118 sociai
engagement with the local community stakeho'ders

at our assets We aiso strive to work with loca' supp'y
chain partniers 1o deliver a best-in-class service for our
occupers, whilst also supporting the local ecorcmies
surrounding our assets Th's nelps us demonstrate the
soclal va.ue we bring to communities, occupiers and
shareholders.

Tre fira- strand 1o Gur approach s governance.

This forms the foundation for how we manage our
properties Tne manager operates a Sustamnability and
Sociai Respensibiity Committee whicr focuses on the
mplementatior ard defivery of 2l ESG init'atives and
provides full transparency on our proactve hands-an
approach From tris we can execute our environmentat
and social responsibilities. We are on y abie to achieve
our goals through a joined-up approach w'th our property
~anager energy consi tant and ot-er key partners with
who™ we work

Arnuz'Repors & Accounts 2023

In last vear's report we identified tne three key piliars

to establisk the foundatior for the delivery of our ESG
strategy These three pilars, namely Asset Erergy
Performance (Envirorment), OccLpier Engagemert
{Socia’) ard Operationa. Performarce (Governarce)
contirde 1o navigate the Management Team towards the
sLeccessfu. realisator of our ESG strategy.

Whilst the significant progress made over thelast 12
months renforces our cormmitment to achileve ret zerg
carbon by 2050 our u timate goal ‘s to ambitiously
improve on ths 2050 target. To that end, we nave
irstructed net zero audits across the portfelioto facilitate
us inidenbifying exactly how we can brirg this target
forward from 205C This strategic frarmework will be
driven by science based targets in a cost-efficiert
manner, and we will be articulating our improved
pathway over tne fortncoming year

Environmental

Accurate data collection and transparent reporting are
ntegral to our goal of reduc ng carbon emissIoNs acrass
our pertfoiie We have putir place a number of iIritiatives
to tnis end which are cutl ned berow

Re iable and accurate data coliection 1s the cornerstone
to understarding the carbon intersity of our assets. This
gives Ls the ability 10 set ambitious targets to reduce
the carbon intensity and Scope 1 and 2 em ssions for
both oarselves and our occupiers To this end we have
been working in coilaboration with our stakeholders

to 1mp ement a programre to install automatic meter
readers {AMRs') across tre portfel'o to enable the
accdrate measuremert a~d maonitoring of each asset's
energy consurmption  This consamptior data is row
being collated and analysed by the property industry-
recogrised SIERA+ platform This rmeans we can
measure energy corsuamption and access ve data
which we can analyse and then use to shape cur building
operat.on decisions The AMRS have also provided the
dataset which will form part of the Companys inaugara
GRESB suabrr.ss’on cunrently underway, setting the
bercnmark for f.ture ESG performance  With ongoing
access to this fu ytransparent and ve dataset we can
take contro: of cur carbon emissions wtn integnity and
pinpoint exact y where furtrey improvemerts can be
achieved
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Responsible investment
continued

As octhimed in the ast report a key objective for the Fund
was to commerce its first GRESB subrriss'or Now that
we rave ar accJarate dataset of carbon consumyption, we
rave been able to begin the first GRESB sabmrissior fol
2022/23 Theresults of this submiss onw | be avarabe
r October 2023 and from this we w | be able to dentfy
further sustarabiity opporturit es and errance our
strategy towards net zerc Thisis a signficart mrestone
for the Company and GRESB will enable us tc measure
our ESG performance withina cuform and gioba ly
established patform.

Anotrer key elerment to managirg the carbon intersity
of the portfouo s througr the mplementat.on of Greer
Leases Clauses across the portfolio 1t ras enabled us
to erbed cur ret zerc commitrents inte tne forma
structure within which we «ease our assets, setting out
a mutea agreermert betweer lanciord and occupier

to strive to improve energy efficeencies and reduce
carban em ssi0n1s gererated by the assets They also
provide a forma: framework for the Corpany 1o work
wth occupers 01 oJr data co lechon workstrear e
nstarices wnere we are not 1~ contror of t-e et ty supply
This = t.r strengthens our abil'ty to enforce carbon
~tensity targets and gan further contro ¢of Scepe 1ard
2 emiss ons

Further control of carbon ermissions has been achieved
tmrough the scccessfu trarsition of all erergy across
lard ord areas for the wno e portfol.o to renewable
sources Thsisa portfol o-wide in tiat ve ard 100% of
andlord e ectric ty ard gas sappl es are row contracted
or certified green tanffs backed by the Ofgem regu ated
Renewab'e Erergy Guarantees of Orgn IREGS) scnee

are required to tave a1 ERC of E or better Tred rect
property portfo o currerty ~eets t~ese standards and
overa i tre portfol os EPC profl e swe ' paced forthe
short-termregade~ents and proved 1at mgs avge heen
acnevedovertrelast 12 ~morirs

Fro=i 1 ApriZUZ3 aicorerca rerta prope’tes
Fa Tin

o

Faya

Two significant acn ever-ents of note are the
impraverient of the twe EPC G rat rgs witnin the
portfoile tc B and C ratings and ircreasing tre
percentage of assets now qualifying for EPC ratings
by over 20% Tois has beer accompished through
detailed operat oral anaiysis of our assets and the
np ementation of erergy saving enhancements

it sumportart fo notetrat tne increase n Erating 1s

due 1o changes in the assessment crter.a and the
majorty of the £ and D ratings are at Wandsworth where
the strategy s to sither compliete a comprehersive
refurb snment or a full-scale redeveliopment in tne mid
term  ¥Work or this project will comp'ete prior to the 2030
MEES stardard which w Il reguire a mimimum ERPC of

B Oncethis project has beer delvered the percertage
of the portfoio by ERV achieving 2530 coripl ance will
rorease 1o 86%  This s befare ary other e-hancements
are nmplerented

Further tath s the Corpany nas now rased the target
of achieving a mirimu™ EPC rating to tie mir mum of a
B for ali pla~red refurbishrents a~d upgrade warks to
tne portfelo This for—s part of the wider ESG-fonused
refurbishiriert checkl st

EPC (% of ERV)

"R Fropery I eestment Trust




The Company has beer workng close y with the major
terart of our industrial estate in Gioucester to nstall
PV cells on the roof ¢of tne bu"'ding to generate cheap,
low carbon (carbon neutra:) erergy on site. Infusion,
who package specalist teas for a number of high-end,
3rd party custoners nave been a key tenant on the
estate s nce purchase in 2072 and susta rability is key
to the company ethos. The installation of PV cells or
the roof was a critical developmert for the compary ir
its patn towards net zero carbon. Resdlts to date have
been very positive wth 80% of the onsite generation
being consumed on site and the balance beirg exporied
tognd Infusion project that 75% of the.r total arnua.
electricity consumption will be generated o site.

Tne key facts of the instal'ation are
System Size — 244 8kWp
« Year 1 Gereration Prediction — 231,752kWh's
+ COZ Saving per annum — 4G tonnes
+ EPC improvement from C rating to B

This nugely successfu! project demonstrates our
occupier-focused, opportunity-led approach whereby we
Fave championed OJr occupler's success In achieving
their sustaimabi ity goa.s whilst also improvirg the
ervironmental profile for the portfol'o. Following this
success we are Investigat.ng instating PV onto the
remaining Jnits on the estate.

ey

Annual Repors & Accounts 2023

“Infusion GB are extremely commutied to reducing our
environmental footprint and the instalfation of Solar

PV at Gloucester was a critical step towards this. The
proactive engagement of TRPIT was instrumental to this
and enabled us to install a self-generating power sowce
to our buildings This imitiative has been incredibly well
received by customers, supphers and employees alike "
Bruce Stevens. Commercial Director infusion GB
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Responsible investment
continued

Social

The maragement team has continued actively to engage
witn occupiers 1o support and potentia'y invest 1 therr
£5G objectives Comrmmunrcat or and col'aborat 01 plays a
centra: rele in achreving ESG goa's

A quarter y ESG newsletter 's now pJuhhsred and
crcaated with cccupier s 1o encourage ergagement. Key
cortent for the newstetter includes invitirg occupers

o participate 1 tre AMR instalat.on programme,
conmunity engagement initiatives and raising biodiversity
awareness across the portfa'io wnich include the
insta'at-on of bird boxes and bug roteis at Gloucester

At Wandsworth we have successfLl'y maraged o
tegrale a critica’ ocal community partrer ntc Ferrner
Streettnroogh tre lettirg of Unt 16 to thre Wandsworth
Foodbank. By letting the unit at r'l rent we have erabled
ther to contirice to support peaple ard famies facing
severe rardsh'p across Wandswortl Borodgh Inthe
fast year over 110030 emergency food parcels were
provided 1o ioca’ households » severe hardsqip. Witk a
larger faci 'ty at Ferrer 5t they ~ave beer able o increase
t~err emergency food provis o by 71% tirougnoct tne
boroog™ and depvey drectiy 1o those housebolds who
ca~nol access ther Weicome Centres

"Wandswaorth Foodbank are extremely grateful to IR
Property Investment Trust for enashing our mowe to
Farrier St The warehouse prowides us with a space to
receive, sort and store large amounts of donated food
and dispatch 1t to cur seven Welcome Centres and
directiy 1o peoples homes We are really grateful for this
cartnership as we supportiocal householag through the
t-of-lning ensis " Da~ Frib YWardsyorts Foodbank
NManager

cos

TR Property Ireosiert TrusT



The Colonnades is alsu central to the communily
izndscape of the Bayswater area and 1118 vital that it is
fu. yirtegrated nto this environment We nave continued
to wark with our local community partners at the
Colonnades over the last 12 months to help aileviate the
challenges of rougr sleepers in the Bayswater area.

Governance

Ir order to deliver our ESG targets it 1s essentia, that our
irternal maragement structure is fully aligned with cur
strategy The Sustanabiity and Social Responsibi ity
Comimittee meets on a bimontnly basis to ersure that we
are on track with our Sustainahility Roadmap objectives
througn the thorough review of current initiatives and
implementat’on The Committee works in partnerskip
with our managing agerts (Stiles Harroid Williams)
toensure we maintan a sustarable supply chan

wnicr complements gur net zero carbon goals Trisis
demorstrated tnrough objectives set to ensure 100%

of waste materia' under landlord controd s not sent to
landfii The accreditatior of our managing agert o Safe
Contractor also demaonstrates our commitment to paying
all drectly emploved staff on our assets a real Living
VYWage. 7 addition, the management team attend regular
ESG traming everts and seminars, continu.ng our interral
educat.on around ESG and making sure that ail averues
are being exp.ored to achieve pesitive cutcomes across
the portfa.o

Net Zero Carbon Pathway

This sigrificant progress over the last twelve montns
demaorstrates our firm commitment t¢ bring forward our
net zero carbon 2050 strategy Througn our thorough
carbon consumption data maragement, GRESB
submission and MFES improvements we wi'l be able

to clearly set out our key abjectves for the forthcoming
year

We will continue to expand cur AMR programme to
mMaximise odr comprerensive dataset on Sierra+. This
wil provide further irsight into how we can identify and
IMp'erent energy saving measdares, targeting Scope
and Z emissions

Ir October 2023 we w || have the Company's imauguial
GRESEBrating from this we wiil be able ara yse the
resclts to formolate a robust strategy to strergthen tins
rating ard target an ncrease of at least one star {or the
next submission

ArrusiReport & Accounts 2673

Ir order 1o furtner futLreproof the portfalio aga st MEES
we wili continue to track our exposare toinefficient
assets through regular EPC anaiysis. By reducing the
portfolio’'s relance on fossi fuels and impiementing
further renewable energy soutces through solar PV, we
wil continue to drive down the migher EPC rated assets

Over 1me next twelve months we wi | strengthen odr
maragerrent of Scope 3emissions We wil continLe 1o
col aborate with our supplers and oceupiers to adopt
more suslainable practces, redace their rellance on
fossil fuels and de wer best in class asset management
to:mpiove our pathway tonet zero carbon through
careful'y p.arned and delivered interventions

By successfully achieving these objectives over the
forthcomng year we expect to be alse 1o declare
an ambitious irprovement on oJdr net zers carbon
cormitment. bringing it ferward from 2050

o
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Portfolio

as at 31 March

2022 2022
£'000 %
UK Securities’
- guoted 385,876 40.5 518,417 33.2
UK Investment Properties .. 73,957 7.7 96,255 61
UK Total 459,833 48.2 614,672 393
Continental Europe Securities
- quoted . 488839  51.3 840,744 60.2
Investments held at fair value 948,672 99.5 1,555,416 99 5
- CED (creditor)/debtor . 482 05 __ 7657 0.5
Yotal Investment Positions 953,334 100.0 1,563,073 1000 L UK Securitigs
UK Property
B Continental Europe
as at 31 March Securities
2022 2022 CFD Debtors/Creditors
£'000 %
UK Securities
- gucted 385,876 35.7 518417 256
- CFD exposure? 75,963 7.0 57,324 2.9
UK Investment Properties ~ 73,957 7.0 896,255 ]
UK Total 535,796 49.7 671,996 34.0
Continental Europe Securities
- quoted 488,839 45.2 940,744 595
- CFD exposure® B 54943 = 5.1 87318 6.5
Total investment exposure* 1,079,578 100.0 1,700,058 1000
t31 March SecuJrities
aea o - 2022 2021 2020 2019 UK Property
Total investments £949m £1.555m £14007m  £1.7155m  £1.29Tm
Net assets £968m £71.563m £1,326m  £17136m  £1,328m
UK quoted property shares 41% 33% 28% 3% 33%
Overseas quoted property shares 51% 60% 66% 61% 59%
Direct property (externally vaiued) 8% 6% % 8% 8%
as at 31 March
2023 2022 2022
Benchmark Company Benchmark
% % %
GBP 3571 339 336
EUR 423 47.2 414 42 3
CHF 9.9 95 74 71
SEK 13.8 13.8 16.3 6.3
NOK 0.4 03 o5 04

Sed oS sredashzantesnest el o et

et LFLno

Tota n.estrrents dugtratng e akel sxposure nond ngine 705 ce ue 2 LFD prs tons

5
(o)
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Investment portfolio by country

Belgium
Xior Student Housing 15,267
Aedifica 8,959
Care Property Invest 7.191
Icade 5,457
Intervest Offices & Warehouses 3,476
Montea 1,732
Warehouses De Pau 1,429
Shugard Self Storage 601
_ Co4am2
France
Gecina 34,321
Klepierre 29,984
Argan 22,445
Covivio 16,785
Carmila 5,741
Altarea 1,170
] o 110,446
Germany
Vonovia 72,456
LEG Immcbilien 14,868
TAG Immobilien 13,014
Aroundtown 4310
104,648
Netherlands
Eurocommercial Properties 24,767
NS 2,902
Unibail Rodamco Westfield 2110
T 39,779
Norway
Entra o 3509
3,509
Spain
Merlin Properties 26,908
Arima Real Estate 10,531
Inmobiliaria Colonial ] 4,161
_ 41,600
Notes

-+ Comparies shown by country of Feting

“ e above posilons ale the prvs ca:ordings inc uded 0 e mvestrents held at “air vae nthe Balance Sheet The CFE postons sthe et o' tneproftorloss ontae

Market
value

%

1.6
09
0.7
0.6
0.4
02
0.1
01
4.6

3.6
3.1
2.4
1.8
0.6
0.1

116

7.6
1.6
1.3
0.5
11.0

2.6
0.3
02
2

04

04

2.8
1.1
04
4.3

Sweden
Wihlborgs 21,999
Fastighets Balder B 19,804
Catena 11,166
Sagax 10,677
Samhallsbyggnadsbolaget 8,410
Fabege 6,382
Pandox 3,939
Platzer Fastigheter 2,706
Atriurn Ljungberg 1,493
Cibus Nordic Real Estate 1,274
Fastighets Necbo o 742
' ] _ 88,592
Switzerland
Psp Swiss Property 40,606
Swiss Prime Site 25,547
' 66,153

United Kingdom
Segro 79,223

Safestore Holdings 42,509
Picton Property Income 32,628
Industrials REIT 28,318
LandSec 28,199
Sirius Real Estate 23,664
Phoenix Spree Deutschland 23,137
Great Portland 22,973
Ediston Property 15,440
Londonmetric Property 17,115
Unite Group 15,219
CT Property 14,262
Workspace 13,390
Tritax Big Box REIT 7,033
Supermarket Income REIT 2,909
Hammerson 2,827
Warehouse REIT 2,700
Atrato Cap 2,573
Urban Logistics REIT 2,494
Shaftsbury 1,709
Helical 1,408
Cap & Regional 1,205
Newriver REIT Ly
385,876
Direct Property 73,957
CFD Positicns (included in
current assets and liabilities) _ 4,662
Total Investment Positions 953,334

OFL contractz G e not the invest~ent exposure: notudedinthe Ba.ance Sheet curent assets and ! abilties

Arnuat Report & Accounts 2023

Market

value
%

2.3
2.1
12
1.1
0.9
0.7
0.4
0.3
0.1
0.1
01

93

42
2.7
6.9

83
45
24
30
20
25
0.4
2.4
2.0
18
16
15
14
0.7
0.3
0.3
0.2
0.3
0.3
02
01
01
01

405

78

05

1000

2
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Twelve largest equity investments

| SEGRO

31 March 2022
Shéfeholdmg "

value £792m  £77.3m
% of investment

portfolio’ 73% 4.5%
% of equity

owned  __ _ 09% 9.5%
Share price 768p  1346.0p
Segro (UK)

Segrois the fargest UK REIT by market cap
andis the largest operator of logistics and
industrial property listed in the UK, with a
total portfolio of ¢ £18bn (splitc 62 0% 10
the UK, ¢ 38.0% in Continental Eurcpe, with
€.56.0% urban warehouses, ¢.26.0% big
boxes and ©.18.0% land and other uses).
Inthe UK, the group 1s mainly exposed to
Greater London industnal and logistics,
Rental growth in these markets has been
extremely strong as there remains an
acute supply-demand imbaiance, fuelled
by tenants’ requirements to deal with the
growthin e-commerce.

In Europe, Germany and France are the
group’s largest markets with Italy third,
these markets have a lower, but stili
positive, rental growth outlook (and are
geographically less space-constrained). In
2HZ2 UK valuations saw a sharp correction,
while EU valuations have lagged the
aggressiverepricing of the UK. Segro has
extensive development exposure that it
manages targely to pre-let and develop at
yields significantly in excess of investrent
values (.6-7% yield on cost vs. an EPRA
net initial yieid of 3 7% at FY22} This has
been a successful formula to drive both
earmings and NAV growth, as well as high
shareholder returns.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been +45 7%,

t Notes:

YONOVIA

31 March 2022

Shareholding

value _ E725m £145.8m
% of investment

portfoho’ 6.7% 8.8%
% of equity

owned  _ _ 06%  05%
Share price €17.34 £42 3%

Vonovia (Germany)

Vonovia is a German listed residential
company and the largest real estate
company in Continental Europe by market
capialisation. At the end of 2022, the
company owned a portfolio of c.€95.8bn,
primarily split between Germany (¢ 88.9%
of value), Sweden (c.7.4%) and Austria
(€.3.7%). The partfolio has increased
drarmatically and stands at 548,000 units,
following a string of acquisitions, mostly
oftisted peers, such as Deutsche Wohnen,
Hembla, Victoria Park, and BUWOG.

Vonovia is involved in the whole value chain
oftheresidential sector, via its rental business
(c.80.1% of group EBITOA}, third-party
development segment (¢.6 7%}, recurring
sales segment (C.4.9%), its value-add
segment (energy, multimedia, and other
services segrment, ¢.4 6%) and 1S nursing
segment (2.3.0%) The German residentral
sector remains heavily regulated, yet Vonovia
has continually been able to generate solid
rent growth (+3.3%in 2022), whilst also
complying withregulations and assuming a
social role, which permits therm to benefit from
criticai political goodwill and partnerships {as
observed by the 20 000-unit portfolio sale to
the State of Berlinin 2021). Even though asset
values have come under pressure, s seen
with all real estate agset classes, operationally
the business continues to perform strongly as
seen by FFO | growth of 14.6% prs, dnven oy
operational improverments and healthy rent
growth. Moreover market evidence points

to further upward revisions torent growth
estimates as the supply demand imbalance in
Germany persists

The five-year total shareholder returrhas
been-45.7%,

fepertentzae o nLest e ent P02 pos 1 Sha S5t Dul alaL s noiude eeposures thenugn CF D o ot g nd

Thef e pesr1lla Snarenoide returnT 2 tneRluns nnenia cuens, af iz ho ding

. P
31 March 2022
Shareholding
vaiue _£596m  £67 5m
% of investrment
portfolic’ _ 55%  36%
% of equity
owned 1% 0%
Share price £20.85 {2418

Klepierre (France)

Kieépierre is a French REIT, which owns,
operates, and manages a portfolio of
European shopping centres, spanning ten
countries Attheend of 2022, the company
owned a portfolio of ¢ £19.8bn, with major
exposures In France (¢.38 3% of value),
Italy (€.23 8%), beria (¢ 13.0%), Germany/
Netherlands (¢.%.7%), and the Nordics
{€.8.7%) The company, like all shopping
centre owners, has reaped the benefits of
areturn to normality as social gatherings
are permitted and travel restrictons have
been lifted demonstrated inits strong
rebound in footfali and tenant sales. While
the ongoing shift towards e-commerce

as a retait channel has continued, It has

at a slower rate evenretreating in certain
markets, with digitally native retallers
pivoting to physical by opening stores On
arelative basis, the company continues to
henefit from its 100% focus on Continenta:
Europe, without any exposure to weaker
UK and US markets Lastly, the company
benefits from the expenence of the
Chairman, David Siman, also Chairman
and CEQ of Sirman Praperty Group, which
owns ac.22 3% stake inKlepierre.

In 2022 EPS growth was +18 7% Yov,
venefiting from accelerating indexation
and occupancy improvements, with
EPRA NTA broadly flat YoY Meanwhie,
s financiai metrics remain conservative
with a netdebt to EBITDA of 7.9% and an
EPRA LTV of c.43.7% lts average cost of
debtisiow atwst ¢ 12% and s expected
taremairlow as evidenced vy its igh
hedging ratio of ¢ 20 0%, and weighted
average loan maturity of 6.5 years.

The five-year total shareholaer return has
peen-4 5%,

cdiee postonsandinepation
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31 March 2022
Shareholding

value £593m  £45.2m
% of investment

portfolio’ 55% 2.7%
% of equity

O\Nn_ed__ 7"1 .37“/?77 0 8%
Share price 621D 7B86p

Land Securities (UK)

Landsecis one of the UK's largest REITs,
with a portfolio valued at c.£71bn, The
cormpany’s assets are a mix of offices
{c.51 0%), retaill assets {¢ 36.0% splt
hetween shopping centres and outlets)
and other uses {¢.13.0% such as leisure
assets, retail parks and hotels); ¢.61.0%
of the assets are in central London.

Since Joining the business in 2020 new
CEO Mark Allen has sought 1o alter the
company's strategy, pledging to sell cut
of Its non-core assets (e.g. hotels, leisure
assets and retaif parks), while increasing
the size of the development pipeline to
focus onlarge mixed-use schemes that
others do not have the capabilities to
deliver. In addition to the established office
development pipeline the company now
plansto spend an additional £1 5bn over
five years onmixed use developments,
with a 20% profit on cost target. Balance
sheet management has been relatively
conservative with a very long debt
maturity of 10.9 years as at September
2022, net debt 1o EBITDA of 8. 7% and LTV
at September 2022 of 31% (and lower
since that date following disposals of
large office assets including 1 New Street
Square). The company intends to recycle
capital to fund the development pipeline,
avoiding gearing up despite capex spend,
and has a medium-term target of LTV
remaining in the mid-30s

The five-year total shareholder return has
been-17 0%.

*+Notes:

PR,

; gecina

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value ) £52.4m  £44.0m
% of Investment

portfolio’ B 4.8% 2.6%
% of equity

owned o 08%  0.6%
Share prica £95 50 €114 3

Gecina (France)

Gecina is the largest French REIT

and s one of the largest real estate
companies in Continental Europe by
market capitalisation. At the end of 2022,
its portfolio was valued at c.€20 ton,
comprising of offices {¢.80.0% of value),
residential (c 18.0%), and student
accommaodation (€.2 0%).

Gecina develops, manages, and owns

a diversified portfolio, which is heavily
skewed toward the Paris region (c.97 .0%),
and has been selling non-core assets
outside of Paris inrecent years. In 2022,
Gecina was a primary beneficiary of the
much-debated return to the office trend,
helped by its centrally located and high-
quality portfolic. As aresult, Gecina saw
solid rent increases driven by index-linked
rents, positive reversion and a material
increase in occupancy levels YoY which
allhelped to drive 7 4% EPS growth YoY.
Asset values during FYZ2 were broadly
flat (-0.6% including value creation from
pipeline), as widening yields were offset
with improving rental markets and
stronger indexation, and highlights the
high quality of the portfolio.

The company is one of a handfui of
European real estate companies with an
Arating from Moody's and S&F givenits
conservative financial profile, operating
with an EPRA LTV of ¢ 36.8%. The average
costof debtistow atc.1.2%, alongside a
high hedging ratio of ¢.90.0%, and a long
weighted average loan maturityat 7.5
years.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been-15.4%.

Lo

31 March

SHareho!ding
value

% of Investment
portfolio’

% of equity
owned

Share price

Safestore (UK)

Safestore 1s the UK's largest self-storage
operator, owning ¢.160 stores, primarily
in the UK {and weighted towards London
and the South East with ¢.44% of total
group stores). in addition the company
has a large footprint in the Paris market
and has recently been expanding into
new Eurcpean cities (through both Jv
structures and outright ownership) taking
footholds in Holland, Spain and Belgium.
Safestore has a best inclass cperating
platform which, along with peer Big Yeliow,
allows it to dominate the UK storage
market, particularly in terms of online
search.

The company has driven consistent
earnings growth both organicalty {through
like-for-like occupancy, rate growth and
opening new developments) and through
acquisitions. The self-storage market also
performed extremely strongly during the
COVID-19 pandermic and has repeatedly
shown its resilient credentials during wider
economic turbulence

The five-year total shareholder return has
been +118.6%.

- The percentage sfinvestment part’el nopos bons setout above melude cxposiares thicdadli SFD for both e mdiadua: pos tions and rie portions

"he Tve vezn tolg! snarehnlder retuing are the returns nitheloca cur-enoy of te hold ng

Annugl Repart 8 Accounts 2003
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Twelve largest equity investments
continued

31 March

Shareholding

vatue £40.6m £44 6m
% of nvestment

portfolio’ 3.7% 2.6%
% of equity

owned o 10% 1.0%
Share price CHF1040 CHF1215

PSP Swiss Property {Switzerland)
PSP Swiss Property 1s one of Switzerland's
leading real estate companies, owning

a diversified portfolic of high quality

real estale assets in Switzerland. At the
end of 2022, its portfolio was valued at
CHFS 4bn, comprising of offices (¢ 64.0%),
retail (c.16.0%), food (¢ 6.0%), and

other (¢.14 0%). The portfolic is skewed
towards Switzerland's key economic
centers, including Zurich (¢ 57.0%, Geneva
{c.14 0%), Basel (c.8.0%), and cther major
cities at ¢ 27.0%.

Underlying property markets in
Switzerland appear to be holding up well.
Transactional evidenceis ight, but from
the few transactions taking place It seems
that property values for prime assets are
broadly stable. Similarly, dermand faor office
space ineconomic centéers such as Zurich
and Geneva Is expected 1o remain strong
As aresult, PSP made further progress
during the year on itg vacancy reduction,
lowering vacancy from 3.8% 10 3.0% at
Dec 23, and saw like-for-like rents grow by
+2.2%; all this led 10 EPRA EPS growth of
+4 1%, Moreover EPRA NTA still grew 3%
over the year on modest revaluation gains
and retained earnings. LTV remained low
at 32.6%; amongst the lowest levels for
European property campanies while i1s
currert cost of debt s fixed for 4 1 years.

The five-year tota! shareholder return has
heen +31 4%,

[ -23‘”,’.- e

, s [ICTON
31 March 2022
Shareholding

value _£373m £359m
% of Investment

portfolig’ 3.4% 2%
% of equity

owned _99% _6.7%
Share price 89p a8p
Picton (UK)

Picton s a diversified UK REIT with a
weighting towards UK industrial. The
£850m portfolio, as at September 2022,
was ¢ 58.0% industrial. ¢.32.0% offices
fof which ¢ 22.0% London and the South
East) and ¢.10.0% retail {of whichc.7.0%
retall park) Along with a high quality asset
portfalio, where rental growth and capital
value performance have repeatedly beaten
refevant benchmarks, the company is

run conservatively, taking very imited
development risk as well as maintaining

a very strong balance sheet. For example,
the company’'s LTV as at December

2022 was ¢ 26.0%, with long-dated debt
maturity (¢.10 years) and very limited
near term refmancing requirements. In
addition, we believe the portfolio boasts

a number of valuable asset management
opportunities, ncluding both vacancy
reduction in heavily under-rented space
and the potential for residential conversior
in certain assets which coutd provide
lucrative upside versus current valuations

The five-year total sharehoider returm has
been-0.4%,

industrials

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value £34.5m 53.3m
% of nvestment

portfolio’ 3.2% 31%
% of equity

owned ~  _ 98%  92%
Share price 118p 198p
Industrials REIT (UK)

Industrials REIT is a UK focused

multi-let industrial business The portfolio
has been transformed over a number of
years to focus solely on the UK ML sector
and the £660m portfolio is now ¢.95% ML
(as at Septermber 2022) Over a number
of years the UK MLI asset class has seen
strong capital value growth, driven by
both yield compression and ongoing ERV
growth (inthe 12 months to December
2027 Industrials REIT has seen LfLERY
growth of +10.5%), with rents coming fram
alow base (average passing rent inthe
portfolio was £5.94 at December 20225, In
addition to its strong underlying property
fundamentals the company's Hive
aperating platform gives the company
access to data on enquiry ievels and
demand, as well as aliowing for innovative
operational approaches such as the

use of digital short-form smart ieases,
speeding the letting process and reducing
any negatrve draq from portfoio vacancy
Total shareholder return since IPO in June
2018 has been +29.0%, and the company
was recently bid for by Blackstone at a
aremium of +42.0% 1o the ciosing price
before the offer was made

The totai shareholder return since isting
i15:06:18)has been +28.0%

T Notes:
- Tmepercentage of meestrrent purtor ¢ pos Lons set out abizse notude exposures trouds LFL S batntas nd L dus pnat onsand tne portin o
+ Theflavesn tata shareho der retms g e teturms 1 Tne LA Sutent, ST e R ng

TR PIopery e esimert Trust
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31 March 2022
Shareholding

value o £269m  £4738m
% of iInvestment

portfolio’ o 25% 28%
% of equity

oyned a8 1%
Share price £8.06 £10 59

Merlin Properties (Spain)

Merlin Properties 1s a Spanish diversified
REIT with a ¢.€11 3bn portfolio. The
majority of the company's assets are
offices (c.56.4%), where the company
focusses 1ts exposure on major cities,
primarily Madrid and Barcelona.
Additionally, the company owns shopping
centres (¢.18 9%), data centres/logistics
(¢.12.4%), with the residual ¢.12.4% of
assets intand and other uses

As aresult of inflation and continued

tenant demand in the Spanish market, the
business continued to perform well, with
average like-for-like rent growth of 7.3% and
yearend occupancy of 95.1% (a 60bps YoY
improverment). Even though property values
are not insulated from wider market trends
{asset values declined -1.5% YoY) yields
have already significantly widened by 44bps
and are therefore fikely to provide more
pratection going forward. During 2022,
Merlin completed the sale of its net lease
portfolio, comprised of 659 bank branches
let to BBVA, for ¢ €2 .0bn ata 17% premium
toits book value (the BBYA portfclio
represented c.15% of the total portfolic).

As a result of this transaction, the company
ranaged to significantly reduce its EPRA
LTV by 800bps 16 ¢.35.8% by financial year
end. This gives the company significant
flexipility going forward as it evaluates

its development pipeline ir combination
outlock for property values. Moreover, its
cost of debtremains low, at an average of
c.2.0%, with a hedge ratio of ¢.99 6%, and

a weighted average loan rmaturity remains
long at4.9 vears

The five-year totaf shareholder return has
beer-15 4%

T Notes:

p—
s

\’, PHOENIX
4# SPREE

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value ~ f268m  £51.9m
% of investment

portfolio! o 2.5% 3.1%
% of equity

owned _157%  14.7%
Share price 186 387p

Phoenix Spree (UK)

Phoenix Spree Deutschland 1s a UK listed
investment company that owns residential
units, exclusively in Berlin, Germany The
company is predominantly investedin
so-called ‘afthau properties (typically buiit
between 1900-1940} which offer features
that remain highty desired by prospective
tenants and buyers. At the end of 2022,
the company's portfolio was valued at
c.£776m. The company aims to maximize
shareholder returns by converting

rental units into condominiums and selt
these in the open market at significantly
higher values.

During 2023, the company continued

t0 benefit from a structural supply and
demand imbalance in Germany and Berlin
specifically, which led to healthy rent
growth of +3.9%, with new lettings signed
6.6% ahead of the prior year. Furthermore,
increased mortgage costs will likely mean
that many prospective buyers will rent

for longer as mortgages have become
more expensive Thiswill Ikely lead to
further upward pressure to market rents.
Nonetheless, property values reduced by
-3.1% over the year as a result of increased
interest rates, which led to a decline in the
EPRANTA of -2.7%, even as average sales
prices were stilt materially (+22.4%) ahead
of trailing book values. Whilst transaction
volumes have significantly declined as
aresult ofinterest rate increases, 1t1s
expected that investment volumes should
pick Up again once interest rates have
stabilized.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been-40.5%

re SWISS PRIME SITE
31 March 2022
Shareholding

value £256m  £27.4m
% of investment

portfolie’ 2.4% 1.6%
% of equity

owned 0.5% 0.5%

Sharc price CIF76.05 CHFS1.25

Swiss Prime Site (Switzerland)
Swiss Prime Site is one of the largest
real estate companies in Switzerland,
with a diversified portfolio of real estate
assets, coupled with a leading real estate
investment (indirect) business. It owns

a diversified real estate portfolic, which
was valued at CHF13.Ybn, comprising of
offices (c.44.0% of value), retail {¢.26.0%},
logistics (9.0%), hotels (¢ 7.0%), with the
residual c.14.0% of assets in land and
other uses.

Despite a slowdown in transactions,
underlying property markets in
Switzerland appear 1o be holding up well,
as the few transactions that did take
place appeared broadly supportive of
existing asset values. Moreover, tenant
demandremains healthy. During 2022
and the early start of 2023 SPS has made
significant efforts 1o simplify its corporate
structure (the sale of Wincasa, a real
estate services company) and exit the
retall business (Jelmoli). Meanwhile, the
underlying business continues to perform
well, with like-for-like rent growth of +1.9%
and further vacancy reduction (-30bps

1o 4.3%) whilst EPRA NTA increased
modestly with+1.7% on the back of stable
property values. The reported LTV reguced
by 130bps over the year 1o 38.9% and cost
of debt was kept low at 0.9%

The five-year total shareholder return has
been +5.9%.

> The percentage of investrent partfohic pasitians set out ahove include exposwr2s through CFC for both the 'nd widua postians and the portiol o
- The fiee-yedr 1otai sharenolde” retuns are 1ne returns nine ocal curtency of the holding

annual Report & Accounis 2023
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Investment properties

Spread of direct portfolio by capital value (%)

Retail Industrial
West £nd of London 500 -
inner London™ 17 376 .
South West - 107 10.7
Total 517 48.3 100.0

“inner London defined as ne:de 1o Nortn and South Circular

Lease lengths within the direct property portfolio

£ Oto Hyears

510 10 years
| 10 to 15 years
1510 20 years
n 20+ years

The Colennades, Bishops Bridge Road,
London, W2

Sector: Mixed use

Tenure: Freehold

Size (sq ft): 64000

Principal tenants: Waitrose Ltd,
Graham & Green, Happy Lamb Hot Pot,
TRebel, Specsavers

The property comprises alarge
mixed-use block in Bayswater, constructed
inthe mid-1970s. "he site extends to
approximately Z acres or the north east
corner of the junction of Bishops Bridge
Road and Porchester Road, closeto
Bayswater tube statior and ongoing
developmert of The Whiteley The
commercial element was extended and
refurbished in 207 & with a new 20 year
lease being agreed with Wartrose.

0

o}
<

Gross renial

income

Ferrier Street Industrial Estate,
Wandsworth, London, SW18

Sector: Industrial

Tenure: Freehold

Size (sq ft): 36,000

Principal tenants: Sweaty Betty, Richard
Dawes Fine Wines, Lockdown Bakers

Sie of just over an acre, 50 metres from
Wandsworth Town railbway stationr ar
areathat s pregominant'y residentia
Theestate comprises 16 small indusinal
units generally letso a mx of smal 1o
meoiuT-sized privale companies
Planning permission granted in
Decermnber 2018 for @ mixed-use
empioyment led redevelopment

Contracted rent

£29m
£99m
£1415m

10 Centre, Gloucester Business Park,
Gloucester, GL3

Sector: industrial

Tenure: Freehold

Size (sq ft}: 63,000

Principal tenants: infusion GB, Pulsin L.td

The IQ Centre comprises six industrnal
units occupied py three tenants and
sitson a4 b-acre site. Gloucester
Susiness Park s located 1o the east of
Junchion 174 of the M5 and one mile 1o
the east of Gloucester City Centre. The
property alsohas easy access o the
A4 7 providing good finks to the M4 via
junction 15

TP Rroperyinestment Trus!
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The Company's investment objective 1s 1o maximise
shareholders’ total returns by investing in the shares
and secunties of property companies and property
related businesses internationally and also in
investment property located in the UK,

The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Net Total Return Index in sterling. The
index, calculated by FTSE, is free-float based and as
at 31 March 2023 had 109 constituent companies.
The index {imits exposure to any one company to 10%
and reweights the other constituents pro-rata The
benchmark website www.epra com contains further
details about the ndex and performance

mutemegs PAso

The Company’'s business model follows that of an
externally managed investment trust company
The Company has no employees. Its wholly non-
executive Board of Directors retains responsibility
for corporate strategy, corporate governance;

risk management and internal control; the overall
investment and dividend policies; setting limits

on gearing and asset allocation and monitoring
investment performance

The Board has appointed Columbia Threadneedle
Investment Business Limited as the Company’s
Alternative Investment Fund Manager {'AIFM’) with
portfolic management delegated to Thames River
Capital LLP Marcus Phayre-Mudge acts as Fund
Manager to the Company on behalf of Thames River
Capital LLP and Alban Lhonneur is Deputy Fund
Manager. George Gay is the Direct Property Manager
and Joanne Elliott the Finance Manager. They are
supported by a team of equity and portfolic analysts.

Further information in relation to the Board and the
arrangements under the Investment Management
Agreement can be found in the Report of the Directors
on pages 49 1o 51.

in accordance with the Alternative Investment
Fund Managers Directive (AIFMD’), BNP Paribas
has been appointed as Depositary te the Company.
BNP Paribas also provides custodial and
administrative services to the Company.

Company Secretarial services are provided

by Columbia Threadneedle Investment Business
Limited.

A summary of the terms of the Investment
Management Agreement are set out on
pages 58 and 59.
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Strategy and investment policies

The investment se'ectior process seeks 1o de~tfy
wel. managed cormpanies of all s.zes. The Manager
gereraily regards future growth ard cap.tal
appreciation petentiar more mghiy than mirediate
yeld or discount to asset value

Although the investiment ctijective aliows for
mvestment onan nterratoral bas.s, the Company's
bercinmark s a pan-Earopean Index and tre
majority of the investrents will be located » tnat
geographical area, Direct property invesiments are
wocated in tne UK oniy

Ag a dedicated mvestor v the praperty sector

the Compary cannct offer diversification outside
trat sector, however, with 7 the portfono trere

ate imitatiors, as set out below anthe size of
ndveduannvestrents ne'd to ensure that there s
dversicat or witrin tng portfolo

Tremax.arum ho'ding nthe stock of ary one issuer
or of a singie asset ‘s i {ed to 15% of the portforo
at the po.rt of acqgu siton In add.ton, any hodirgs
excess of 5% of tre portforo muLst rotfin aggregate
exceed 4C% of the portfol o

The Manager cuniert'y appl es the foliow rg
guidel res for asset al'location

UK listed equities ) ' _ - 25-60%

Continental Eurapean

The Company may employ levels of gearing from
tme fc tTewith tne aim: of erhancirg returns,
sLbject to an overall max.murm of 25% of the portfo .o
value

In certain market canditians the Marager imay
consider 1 pradent not te empioy geanng at a', and
to hoid part of the portfolioin cash.

Tre current asset ailocator guideling is 10°% ret
cashto 25% ret gearng (as a percentage of portfaio
valle)

investrrent propert es are valued every six mortng by
an externa. mdependent vaiver Valuations of al’ tne
Greup's propertes as at 31 Marck 2023 have beer
carried out ona 'RICS Red Book bas s ardthese
valuations have beer adopted i the accounts

Tne Group cnarges 75% of annual base management
fees and finance costs to capital, r ewitatre
Board's expected long-term sp it of returms r the
form of capital gairs and ircome A performarce
fees are cnarged to cap ta'

It1stre Board's current rtentionto to d no mote
rar 15% ofthe portfclio 1 sted ¢ osed-ended

listed equities 45 -75% nvestrent companies
Direct Property — UK 0 -20%
‘ ) Sore companes vestrg n comrerc an o
Other listed equities 0- 5% = o g.7Lo ' -
} - ‘ res dent al property are structured as - sted exterrar'y
Listed bonds ; : . 0-5% managed cosed-ended imvestr-ent compar es
Jnguoted investments o 0-5% and trerefcre forn part of our Cvestment ur verse

AthoLgh 1~ s snotarrode wsua sy favoared by our
Fund Marager some ~vestrerts are made im inese
strectures rorder o ancess a partcoar sector of tne
market or woere ire Tanage™ertteaT s regarded
as especa y strong \ir-ose compares grow ard
beco~ea arger part of ourirvestment or verse ard
ol Mew corrpan-es come 1o the rarket 1th's format
the Foad Marager may w sk 1C norease expesare

to tncse vericles If tne Marager wishes to nCrease
mvestmertic cver 157 e Compary v ake ar

arrouncerertacoord "gy

Treasseta:0cat 0~ gu de ~e upper  tfor UK
“sted egoitres ras rereased frorm 50°: 10 607 Tre
reqo-rerent for tne weighting to UK correrc.a
oroperty Fas ~ot chamged, ~owevertne rober of
co™pat esho'doogrea estate ocated v Elrope
Gotwitm a UK st ~g ~as ~creased 1rerefore toe
assel @ ocal o g de' e as heem crargedic
accormmodate 1o g

34 TF Property Ircestren: Trast



Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting the Company’s
ohjective against the following Key Performance Indicators (‘KPIs'):

KPI

The Directors regard the cut-performance of the
Companys ret asset value tota: return reiative to
the benchmark as be.ng an overall measuie of value
de iveredto tme snarehiolders’ over the onger term

Board monitoring
The Board reviews 1ne performance in detail at each meetirg
and discusses the resu'ts and outlook with the Manager

KPI

Tne pruireipal objective of the Company is a tota!
return objective, however, the Fund Manager also
ams o de iver aei'able dividend with growth over
the longer term

Board moanitoring
The Board reviews statements o1 income received 1o
date and mcome forecasts at each meeting.

KPI

whilst expectation of investment performance ‘s a key
dr'ver of the snare price discount or premiam to tne Net
Asset Va ue of aninvestment trust company over the
lorger term, there are penods when the discount can

widen. The Board s aware of the vulrerabity of a sector-

spec.alist to a change of mvestor sentimert towards that
sector, or to pericds of wider market uncertanty and the
impact tnat can have on tne ¢ scount

Board monitoring

Tre Board takes powers at each AGM to buy-back and
Issue shares. When corsidering the merits of snare

buy- back or 1Issuance the Board looks at a number of
factors, in addiior to the sthort and longer-term discount
or premium to NAY 1o assess whether action would be
teneficial to sharenolders overall Particular attent on

Is paid to the current matket sent ment, the potential
rrpact of any share buy back activity unthe ligu dity of
the shares ard on Orgo ng Charges over tne lorger term

s}

Annuzl Report & fwccounts 20232

Outcome
NAY Total Return= {Annualised) -35.5% -1.8%
Benchmark Total Return {Arnualised) _-340%  -45%

*The NAY Tota Retrimn s ralrulated by assuring dradonds paad by tae
Company zre e nvested in {ne assets of the Comipany on the relevant ex
dondend date Trehencunark totalreturn assumes dindends a-e re-mvested
on the relevant ex-tf vidend dales

Although this KPlhas not been metin the current year, it

has over 5 years. The NAV Total Return has exceeded the

benchmark for the previous 12 years.

QOutcome

Cormpound Annual Dividend Growth~ _6.9% 4.9%

Compound Annual RPI _1358%  57%

*Trefing d vidend rtie tme senes dvided by the imitial dividend in tie perniod
aigedi 1o 1ne powel 0° 1 divided by the number of years inthe ser es

The exceptional inflation figure for the year to 31 March

2023 means the Dividend Annual Growth Rate has fallen

behind RPI on both a one and a five year hasis. However

a growing dividend has been delivered inthe currentand

previous 12 years, despite a fall in earnings threugh the

COVID pandemic. Qver the longer term, the dividend growth

rate has comfortably exceeded RP! on ar annualised basis

(10years: 8.3% vs 4.0% and 20 years: 10.6% vs 3.6%).

Outcome
. 58%  -AT7%

Total number of shares repurchased - -

Average discount”

* fwverage daiy d.scount througnout the pericd of s9a7¢ pr oe to NAV with
income. Source Bloomberg

The discount has seen wide fiuctuations through the year

as market sentiment towards the sector has changed. The

average discount over 1 yearis wider than we have seen for

a while however, over Syears is at a similar level to the prior

year level of -4 6% and to the ter year average of -4.9%.
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Key Performance Indicators
continued

KPI
The Board 1a consc ods of expenses a~d arms to
deaver a baiance betweer exceilent serv ce and costs

The AIC defintion of Ongoing Charges inciwdes ary
direct property costs in addition to the mmaragement
fees and a'l otrer experses incarred in rynning &
pubincly hsted company As no other mvestmearttrust
comparies hold part of then portfolic n direct property
(they ether rold 16C% of trer portforo as property
sec.rities or as direct property), n addition to Cngoing
Crarges as defired by the AIC this stauistic s snown
without direct property costs - order to ailow a ¢ earer
co~parison of overali administration costs wik trose
of cther funds investng i secarilies

Board monitoring

[he Board montors the Company's $ngoig
Charges, in cormpar sorito a range of other
nvestrert trust comparies of simiar size, botn
property sector speciahists and otrer sector
specialists T1e broker provides a I'st of comrpan es
it heseves s areasonabie cormmpansor Notetrere s
~c other lnvestrent Trust specia: s Wy n property
relatect equ ties

Experses are budgeted for eacr financai year and
the Beard reviewes reports or act.a' and forecast
experses durmyg the vear

KPI
T-e Corpary musicoml woelc weest ineregurererts
of Sect.on 7158 of the Corperation Tax Act 2010

Board monitoring

T~e Boardrevews H~a s g ~formahon
each ~eet g Wt ¢F set oot trereqereent
Secton 1158

[95)
*]
s
—
3
[4v)

(%
(a2}

QOutcome

Ongoing charges excluding
performance fees 7 _0.73%  064%

Ongoing charges excluding
performance fees and direct
property costs - 067% 0.62%

Tne Corrpary's Ongomg Charges are compettive when
compared o the peer group

Costs aver tne year have nat ircreased significantly; tne
Ircrease M ine ongoing charges percertage 1s as aresot
of the fa.l ir NAV over the veal

Outceme

Tre Drectors beleve trattre cond t onsand 07go g
requireTents mave bean et trespect of tre vear to
371 Warcr 2iZ3 ardirattre Compary . cotlmuelo
reel the rego rements

I~ed ater ~tre Arerla Report

TR Propeny | estren Trust



Principal and emerging risks

In delivering long-term returns to shareholders, the Board must also identify and monitor the
risks that have been taken in order to achieve those returns. It has included below details of

the principal and emerging risks facing the Company and the appropriate measures taken in
orcer to mitigate those risks as far as practicable.

The ongoing conflict in Ukraine has impacted energy and commodity supplies creating
inflationary pressures and prompting central banks to raise interest rates in response.
Interest rates have risen more quickly and to higher levels than was initially anticipated This
has brought challenges not seen for many years and particularly impacted the property

sector,

The legacy of COVID-19 has seen ongoing changes and challenges in the workplace in terms
of resourcing and changes in working practices.

Share price performs poorly in comparison
to the underlying NAV

The snares of the Company are listed on the _andon Stock
Excnange and the share price :s determined by supply and
demand. ~he shares may trade at g QISCount or premium
1o the Company's underlying NAV and this discount or
premium may fuctuate over time.

Poor investment performance of the portfolio

relative ta the benchmark

The Company's portfol.o s actively managed Inacdit'on

to vestment securrties, tne Company also mvests in
commercial property and accord ngy, the porticlio may nat
fallow or outperfarm the return of 1ne benchmark

Arrua Report & Accounts 2023

Tne Board monitors the level of discount or premium at
which the shares are trading over the short and .onger term

Tne Boa-d encourages engagement with the shareholders
The Board receves reporis at each meeting on the activity
of the Company’s broke s, PR agent and meetings and
events attended by tne Fund Manager

The Company’s shares are aval'atle through tne Columbia
Threadneedle savings scnemes and the Company
part’cipates in the active marketing of those schemes.
The snares are aso widely ava labie on opén architecture
piatforms and can be neld direcily through the Company's
registrar

The Board takes the powers to1ssue ana 1o buy back
snares at each AGM

Tne Manager's ohject ve 1z to ourperform the benchmarx
Tre RBoard regularly reviews the Company's long term
strategy and investment guidel-1es and the Manager's

re gtive posifions aga nst those,

The Management Engagement Commitiee reviews the
Manager's per‘ormance annuaiy The Board has the
powers 10 change the Manager I* deemec appropnate

MBIAIDAN

a:
2
®
5
2
3
[+]
®

SUBWHNELS Ie1dURU4

2INSO19SID (AW 1Y DU AIBSS019)

NOY 1O 23I10N

uoneulalul Iapoualeds



Principal and emerging risks
continued

8]
[as)

Market risk

Both share prices ang excnange rates may move rapicly and
can adversely mpact the value of the Company's portfolo
Although the portfolc s dversified across a number of
geographical regions, the mvestment mandate 1s focused
on a sing'e sector and therefore the portfclio wi'l be sensitve
towards the property sector, as wel as global equity markels
more generally

Property companies ae subject fo many factors wnich can
adversely a‘fect ther investmen: performance. They include
the general economig and financ.a' environment inwnich ther
*enants operale, INterest rates, ava lability of investrment ana
development finance and regulations issued by governments
and author tes

Risng imterest rates have an mpact o1 hoth capital va'ues
aind distithbutions of property companies Higher iiteest rates
depiess capial values s investors dgemand a margin over an
ncreased rsx-free rate of return

Aithough the U< has now exitec Tne Eurcpean Union, the
structure of its relationsh p with Contmental Europe continues
o evolve and there could be an impact on occupation across
each sector

Tne COVID-18 globa' pandemic nas changed the way we lve
anc WOrK @10 Uncertamty reimaimns regarding tne 'mpact on
econormues anc property marke's around 1he wor a Bt in tne
short ana longe-term

The nvasion of Ukra:ine by Russ &1 February 2022 o eated
‘urtner market volat! 1y and uncertainty wh'ch remains
Mflation ana nterest rates are at elevateq 'evels not seen N
over 10 years

Any strengthenng or weakeming of sterl ng wil have 2 direct
mpact as & proport.on of ourbagnce sheet s he'cin non-CBE
cenomenated currencies The cur-ency exposure s mants nes
1 me vat the benichmarx and w1 change over time As &2

31 Mach 2023 66 4-.of T!ne Company s exposure Lag to
currenmes otier ran stetlng

Tne Boarc receves and conside s aregu ar report fromithe
Manage® deta '\ng asset al ocation, Investment dec S1ons,
cUrrency exposures, geanng evels andrationa e inre'zlion
tothe preva " ng market condiz ons

The repor1 consicars the impact of g “ange of curent
issues and sets out the Manager's response i pasitioning
the portfoiic ana tne ongeng 'mprcations for ine property
market, vaiuations overa'l and by ean setor

TR Brozerty
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The Company is unable to maintain dividend growth

_ower earnings N the uncerlying portfolio putiing pressure
o1 the Company's abuity *o grow the d videnc could result
fram a numbe- o factors

- Although most companies negat.vely impacted by
COV D-12 returned to paying divicends duning the yea,
with many at pre-covid levels, rising nierest rates have
posed a new threat The effect on crvidencs nas (N
geners’) not been feit through the financial yerr that we
g e reporting on but the increased debt costs wili have an
impact on earnings anc hence distribut ons in future,

prolonged vacancies in the d rect property parifolio and
lease or rental renegonanions as a result of .onger-term
changes following COVIG-19,

sirengthenng of steri ng reducing the value of overseas
awicend rece pts nsterling terms The Company saw
amazter.alincrease in the level o earnings in the years
lead'ng up to the COVID-1G pancemic A significant factor
N th s was the weakening of sterling following the UK's
decsion o leave the EL ['Brexit’). Although this has now
passed, the value of sterling may continue to fluctuate in
the near o- medium term as the longer-term impications
of Brexit and COVID-18 znd the impact on the UK ana
Curopean economies hecome clearer The ‘nvasion of
Ukrame by Russia has also increased marxket uncertainty
The longer-zerm implcations will differ across the
Curopean economies. This couid -eac 1o currency volatiity
Strengthening of sterl ng would lead to & fzllin earnings;

adverse changes i the tax treatment of dividencs or other
income recelved by the Company,

changes nthe timing of divigend receipts from investee
companes;

legacy mpact o COVID-19 on waork 7 practices and
resuit ng cnanges in workspace demand, and

negative outlook leading ta a reduct.on in gearing 1evels in
order 1o protect capital has an adverse effect on earmings

Accounting and operational risks

D'sruption or fallure of systems and processes
underpimning the serv’ces provided by third parties and the
s« tnat these suppliers provice a sub- 2tanoard service

Annual Report & Accounts 2027

The Board receives and cons ders regular income
forecasts

ncome forecast sensitivity to changes i FX rates s also
montored

The Company has substantial revenue reserves whicn are
crawn upon when reguired,

The Board continuoes to mon tor the inpact ol cileiest
rates, Brexit and COVID-19 ana the :ong-term .mpi cat ons
for income generation

Third-party service prov ders produce periodic reports
to the Board on therr control environiments and business
continuation provisions on a regular basis

The Management Engagement Comrmitiee consicers tne

performance of each of the service prov'ders on  regula’

basis anc considers therr ongoing appomtment and erms
and condit’ons

The Custod an and Oepositary are responsible for the
safeguarcing of assets ‘nthe event of aloss of assets
tne Depositary must return assets of an identical type or
corresponding value unless it s abe to demonstrate that
tae loss was tne result of an event beyond ts "essonable
contral

(78]
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Principal and emerging risks
continued

Loss of Investment Trust Status

The Company has been accepled by HM Revenue &
Customs as an nvestment trust company, subject1o
contimding to meet the re‘evant eligibilty condituons

As such the Company s exempt from capta' gamnstax on
Thne profits rea’ sea from the sale of imvestimerits

Any breach of ine relevant ebgib.' ity conditions couia leao
to the Company Iosing investment trust status and being
subject ic corporation tax on capiia. ge ns rea’ sec within
ihe Company's portfonc

L egal, regulatory and reporting risks

Faiure (o comply with ine London Stock Exchange
Listing Rules and Gisciosure Gu gance and Transparency
Rues, falure 1o meet the requirements of the A'temative
Investment Fund Manzsgers Regulations, the prov.s ons
of the Companies Act 2006 and other J<. European and
overséas legislai.on affecting U compan:es

Falure to meet tne requ-es account.ng standarcs or
make approprigle disciosures i tne Half Year 2nc Annua
Reporis.

Inappropriate use of gearing

Gearng. enner thiough the use of hank debt or demvgtves,
may ke utihses “rom tume to tme Wnilst the use o
gearnig s ntenced to enhance tne NAY ‘otal ~eturn, it w
nave the opposite effect when the return of tne Company <
myvesiment portfono s negative or wnere tne cosl o debt
1S 1rgher thanthe meturn from the poritfe’ o

Other Financial risks

Tne Companv's Investment activit 25 expose 11!
o® fMzncal rsks winch aclude counterparty Cred
Qu dity risk 200 tme vz uation ot fngncal 1stum

[gNe]

Personnel changes at Investment Manager

Less of pofo o manzcer o7 otner «ev siaf*

The nvestment Manage” moniters the investmen: portfolio,
ncome and preposed aradend levels to ensure that the
provis ons of CTA 2010 are not breacnec The resurs are
reporteq 1o ine Boerd at each meeting

ncome forecasts re reviewed by the Company's tax
acv'sar through e yea™ who also reperts 1o ine Boarc on
the year-end tax positon g1d on CTA 2010 compi ance

The Board rece ves regUar regulatory updates from
the *Manager, Company Secretary, 'legal advisers and
‘ne Auditor Tne 3oaTa consigers those “eports ang
recommendat ong 216 takes action aszora ngly

The BOarG reCelves an annua' tepo~t and update from the
Depositary

rverna’ checknsis and review procedu-es are mplace at
service providers

Tt

he Soa-dreceves regula reports from the IManag
‘ne evels of geanng in the porifolie These are cons .
agamst the gee ng ! s set out in tne Board's Invesimerit
Gu cehnes anc aiso i the context of current market

cand hions anc sentiment The cost of debt .s monorec
ang a baance sought between te'm, cost and “lexibinty

Detz .2 Of “nese =<3 1ogetner with the polc es “¢-
maneag ng tnem are found 1 tne Notes to tne T.iancie’
Srarements

Tne Cng rman conducis reglar meenacs 1.t e Fund
Aanagement ieam

The “se basiz protecis the core nfrastructure ana depth
anc cuality 07 resources Tae fee structure Noenlivises
performance and s funcamentalinthe ab iny o rera

TR Froperty Ir, esTmert Tt



Long-term viability

In accordance with provision 31 of tne UK Corporate
Governance Code, whicnrequires the Company

t0 assess the prospects of the Company over

the langer term, the Directors ~ave assessed t7e
prospects of tne Company over the coming tirree
years This pernodis used by the Board during the
stiategic pla~ning process as it considers tnis
pefncd of time to be appropr.ate for a business of the
Companys rature and size

I'his assessment takes account of the Company’s
current positior and the policies and processes for
managrig the principal and emerging risks set out or
pages 37 to 40 and the Company’s ability to continue
i operation and to mest s liab ities as tney fa. due
over the per.od of assessmert

I mak-rg this statement tne Board carried out a
robust assessment of tne principal and emerging
rsksfacng the Company, including those tnat might
threater its busiress model, future performance,
solvercy and hguidity

Ir reacking their canclusions the D.rectors have
reviewed three year forecasts for the Company with
sensitivity analysis 1o a number of assumptiors:
Investee comrpany div.dend growth, interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, tax rates and asset value
growth

In assessing of the viability of the Company the
Directors have noted that:

+ The Corrpany nas a lorg-term investent
strategy Junder which it invests mamly ir read ly
realisable, publicly 1sted secarit.es and which
restricts tne level of borrowings

+ Ofthe current equity portfe'io, 50% could be
iquidated within five trading days and 71% withir
Ctrading days.

- Ona Group basis, cJrrent assets exceed current
labilities at the Balance Sheet Date

+ The Company ~vests i real estate related
comparies wnich ho.d rea. estate assets and
rvests rcommercal real estate directly These
rvestmerts prov de casniecepts nthe form of
dwvidends, property income distributions and renta’
InCome

Arnual Report & Azcounts 2023

+ Tne Company s abe totake advantage of its

closed-end investment trust company structure
to hold a proportior of its partfoio n less lguid,
diect property and the less ngud secunties of
smaler companies witn a view 16 lorg-term
outperformance,

Atthe Balance Sneet date the Compary nad
£123 milhor undrawn on its revaiving ioan
facilities

The structure has also enabred tne Company to
secure lorg-termy financing EUR S0 million wcan
notes ssued in 2016 are due to mature at par ir
2026 and GBP 15 miliion loan notes .ssued on the
same date are due to mature at par in 2037.

The resuit of this is that of our own debt, 32% has
fixed interest rates (assuming all loans are fuly
drawn). The flexible structure allows debt leve s to
be rapidly increased and reduced as needed

Tre impact of COVID-19 or the UK and European
commercial property markets contneed to
dimirish througn the year Thisiesulted in dividend
receipts from investee compantes in the currert
year significant'y stronger than the prior year as
the majonty of comparies have now returned to
paying dividends, although some at lcwer levels
than before the pandemic

- Theirvasion of Ukraine ir February 2022 has

created further market vo at/lity and uncertanty.
However the portfono rerrains hrgnly iguid

- The core part of the direct property portfolio is

defensively positioned, with 40% of the ‘ncome
secured to @ major supermarket for over 10 years
and benefits from fixed uplifts. The balance of the
portfoio 's focused or the industriai sector where
the supp'y and demand dynamics remair positive
from an occupationa: standpoint.

The expenses of the Company are largely
predictable and modest ncomparnson wih

the assets. Regular and robust monitorirg of
revenue and expenditure forecasts are undertaken
throughout the year Analysis has shown tnattne
Corrpary cou.d suffer a reductior in earnngs of
86% and stil' be able to meet its l'abilities from
revenue cashflow as they fell due. Expenses codld
be met ertirely from capita frequned due to the
liguidd rature of the partfola.
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Long-term viability
continued

[~dex 1ked ncome will bepefit from the increase
I~ interest rates

Global rierest rate increases have adversely
affected ire property secter and the resulting
increase rthe cost of debt w i ultimately have an
rpact o0 earn ngs

Some companies fixed debt for tre medium term
50, for these compar.es, the .mpact of curre-t
rates w I not be felt for a wtile

The Corrpany has no ermrployees and
corsequertly does not nave redunrdancy or otner
employrent related Labiites or respansib.lites

- The Company retains title to its assets held by the
Custodian winich are subyect to further safeguards
mposed o tne Depesitary

« Tre ~pact of a range of factors have been
considered mterms of the potenual effect on
sterl ng 66% of the portfol o is expasedto
currencies other trar stersng

The following assumptions have been made in
assessing the longer-term viability:

- Real Estate wil contirue to be an nvest.ble sector
of inter~ational stock Markets and investors w |
continue to wisk to Nave exposare 1o that sector

« Ciwosed-e~d imvestrent trust companes wi
cort ~eeto be i derard by vestors and
regulation ar tax eg stat:cr w. | not change to
ar exlertio make tre structore unattractve ir
cormpar sor to otrer vestent products

- The performrance cf e Compa-v wil cort-.e
10 be sat sfactory Soo d tne Board deer trat
perforarce g esstha- sat sfactory, tnastoe
appropnate powers 1o rep.ace tre investert
Ma~ager

The Company's business model, capital structure
and strategy have enabled it to operate over many
decades and the Board expects this t¢ continue into
the future. The Directors confirm therefore that they
have a reasonable expectation that the Company
will continue in operation and meet its liabilities in
full over the coming three years to 31 March 2026.

By order of the Board
David Watson
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Directors

David Watson

Appointed:
Apri, 2012

Experience:

David becane Chairman in July 202C,
priortewhick he served as the Board's
Seror Ircenendert Direcor (SI0"

and Chairran of the Audit Commrittee.
Dawa gpert Qyears as Finance Drecior
of W& Group ple. wherebe wasa
directar of four egaity nvestment
trasts, and more recently at Aviva

Dlcas Cheef F nance 0% icer of Aviva
Gereral Insurarze He was Chairnar of
Aegor Asset Managemrer: UK oz unt |
September 2022 Davidis a Chartered
Accountant ang has bad s distingu shex

3

careerin the irarc a' ssrvices rdustry

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Throaghouth sexecdr e career D oo
has accdruated reissant skls
FV&FCE, adcitanarisk f:':arageﬂ“em aroc
cxpererce r the iy esiment nausiry
Hzexperierceas SiZarcCrarora

&
rumrberof boaras rasecu it sigrificant

exper ence.r sharebs cet ana r.estor

engagcemer?

Other appointments:
Za.asodren se2 Dreiorcfthe

Prucerts fssurs

[

Kate Bolsover

Appointed:
Gctober 2079

Experience:

Kate previcus:y worked for Cazerove
Group and J P Morgan Cazenove
netweeen 1995 and 2C0% where she was
Wanaging Director of the mutual func
busaess anc atter'y drector of Corporate
Commur.cations Pror:othatl she workec
extersively Inthe rvestment ‘ura industry
anc was ianaging O rector of Barings
mutual Tunds grodp Katewas previous'y
anor-executive director oF JPNorgar
Amer car Investrent Trdst i Ser of
Indepenaert Cirector o Mortanarc L
Smaller Comeares Trast ard Chairman
and Trustes of Tomorrow's Feoos e

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Fromber execur. e exper erce Kate
conirizdtes sqr “rariaroreevantshk g
sfthe reestmert noustre Herrogor
varcusboarcs a sog ves berthere evars
exoerience ir shareho cer ars m.estor
engagement

Other appointments:
Kewe e carrervy Crarmar ofF oe s
Aciar Jaiges PLC eno Ser o Inzegeraer®

Tirecrorofinvesco BarcIircome 2 Us

Be e.usHea thoare rust

Tim Gillbanks

Lanuary 2018

Experience:

Timag g Chartered Accourtart, with

30 years' exper ence i the “irarcial

services and nvestrrent ndustry Most

recent'y he spen: 13 vears at Cclumoiz

Threadneedle Irvestments, ritia'ty

as Cle’ Finanoial Oficer ther Cheef
rerating Officer and firal y as irter +

Chief Execui've Of cer

Skills and contribution to the Board:

s deexpererce partcaearnry

L CES Enoarvestren:
Taragerer: Hepreviods finarcia
Expenence durrghus execu:

ricrms b resroeas the:

the ~ud 1 Comrities

Other appointments:

T s carrert y e Nor-Executve Srector
o Browr Shoey& Tolomries Lanus
Hercerson JK-Irvestors Lirtad aro
sards Hengersor GroupHole rgs L ten

He sasc 'y zelbarof he Bearc of

eez oFRICOT Cancer JK
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Sarah-Jape Curtis

Appointed:
Lanuary 220

Experience:

Sarak-Jane is a Member of the Royal
Institutor of Charterec Surveyors She
was previcJsly Business Drector at
Bicester ¥ llage for Vaide Retail Priar
tothat, Sarah-Jane was a director of
Covent Garden for Cagital and Counties
PLC. She has also worked “ar Grosvenor
for 24 years, including as tondon Estate
cirector fretal/residential) and Fund
Marager for LiverpoolONE

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Sarab-.ane has gained extersive
experence dur.ng her vaned

career particuiarly .n the retall and
experience sactors and in fund and
investment managemen: activities

Other appointments:

Sarah-Jane s current.y Praperty
Jirector of Bicester Maotior ag wel as a
consultant to Value Retar PLC,

annual Repor: & Acoounts 2023

Andrew Vaughan

|

Appointed:
August 2022

Experience:

Andrev woinec Repeveo UK IN 200G as
Managmg 2irector and was appointed CECQ
Nn20"1 He neganhus career at Friends
Provident where he was a fund manager.
Andrew spent three years a* Moorfield Group
as an Invesiment Specialist before joinng
Redgevco. He has a BScin Urban Estate
Surveyving

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Ardrew brings deen exgerence as a pan
Egropear direct property Investor

Other appointments:
Ardrevw s Chief Execuive Office of
Redevcc B Y

Busola Sodeinde

L.

Appointed:
January 2023

Experience:

Busoeis a Charterea Management
Accountant who has spert most of her
executive career -nFinancia Services Jnti
2019 she was a Marraging Director/Chief
Firancial Officer at State Street Global
Markets EMEA, prior to which she was
Finance Director tc the Corporate Firance
tearm of Sedtsche Bank Capita' Markets
Busolais the founger of a digital publishing
firm focused on literacy and 1s also a
supporer of wornen-ed ventures

Skills and contribution to the Board:

Busolahas consideratie experience ir

the finzncia. services sector and from her
non-executive career has gained expertise
inauditand nsk She also has experience
' digital {social mediz and consumer
engagement

Cther appointments:

Busola sanon-executive director of
Hargreave Hale AIM VCT PLC, "he
Ombudsman Services, a trustee of the
Church Commissioners for Enaiand, where
she sits cnthe Audit & Risk Committes, ann

€

a Trustee of The Boouts Assooiation
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Managers

Marcus Phayre-Mudge

Marces Phayre-Mudge joined the manageme~tteam
for tne Cor-pary at Henderson G obal Investars .»
LAantary 1897 nita ly maragng tre Company's direct
property portfo 1o and atterly focus ' ng on rea! estate
€qu tes, Managirg a rumber of UK and par-Eurcpean
real estate equity funds .r addtion te act'vit'esin tre
Trust Marcus moved 1o Thames Rver Capital in October
2004 wrere reis also furd manager of Thrames River
Property Growth & Income Fund Limmited Priortc joning
Hendersor. Marcus was ar nvestment surveyor at
Knig-t Frank {199CY and was made ar Associate Partrer
i tre furd maragemiert division (1995) He gua ified as
a Chartered Surveyor 1 1992 ard has a BSc (Hons) 7
Lard Management from Reading Uriversity

-.-,

George Gay ~as been t~e D rect Property Fo~d Manager
since 2008 Hejored Tnames R ver Capta’ 72005 as
ass stant direct property ™arager and gua ‘ed as a
Crartered Surveyor 2000 Ge0rge «was presoLs vat
~icre Oty ~eest™iertagent Morgan Pepper v rere as
am .rvestrertagradaate ~e ganed cors derad e ndustry
exper ence Herasas LAl Property Va _at »and Lan

o Cony e Lere ty

George Gay

Jo Elliott

Jo Eliott has beer Finance Marager sirce 1995 first at
Herderson Giobal Irvestors ther, since waruary 2005,
at Thames River Capita. wher she joned as CFC forthe
property team Shejcired Hendersor Glohal Investors
r 1995, where she most recertiy neld the position of
Drector of Property, Firarce & Operations, Europe.
Freviously ste was Corporate Finance Manager with
London ard Edirburgn Trust ple and pror to that was
ar irvestment/treasury ana yst with Heron Corporat on
pic w0 1as aBSc (Honsh e Zogiogy from the Urvers ty
of Nottrga~ ard qua Fied as a2 Chartered Accountant
wtn Errst & Youngn 7988

Alban Lhenneur

A& bar Lrorrewr Depaty Fu-d Marager jo ~ed Tha~es
River Capta o~ Asgust 2008 Hewas prevousy at
Crgrowp Scoba Markets as a- Fau ty Research anayst
focus ngo- Cortrerta Earopean Rea Estate Prorto
trat ~e wasat Soc ote Serera e Secur tes wnere e
focused o~ tarsport ege ty regsearcn He ~as a BSc

=~ Bosimess and Manageert from ire ESC Tow ouse
~Coodrgoreyearat Brure U versty Lendor

He a soattended CERAN N ce H g Bus ness 30706

I~ 2005 ~e obta red a post-grad_ate Tpeca sed Vaster

Cohofrom ESCR-EAF

~fegece o 7
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Report of the Directors

The D rectors present the audited fimancia. statements

of the Group and the Company and the:r Strategic Report
and Report of Drectors for the year ended 21 March

2023 1re Group comprises TR Property Investrrent Trust
plcand its wholly owned subs:diaries. As permitted by
legislat:on, some matters rermally ‘ncluded in tre Report
of the Directors have beer ircluded in the Strategic Report
because the Board corsiders them to be of strategic
importance Therefore, the review of the business of the
Company recent events ard odtlock can be found o
pages 4t0 42

Status

The Company s ar nvestmert cormpany. as defined in
Sector 833 of the Coirparies Act 2006 ard operates as
aninvestment trust in accordance with Section 1158 of
the Corporation Tax Act 2010,

The Company 1as a single share class, Ordinary shares,
with a nominal value of 25p each whicn are premium
sted on tne London Stock Exchange

The Company nas receved cenfirmation from HM
Revenuae & Customs that it nas beer accepted as an
approved investment trust for accounting periods
commencing on or after 1 Aprii 2012 subject to the
Company continuirg to meet the eligibility conditiors of
Section 1158 Corperation Tax Act 2010 and the ongoing
requirements for approved companies in Chapter 3 of
Part 2 tavestment Trust {Approved Company) (Tax)
Regulat ons 2071 {Statutory Instrument 2011/2999)

The Directors are of the op'nion that the Company has
conducted and wiil continue to conduct its affairs so as
to mairtain irvestment trust status The Comrpany has
aiso corducted its affairs, and will cort rue to conduct
its affairs, 'n such a way as to comply with the I~div dual
Savings Accounts Regulations The Ordinary shares can
be held in Individual Savings Accounts {1SAS)

Resuits and dividends
A1 37 Marcnh 2023 the net assets of the Comrpany

amountedto £988 million {2022 £1,563 milion}, or a per

share basis 305.13p (2022 492.43p) per share.

Revenue earrings per share for the year amourted 1o
17.22p (2022 13 69p) and the Directors recommend the
payment of a final dividend of 9.85p (2022 G 2Cp) per
share bringing the tota” dividerd for the year to 15.50p
(2022 14 50p) tn arrving at their dividend proposa’, 11e
Board alsa reviewed the ircome forecast for the year 10

March 2024

Annuzl Report & Accounts 20232

Performance details are set ot in the Finarc al Fighlights

or page 7 and the outcome of what the Directors consider

to be the Key Performance Irdicators on pages 35 and 36.
The Chairman's Staterment and the Manager's Report give full
detals and analysis of the results for the year

Share capital and buy-back activity
At 31 March 2023 the Company had 317,350.980 (2022
317,350,98C) Ordinary snares .n "ssue.

At the AGM in 2027 the Directors were given power to buy
back up to 47,570,911 Ordirary shares. Since that AGM the
Directars have not bought back any Ordinary shares under
that authority, wnich wi'l expire at the 2023 AGM The Board
will seek to renew the aLthornty to make market purchases
of the Company’s Ordirary srares at this ycars AGM

Since 1 April 2023 to the date of this report, the Company
has made no market parcnases for cancellation The
Board has not set a specific discount at whi.ch shares
will be repurchased.

Management arrangements and fees

Detai s of the managemert arrangemerts and fees are

set out i the Report of the Management Engagerrent
Cormmmittee begnring on page 58. Total fees paid to the
Manager \n any one year (Management and Performance
Fees) may not exceed 4.99% of Group Equity Shareha:ders’
Funds Total fees payabie for the year to 31 March 2323
amount 1 0.6% (2022 2 0%) of Group Equity Shareholders’
Funds No performance fee was earned in the year ended
31 Maren 2023 (2022: £24,489,000)

Basis of accounting and {FRS

The Group and Company financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2023 have been prepared on a
going cancern basis Ir accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards and i conformity with
the requirement of the Companies Act 2006 The financial
statements have aiso been prepared in accordance with
the Staterent of Recommended Practice Tinarcial
Statements of Investment Trust Companies and Venture
Capitai Trusts (SORP) o the extent that it is cansistent
with UK-adopted Internationa accodnting standards

The accounting policies are set oLt m ncte 1 to the
Francial Statements on pages 806 to 83
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Report of the Directors
continued

Financial instruments

The Compary's F narcial Instrumerts comrprse s
irvestment portfcho. cash balances, borrowings

and debtors and crediters that arise directty from its
operations sucl as sales and purchases awating
settlement, proiit or loss balarces on derivative
nstroments and accrued neome ard expenses The
financial risk management objectives and polic es anising
from its financia nstraments and exposure of the
Company torisk are d sclosed nnote 11 tothe flnarca.
staterments

Risk management and internal control

The Board has overall responsb ity for the Groop's
system of risk Maragemert and irterral control and

for reviewing ts effectveness Tne Pertfolio Manager is
respons.ble for the day to day irvestment maragement
dec s10ms 61 benalf of the Group Accodrtung a~d
Company Secretanal seiv.ces have both beer outsodrced

The systern of rsk management and interral contro. arrs

to ensure that the assets of the Growp are safeguarded,
proper accoutirg records are mamtamed, and the
firancia nforratior used with 1 the busiress and for
pobticat o 'srehable Cortro of the r sksidentified,
coverirg finarcial operaticra compi.ance andr sk
marage™mert 1s eénrbedded in the cortro s of the Group
by a seres of regular irvestmert pelformarce ard
attributior statements firancal and risk analyses, AlFM
and Portfolic Manager reports and guarterly contro
reports

Key r'sks nave been :dentfied and contro!s pot ir

place to mitigate tnen~ ~oLdirg those rot directy ine

respons:biity of tre A1FN or Portfo 10 Marager The key
r sks are exp aned in Tore detail . the Strateg.c Report

o pages 371040

Tre effect veress of each trd-party provders irterra
coTiro & s assessed o anango ~g bass by ite
Co~p:sarce a~dR sk departents of tre AIFM 37d
Portfci.o Manager tre Ad~ ~ strator and t~e Compa-y
Secretary Eacr martans tsows syster of rsk
~aragemertatd ~terra cortro ardthe Board and
Avdt Com~ ttee recerve reg. arreports fro tne
Trer sk "‘“amagﬂmmM and \~ter~a cortros systerm

s desigredto prov de reasonabe bot rot abse Lte
assarance aga st ~atera o sgtatemertorloss ard o
marage ratrerthge e v ~ate rskcffa wretcaceve
o;ﬁﬁt €S Astre Compaty mas to e poveess and 18

cperztora furttoog are L-dertaken by i rd part e

I
(48]

the ALd't Commrittee does rot corsider it recessary for
tre Compary to establisn ts owr interna addit furction
Instead, the Audit Committee reqies or internal cortro
reports rece ved frem its princ pal serv ce providers 1o
sat sfy tself as to the controls im pace

Tne Board Ias established a process for identifying,
evaluatng ard marag 1g ary major r:sks faced by tne
Group It undertakes ar anncal review of the Group's
system of r sk maragemert and internal contro’ im ime
with re evartgudarce Busimess risks have aiso been
analysed by the Beard and recorded in a risk map that
Is reviewed requ ary Each quarter the Board receives a
forral report from each of the AIFM, Portfol o Manager,
the Adrunistrator and the Com™pary Secretary deta ing
any -dentfied rternal contrel tallures or errors

The Board alse corsiders the fow of irformator and
the interact o~ between the third-party service prov.ders
and the controls ~ place to ensure accuracy ard
comp'eteress of the recordirg of assets and income.
Tre Board receives a report from the Portfe 1o Manager
setting out t~e key comtrols  operatior

The Board a so bas d rect access to Company Secretarial
advice and servces provided by Columb:a Threadneed'e
investment Bosiness Liv ted whick trrongh its
roriiated representative. s regponsib e for ensuring
that the Board ard Camrmittes procedures are fo owed
ardthat spp cable regulabions are corplied wir

Trese cortrols Fave been rplace througnolt the year
ander review and up to the date of sigrrg1ve accouts

Key r.sks dentfied by the ALd tor are considered by t-e
ALd it Comrmitiee tg ersure robust teraa contress ard
mor tor ng procedures are  p aceir respect of tnese
rsksorarorgorghbass

Annual General Meeting (the 'AGM’)

Tre Compary's AGM w v be e dat the Rovar Actoch e
CiLp, 85761 Pa Ma: Lordon SWIY SHS o Trareday
2000y 2023at 2 ”"'p“* Tne Not ce of AGM s set oot on
pages 11310 114 arg exp aratery ~otes foiow 6 pages
115 32d 116

Material interests

Trere were ~o cortracts subs st ngder igor attre end
cftne year ~whrcna Drecteref tre Company s or was
CTalend iy r:erested ard »mCn S orwas sigr ficart o
re st ontotre Corpanys bos mess No Drector bas a
contract of service wirtme Corpany Fortrer deta s
regarg g e D rectors apne “tent etters can be
fecomgor page &7

TR PropervIn estmren: irdst




Listing Rule 9.8 4R

The Compary confinrs that there are no items which
requTe d sclosure urder L sting Ruie @ 8 4R r respect of
the year ended 31 March 2023

Voting interests

Rights and Obligations Attaching to Shares

Subject tc applicab e statutes and other shareholders’
nghts, stares may be -ssued with such rights and
restncfinns as e Cerrmpary may by ord nary resolution
decide or (if there s 1o such resolution or so far as 1t does
not make spec fic provis'on) as the Board may decide
Subject 1o tne Articles of Association (tne ‘Articles’), the
Companes Act 2006 and other sharehoders'rights,
un-ssued shares are at the disposal of the Board

Voting

At a general meeting of the Company. when voting

s undertaken by way of a poil, each share affords its
owrer ong vote.

Restrictions on Voting

Ne member shali be entitled to vote f he nas been served
with a restricton notice {as defined in the Articles) after
failure to provide the Cormpany with inforation concern:ng
Interests in those shares required to be provided under the
Comparies Act 2006

Deadlines for Voting Rights

‘Votes are exercisable at a general meet'ng of the
Campany in respect of which the business be ng voted
Jpon 15 being neard. votes may be exercised ir person. by
proxy. or in relatior to corporate members, by corporate
representatives.

Tre Articles prowide a dead ine for submmission of proxy
forres of rot less than 48 nours (or suchk shorter ime as the
Board may determing) before the meeting (not excluding
non-workirg days)

Transfer of Shares

Any shares ntae Company may be held in uncert/icated
form and, subject to the Articies, t tle to uncertificated shares
may be transferred by mreans of & relevant systens Subject
tothe Articles, any member may trarsfer alior any of his
certi‘icated shares by ar instrurrent of transferinary usJa:
form or in any ather form which the Board may approve

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Significant Voting Rights

As at 31 March 2023, the follow ng sharehclders had notified
that they held over 3% of the votirg rights in the Carpary on
anon-discretionary basis

Shareholder
Brewin Delphin Ltd 11.0%
Interactive Investor Share Dealing Services 8.4%
Rathbone Investment Management Lid 49%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management Ltd 5.5%
Quitter Cheviot Investment Management Ltd 37%
Investec Wealth & Investment Ltd 3.6%
Charles Stanley Group ple 32%
Smith & Williamson investment Managers 3.0%

* See ahove for ‘Utther information on the voting ngnts of Ordinary shares

Since 31 March 2023 the Companry has been informed that
Integrafin Holdings plc hold 4 0% of the voting nghts in the
Company

Articles of Association

The Company's Art'cles of Association may oniy be
amended by a speciai resciution at a General Meeting of
the shareholders. They were amended at the 2021 AGM
and are avallable to view on the Company’'s websgite

Corporate Governance

Full details are given in tne Corporate Governance Report
on pages 4910 55, The Corporate Governarce Report
forms part of this Drectors’ Report
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Corporate Governance report

The Board of Directors s accourtable to shareho ders for
the goverrance of tre Corrpary's affairs 11's staterienrt
describes how tne principles of the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code (the 'Code | issued by the Financ.al
Reporting Courcll (the FRC' n 2018 have beer appled
totre affairs of the Company Tre Code can be v ewed at
www e org.Lk

Application of the AIC Code’s Principles

In apply:ng tre prnciples of the Code the Directors

have a s0 taken account of the 2019 Code of Corparate
Governance pJb isned by tre AIC (the AIC Code ) of wnich
the Compary s a member The AIC Code establisnes the
framework of best practice specifical'y for the Boards of
rvestment trust comparies Furthermaore, the AIC Code
has full endorsement of the FRC, wnich means trat AIC
members whio report agairst the AIC Code meet therr

ob igations Jrder the Code ard the related disc osure
requrements cortaned inthe Listng Ruies Tne AIC Code
can be viewed at www theaic.co uk

The Directors bel'eve that duning the year urder review 11e
Corrpary was comphed with the man prirc.p'es and re.evart
provisions of the Code, nsofar as they apply to the Company's
business, and w tit-e provis ans of the AIC Code

Compliance Statement

The Directors rote tiat the Comipary did 1ot corrply wite
the folow rg provs oms of the Code i e vear ended 37
March 2023

Prov sion @ Duetothe nature and strucivre of the
Company the Board of ror-execctive directors does et
feel 1is appropriate to appeint a chief executve

Prav.siorn 19 The Crairman has served ont-e Board for
~oretrant rine years I accordance witn the AIC Code,
e Board ncrethe ess cons'aers that he s rdependert
He wifsta~d down at the fortaco™ing AGM

Frovs.or 24 Tre Board beievesthat a: Directors rodrg
treChar—an s~c. dstor a’ of the Beards Corittess

Provson 26 Astae Company "as ~o ermp cyees a7id 1s
cperaticra fonctors are urdertaken by tord part es tre
Aud 1t Com~ttee does ~ot cors:der 1appropr ate for te
Comparytoestab s tsows ~terma acdtforctior Tre
Srpary s sery ce prey ders prosde assaratce of tre
effect ve syster cf r sk ma~agerertard ~termal a~ g
CoNtro .
Prov s or 32 Tre Board does ot ~ave a separate
Ferorerator Com tiee Treforctore of 3
Re~_rerat o~ Lo~ ttegare carred oot by e
Parage et Ergageert Lo~ ttee

[

Composition and Independence of the Board

Tne Board current'y corsists of six Girectors al of
whom are ron-executive The Board's independence,
mc ud ng that of ine Chairman, has heen corsiderad
and all of tre D rectors are deemed to be
rdeperdent i cnaracter and have no relat.onskips
or cocumstances wihier are nkely to affect their
judgemert

The Board subscribes to the view expressed 1 tie

AIC Codethat ong-serving Directors shou.d not be
prevented from forming part of an irdependert majonty
It does not coms'der that the ength of @ Director's tenure,
rasolaton redoces ther ability 10 act ndependently
Tme Boards pol cv or tenure s that cont ruity ard
exper.ence add significant y 1o the strength of the Board,
a thoLgh it bel eves in tne merits of an ongoing and
progress ve refreshment of ts cormposition

Diversity

The Board recogrses the benefit of diversity and

as at the date of this report 't comprises three men
and twee wernen Doversity 1s taken irto account as
part of tne recraitment, appointment and succession
planning process Tne Board s comrutted to

appo rtgtremost appropriate candidate, regard ess
of gender o1 other forms of d versity and thereiore ro
targets have heer set aganst wh'ch to repert

Ir accorda~ce with L stirg Ru e 9 8.6R (91, (10)
and [11) the Board nas prov ded the fo lowing
~format o~ imreiation 1o its d vers'ty

Board Gender as at 31 March 2023

Number

of senior

Number Percentage positions

of Board of the on the

members Board Board

Men 3 50% 2@
Waormen 3 50%® 14

The Coripany does not discose the number of Drectors
nexecl ve managemern: as s s N app -cab e for an
NYesSTMIeNT IrusT Ccompany

Thehree senor pos * ons are Charman of the Board, Senor
independen: Drecior and Charman of the Aud L Corim ee
Note thepos:oncf the Charmian of the Aud T Comim tee
snotcurrers y defined as a sen o pos < o under The 50 Ny
Rues, however the Board be eves thar, for an nvesirmen: rus:
company, T stou dhe egardedas suchas - stroad v equ va e
0 heChef “nanca O¥icer of a rad ng company

Ths reeis el o1 ig Rues wargel of 407

Thsimeesne s ngFLes arge of

TR PropertyIriestmert Trust



Board Ethnic Background as at 31 March 2023 ™

Number
of senior
Number Percentage positions
of Board of the on the
members Board Board
White British
or other White
{including minanty-
white groups} 5 83% 3@
Mixed/Multiple
Ethnic Croups 1 17% -

The Company does not disclose the number of Directors
Inexeeuive Mmanagement as this i not applcabie for an
mvesuTient irust company

- Thethree senior pos.tions are Cha'rman of the Board, Senior
Independent [ rector and Chairman ot the Auch: Corratee
Note the posit.on of the Chairman of the Audi Commitee
isnotourren: v defined as a senior position under the L stng
Rules, however the Board beieves tha: for aninvestimen: trust
coripany, it shoud be regarded as such as U5 broad v equivalent
tothe Chief F nancia: Officer of a trading comipany

The information nc.uded in the above tables bas
beer obta' ned through guestionnaires cor-pieted by
tme indiv:dual Drectors.

Powers of the Directors

Subject to the Company's Artcles of Association,
the Companies Act 2006 and any direct.iors given
by special resolution the business of the Campany
Is managed by the Board who may exercise als the
powers of the Company, whetrer relating to the
management of the business of the Company o not.
In particular, the Board may exercise all the powers of
the Canpany to borrow money and to mortgage or
charge ary of its undertakings, property, assets and
urcalled capta ardto issue debentares and other
securities and to give secur 'ty for ary debt, uabilty or
ohligation of the Company to ary thad party.

Board meetings

There are no contracts or arrargemerts w th turd
parties whick affect, aiter or terminate upor a
charge of contre! of the Company

Directors

Siror Marrsor retired from the Board at the
conclus on of the 2022 AGM. Andrew Vaughan
was appomted a Director on 1 August 2022 and
Busola Sodeinde joned t~2 Board on 24 January
2023 The Directors’ biograpnies are set out

or pages A4 and A5 All Directors will stand far
re-e ection by sharetolders at the forthcoming
AGM 1naccordance with tne Code, with the exceptior
of David Watson, wno will retire from the Board at
the corciasion of the meet'ng Kate Bolsover wi
succeed mim as Chairman and Tim G'ilbanks will
become Senior Independent Director

Board committees

The Beard has established an ALdit Committee,

a Nominaticn Committee and a Management
Engagement Commuttee, wiich also carries out
tne functions of a Remuneration Committee. Al
the Direclors of the Company are non-execdtive
and serve on each Comm ttee of the Board it has
been the Company's policy 1o include all Directors
cn all Committees. This encourages unity, clear
communication and avaids duplcation of discussion
betweer the Board and the Committees

Tne roies and responsibil ties of each Committee
are set out 0 the individua, Committee reports
which follow. Each Committee has written terms
of reference which ciearly define its responsibilities
and dutes. These car be found on the Company’s
website, are available on request and will a so be
available for inspection at the AGM,

The number of meet ngs of the Beard and Committees held durirg the year under review. and the attendance of

mdividual Directors, are shown below:
Board

Attended Eligible

David Watson
Tim Giltbanks
Simon Marrison:
Kate Bolsover
Sarah-Jane Curtis
Andrew Vaughan

N A N O
N B OO NGO

Busola Sodeinde
Retired fromihe Board oni 76 Ju y 2022
Appainted to the Boad on T August 7077
Appainted to the Board on 24 January 2023

Audit MEC

Attended

D = NN - NN

Nomination

Attended Eligible Attended

Eligible

2
2
1
2
2
1
0

e T T = T Ry
e e = I Y
_ O ok O = -

In additionr: to formal Board and Committee meetings, the Directors a'so atterd arumber of ad hoc meetirgs whicn

are corvened as and when necessary
Annual Report & Accodnts 2023
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Corporate Governance report
continued

The Board

The Board 15 respons ble for the effective stewardship
of tne Comparys affars. Certan strategicissues

are montored by the Board at meetngs aganst a
framework which has been agreed with the Marager
Additiona meetings ray be arranged as reguired The
Board has a farmal schedu'e of matters spec fical'y
reserved for its decision, which are categorised ande)
various readirgs, ircluding strategy, maragement,
structure, capita | flrancial reporting, interral contrans,
gearing, asset aliocation, share price d'scourt, contracts,
nvestment policy, finance, r.sk nyvestment restncl ons,
perforrance, corporate governarce ard Board
membership and appointments.

ir. order to enabie them to disciarge their resporsibiin es,
al Drectors ~ave full ard timely access to relevant
nforration Ateach meeti~g, the Board reviews tne
Company's investment performanice ard cons.ders
firancia anaiyses and other reports of an operationa’
natLre Toe Board moritars complarce witn the
Company's objectves and s responsible for setting asset
alocation ard imvestmert ard geanng  m™is with twrich
the Portfo, o Marager bas d screton to actardtmus
supervises the management of the imvestment portfolic,
wnich s contractuai y delegated to the Portfolic Manager

The Beard nas respoms bty for the approva' of
rvestmertsir Laquoted mvestmerts ard any
nvestr-erts nfunds maraged or advised by the
Portfoic Manager. It nas a so adopted a procedure
far Directors, .~ the furtrerarce of thoir dot es, 1o 1ake
ndependent professional advice at the expense of tne
Cor-pany

Conflicts of interest

[rlire with tne Conpar .es Act 2006, the Board bas the
power 1o awtner se avy potental corficts of erest
t~at may anse and mpose sk art ts orcord tors

as ttnrksfit Areg ster of potertal corficts s
raintared ard s reviewved at every Board meet g

to ensure a. detais are kept Lpto-aate Appropr ate
aut™or sat or wal be sougrt prortcite appo riment of
anv ~ew Directar o f a~y ~ew comficts arse

Relations with shareholders
Srareroderreatcnsare g ver Tigr prorty by e
Board te ATFM and the Portfo © Marager Trepr e
med L by winen tre Covpary cormr L cates vt
srarerc ders strreogrtre Haf Yeara  d A e
Reports wo cramite prey de srarero ders vi i~ a cear
oderstamd rgoftre Lompatysact L tesandirer
res.ts Tms ~fgrmator ssoppemettedbytredary
cacuwator aftre Net Asset Va uecftre Comparys
Ord nary snares «wor cn s pub shedar thel ordon
Stock Exchange

n
)

Tis inforrat or s aiso aval ab e on the Company's
website www trproperty cor, together with a
rontnty factsneet and Manager comrertary

Tre Arruaal Report and Accounts and Notice of the
AGM are issued to shareno ders sc as to provde at least
twenty workirg days rot ce of the AGM, n accordarce
wih colporate governance best pract.ce Shareho ders
wishing 1o lodge questors inadvance of the AGM . or 10
contact tre Board at any otner tme, are nvited to do so
by wr tirg tot~e Corpany Secretary at the reg stered
address givenon page 118

General presertatiors are given to both shareho'ders
ard anaysts fo lowing tne publcatior of the annual
resuls Al meetings between the Manager arad
sharenolders are reported to the Board

Section 172 Companies Act 2006

Sect o1 172 of the Compan es Act 2006 requires

d rectors to act in good fa th and in a way tnat 1s the
most hkely to promote the success of the Company
In accordance win tne requirements of the
Comrpanies (M scel'areocls Reportirg Regu aticns
2018 below the Company explaing bow tne
Directors nave d scharged their doty Lnder section
172 dunrg e year Fulfifing th s duty naturally
sL.pperts the Company ir ach eving ts Irvestrrent
Objective ard he psig ensaretnat @ decisiors are
Tade marespotsbeard sastatable way

Or appoirtnient Directors’ are prov ded win a
detared nduct or outlr agtnerdutes iegal y
a~dreguiatcry, as a Drector of a UK pub ¢ 1m ted
compary atd cortirie to recewe rege ar rerevant
tecrr:cat updates andtraiming The Directors a so
~ave access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary a~d. wnen deeried recessary,
they Fave 17e opportl.r ty 1C seek ~deperdert
profess ora adv.ce ~trefurtherance of trerdotes
asa Drecter attre Comparys experse

Decision making

Tre ~porta~ce of stakero-der cons-derat o-s
~part cuiar mtrecortext of dec sc-rakng e
reguo ary troughtic tre Beard s attetior by tre
Compary Secretary a~d taker tc accourt at every
Board weetrg Tre Board coms ders tre ~pact
trata v Talera decsior w i ravenma reevant
ctakenoderstoersuretratt s ~akrgadecscr
tratpro~cles t~e crg-ter~ success of tre Compary
woetreritshe forexarpe ~reatortod « derds
cew mvestertopportes tes ortne Corpaty s
future strategy (r add t or tre Bcard togetrer v 1
tre Manager ncds a meeting focosed or strateygy
oraratn. 3 basstc ook aread ~irerarket and
art.o pate potertal sceraros and row th s ay
~pact the Corrpary's stakemniders

TR SrenertyIncosrrert Trus



Stakeholdersg

Tre Board recognises the needs and :mportance of

the Company's stakercolders and ensures that they are
considered durning all its discussions and as part of 11s
decision-making Snce the Company 1$ an investment
trust company that is external'y managed, the Comrpany
does not have ary employees {the Directors have a

Company). nor does it lave a direct impact or the
commdJdinty or environmert n the conventional sense
Tne Board recognises 18 key stakenolders and exp.ans
below why these stakenclders are considered important
to the Company ard the actions taken to ensure that
their interests are taker rto account.

Letter of Appoimtment and are not employees of the

Stakeholder Group and why

they are important

Board engagement

Shareholders

Shareholder support is
essential o the existence
of the Company and
delivery of the ong-term
strategy of the business.

The Manager

Hoid ng the Company's
shares offers investors a
llgu.c investiment vehicle
through whicn tney can
obiain exposure to the
Company's diversified
portfo o The investment
Manage-'s performance 1s
critica for the Company
to suzcess‘ully delver its
vestment strategy and
meet s objective

Arnual Renon & Accodmis 2022

Tre Company has over 3,000 sharehowders, including institutional anc retall investors

Tne Board is commutted to mainiaining open channels of communication and to engage with
shareholders in a manner they find most mezaningful in orce” 1o gam an uncers:anding of
therr views These inciuce the channels below

+ Annual General Meeting — the Company welcomes and encourages attendance and
partcipation from sharenolders at its AGM The Manager gives a presentation at the
AGM on the Company's performance and the future outlook Shareholders nave 1ne
opportunity 1o meet tne Directors and Manager and to address questions to them directly
The Campany values any feedback and auestions 17 receives from shareholcers anead of
and during the AGM and takes aoTion or maxes changes if and when appropriate

- Publications — the annual and nalf year reports are made avallable on the website and
sent to shareholcers. These publications provice information on the Company and 11s
portfoio of investments anc a better understanding of the Company's fnancial position,
This s supplemented by daily publication of the NAV on the London S10ck Exchange and
monthly factsheets on the Company's website. The Company is apen 1o feedback rom
shareholders to mprove 1s publications.

- Shareholder meetings - the Manager meezs with shareholders periodicatly and often and
feedhback 's sharec w th the Board

- Working with the Brokers — the Manager and Brokers work together 1o maita n dialogue
with snarehoiders and prospective investors at scheduied meetings. ~he Board is provided
with reguar updates at meetings and outside meetings if required

- Shareholder concerns - In tne event that snareholders wish to raise issues ar concerns
with the Board, *hey are welcome to do so at any time by writing 16 the Chairman at the
recistered office. The Senior Incependent Director s also avalabe to shareho!ders if they
have concerns that contact through the norma channel of the Chairman has falled 1o
resolve or for wnich such contact 's inappropriate

Mz ntaining a ciose and constructive working relationship with the Manage- is crucial, as the
Board and the Manager both aim to cont.nue to achieve consistent, lang-term returns in l:ne
with 1ne Company's investment ohjective 'mporiant components in the coliaboration with
the Manager, represenzat've of the Company's culture incluge those listed below

- Encouraging open, honest and collzborative discussions at ali evels, gl'owing T me and
space for onginal and mnovative thinking.

- Ensuring that the 'mpac: on the Manager 1s fully consicerec and uncerstood hefcre any
business cecison is mace

- Ensuring that any potental conlicts of interest are avorded or managen effectively

The Boarc holds detabec discussions with the Manager on all key strategic and operationa’
topIos on an ongo ng basis In addition, the Chainman regularly meets with the Manager to
ensure a close d alogue 's mamiamnec

o
Ly

MIIAIBAN

uodai mbaens

by
S
o
3
a
=3
w0
@
&
o
[l
El
@
=
=
w

INS0|95IR MW 41Y pue Liesso|n

INOY 1O 3a110N

UoneWLIOII JI2DI0UaIBUS



Corporate Governance report

continued

Stakeholder Group and why

they are important

Board engagement

External Service Providers, particularly the Company Secretary, the Administrator, the Registrar and the Depository and

the Broker

A range of adv sers
enab'es the Company

o function and ensure
that it meets its relevan:
oblgations as an
investment trust company
and a constituent of tne
FTSE 250

The Board maintains regu-ar contact w i1 175 <oy extérnal providers anc receves regula
~eportng “rom inem rough Board ana committee mieet 15, s we . 35 cuts de of the
reqular meeting cycle Tnepr adv ce as well as therr neecs and v.ews, are -ouimery Taken 1to
account The Management Engagerment Committee forma ly assesses their performance,
fees and contiNUIng appointment at 'east annua.y 1o ensure that 112 key serv ce prov ders
continue to function at an acceptable level and are appropriately remunerated to ceiver

1ne expected leve of service. The Audit Committee reviews and evaluzies the control

env ronments .0 place et ecch servce provider as eppropate.

Lenders

Avallabrity oF ‘unang anc
iquidiny are crucal 10 the
Company's ability 10 take
acvantage of nvestmern:
opporturites as they arse

Regulators

The Comipany can chny
oper:ﬂe Wi the approva
ofits regu.ators who have
a legitimate interest 1 hows
the Company operatés 1
the marke: anc treats ts
sha-ehoiders

governance dec sions
anc in the longer term

Investee Companies

Partfelio companies are
ultimazely shareho cers
assets and the Boarc arrancgeme’
recognises the mporiance
of cood stewwarcshp and
commun-cai 01w th
‘Nvestee Companes In
meel ng the Company s
nyvestment ob ect:ive anc
sirategy

- 'ecg'v

The Board s a wavs rrdf. of frerequ remertic act -~
e hest terests of sharero'ders as a whoeangior

regard to tre atrer requrerrents of sect o 1 2 WNCT form
part of Boards dec.s or-makng process Tre foiow ng key

dec:sioms taker by the Board dur ng tre vear erded 31 Marc

2023 greexarpesoftr’s,

Gearing
Dorrgthe firarcia year tre Co™pary cotinLed 1o
1 se tsexst~grevovrgannea 'can fac lesard
fo owngaresew ol treava abe p 075 eat” were
enewed 0" broadys ~ arter—sast
dgeetrrosyroct trevear Tre Board s keem e ra1a -
awderangeofbarkrgreatorsmpgtoe saretat it
nasaccessica diverseratge cfter~sa-d s notre a~t
oracyore provder Trefac tesprovdefiexs tva
corpe~ertite orger-tero or ate prace~ert fix
terdebtthal s - pace

54

snareno cer luﬂ heha “ of the

“ne Board needs to demonsirate 10 ‘encers That t1s a we'l-managea business, capab'e of
de Vering .ong-erm retuns ConsIsient y

The Board regu arly cong derg haw .t anc e Caimpany mee: the varaus requlalary and
stawiory olrigations anc follows vosuniaty ana best-practce guicance. inc uc 1g Now any
Tmskes can nave s mpact 01 ts sta<eho ce's

s, both 1 the shorter

The “znzge” communicates regularly with potticho compenies ancs aner \gdgeu
Company) The Bogrc monitors the Manager's stewaraship

cquiar feedbe

Tpaﬁ‘ﬂs ang vating a1 ther generg' meetings

cicgnmeet.ngs with The management of po~fo o

Dividends
Subject to srarenoder approva of the propesed fira
dvde~d ireComparywil payatola divdend of 35.5Cp for
tie frmarcig vear represeriygan norease of 6 8% o e
previous year IncoTerose sharp v as compar esresured
pay ngdvdends ard asares.t trisvearsd aidend:s
covered by earmimgs mitia forecasts for the “nancia vear
1c 31 Marcr 2024 rd.catethatreverue vayfaliagarasa
~Jrher of corpanes ~ave suspended d v derds Tre Board
recogn sesire ~portance of d v de~dstc smare~oders a-d
subject tocarefu revey, oftme Coparysiever eforelasts
ardreservestagetrer w intre ~eestrettoltock trermars
preparedtc usereverereservesto s_pport tred s dena
paid 1G smaensiders aver pencds of mooe srortfa or
ety for gertfied reasors




Portfolio management

JINg the year te Board cont.nued to focus on the
performance of the Manager in achieving the Compary’s
mvestment obiective within an appreprate nsk
framework Tre Board continued to consider the impact
on the Company (including pertfoilo act vity, nsks and
opportunities, geanng. revenue forecasts and the operatiors
of gther trurd party providers) of a number of everts through
the financial vear to ens.re that the partfolio had suffic ert
resilence together with the Company's aperaticnal structure
to meet t1e unprecederted circunrstances

Culture and business conduct

The Board believes that naving a good corporate

culture, particularly in ts engagement with the Manager,
sharerclders and otner key stakenolders, aids delvery of

its long-term strategy. In lire with this purpose, the Board
promotes & culture of openness, debate and ntegrity through
ongo.ng engagement with the Manager and with its other
service providers. The Directors agree that establisning and
ma:~taining a healthy cerporate culture within the Board and
Mits nteracton with tne Manager, shareholders and other
stakeholders will support the delvery of its purpose, valLes
and strateqy. The Board strives to ensure that its culture 15 n
'ne with the Company's purpose, values and strategy.

Tne Company nas a number of poticies and procedures

'n place to assist with mairta:ning a culture of good
goverrance including those relating to dvers'ty, D rectors’
conflicts of interest and Directors’ deaiings in the Company's
shares. The Board assesses and monitors compliance with
these policies as well as the general culture of the Board
regularly through Board meetings and ir particular durning
the a1nual evaluation process (for more inforration see the
Board evaluation sectior on page 56},

Tne Board seeks to appoint the hest possible service
providers ard evaluates their service on a regular basis as
described or page 58 The Board corsiders the cuture of the
Manager and other service providers, including ther policies,
practices and benawviour, through regular reporting from
those stakeholders and in particular durng the annual review
of the performance and continu ng appaintment of al service
providers.

Employee, social impact and wider community

The Board recogrises the reguiremert under the Companies
Act 2006 16 deta information about Fuman ngts,
errployees and community 1Issues, Including informat.or
about any policies it has in relation to those matters and

the effect veness of those policies Tnese requirements,
practically, are not applicable to the Campany as it has ro
employees, al. the Dorectars are ror-executive and it nas
outsourced all operational functions 1o third-party scrnvice
providers. Therefore the Corrpany has not reperted further in
respect of these prov'sions.

Annugl Report & Accoants 2023

Directors’ indemnity

Directors and Officers’ iability insurance coveris in
place in respect of the Directors The Company’s Art.cles
of Associat on allow it to the extent permitted by the
Companies Acts, to indemnify the Directors aganst any
I'ability

The Compary has ertered nto deeds of indemnity for

the benefit of eacl Director of the Company in respect of
liabilities which may attach to them in their capacity as
Directors of the Company Tnese provisions, which are
gJalifying third party indemn 'ty provisions as defined by
sect on 234 of the Companies Act 2006, were introduced i
January 2007 and currentiy remain in force

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of
information to the Auditor

The Directors who were members of the Board at the time
of approvirg the D rectors’ Report are I'sted on pages 44
ard 45 Having made ergunes of fellow Directors and of the
Compary's Audtor, each of the Directors corfirns that:

+ sofaras they are aware there is no informat on of wh'ch
the Company's Auditor is Lnaware, and

- each Director nas taken al the steps that they ought to
nave taken as a Director to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company's Auditor is aware of that information

This nformation is given and snould be interpreted in
accordance with the provisiors of Section 418 of the
Comparies Act 2006

L atten

By order of the Board,

Columbia Threadneedie Investment
Business Limited,

Company Secretary
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Report of the Nomination Committee

Nomination Committee
Chairman: David Watson

Key responsibilities

- Review the Board ardits Committees and make
recommendations to the Board rorelat' on to strocture,
Size and compesit.or, the baignce of krowledge,
experience and ski'l ranges,

+ Cors'der success.on planming ard tenure policy ard
oversee the development of a diverse p pe'ing’

« Considertre re-eection of Directors: ard
+ Review the outcome of tre Board evaluat on process

The Nomiation Committee meets at east arrual y
ard more freqrently as ard wner required 1t ast met in
Marcr 2023

Activity during the year

The Commttee dhacussed success on p arring of

the Board, tsterure and diversity policies it rev ews
annuaily the s'ze and stracture of tre Board ard wi |
continue te review saccessior p anning and further
recruitment, taking irtc accocnt the recomendations

of Beard eva.satiors The Cormittee appo rted a search

consultart ard, fo lowing rterv ews witn a number of
sutable candidates, it recerrended the appentment of
Busoia Sodeinde to the Board

Board evaluation

Dorngthe vear tre Board engaged Tir Stepherson

of Stephenson & Co, ar independert compary wrich
spec aises in nvestrrert trast board evaicatiors, 10

fac itate an ndependent evaluat on of the effect.veness
cf tre Board ts committees ard tre performance of
eac~ Drector Ir addit o~ to t~e Drectors the ~ost
senar mémbers of tre Irvestent Manage—ent teams
were terv ewed Ny Stephe~sorsreport was d'scussed
sv tne Comittee

Treevatation was cors dered by the Corm tteetc be
consiructive i ter~s of ana'ys ~g Boarg corpos tor and
grovid ng recemendat 005 o Board saccessich part g

_|

sarsimgfrorire
edtrattrecurrent
c T ttees rﬂfecte
ce arditrat LBzarj

~erewere ~c 5.gn fIcartt act.ons g
Jaluatior process a~d 1 was agre
o~postorofthe Boardasd its C

o

O (O

solab e xof sk iga eype er
asasrce toe ~dudos Drector F“TJ TSC,’”‘TT ees
werefooct on ~geffectivey

(S}
[

In ghtof the externa performance eva uation the Board

confirms tnat tve performance of each U rector continues
to he effective and demronstrates the r commutiment to
tner role. Therefare al Directors, with the exception of
David Watson w': offer themsewes for re-elect on at the
forthcoming AGM Furtier nformation on each D rector's
skilg, experience and their contrbLtion to the Board are
outlined .r the biograpnies on pages 44 and 45

1 accordance wtn the provisiors of the Code 1t is the
irterticn of t~e Board to engage an exterra facilitator to
assist with the performance evaicat:on every three years
and the rext exterral evaluatior wil be carned out dunng
tne year ending 31 March 2026 The Board wi' continue
10 complete an interna: board eva-.cat on arnual'y in the
Qterven.ng vears.

Board's policy on tenure

Brovisior 24 of the AIC Code of Corporate Governance
aliows a different approach to tencre in re.aticn to irvestent
coTpanies, ieflect. ng how they d'ffer tc operat ng
corparies nh ot aving a ch ef execative Tne Board took
into cors:derat or the approach and rtrodaced its Pal cy
Govern ng Board Members’ Tenure and Reappoirtrent’,
This po 1oy aut'ines the Board's approacn to tenure and
reappaintment of ron-execut.ve drectors It states its belief
that the value brought through cont nuty and experience of
D rectors wit™ onger penods of serv ce g notony desirab e
bat essentia ~an irvestment company. 17e Board did

rot feel tnat it wou d be appropriate to set a specific temure
crit for irdrad.ai Drectors or the Cra rrear of the Board

of Its committess Irstead, the Board wil seek to recroit
arew Director, or average, every two to tree years so as
reg.iary to by ~g the st nLus of fresn thcking mto the
Board's disc.ss.0ns, ensanrg toat o~ eacs accasion that tne
Board enters nio new westrment comm trents at east
naf the Board memibers nave direct persona exper ence of
negot ating prev ods com™ tments vt the Manager

Board Succession

Hav ng served as a Drector sirce 2072 Tw | stand dowe™

frem the Board at the concus or of tre farthcor g

AGW Kate Be.sover w .l succeed ~ve as Crairman

T G ha~ks wr. succeed Kete as Seror Imdepe-dent

Drector Busc'a Jode ~de was appo ~ted a [ rector on

24 samLarv 2023 A- ~deperdentitrd party ager oy

N.org e L~ted was ergaged for trerecro tent precess
Jorresat ,ed ~Blsc as appe irert Norc e mgue o

Sl Lomer on e e Lampary

TR Property Ir.estment Trast



Directors’ training

napportment, new Directors are offered traning to
suait thewr needs Directors are a 5o provided with key
nformation on the Company's activities on a regu ar
bas’s, including regulatory and statutory requirements
and internal cantrols. Cranges affecting Directors
responsib lities are advised to the Board as they anse
Birectors ensure that they are updated on regulatory,
statutory and ndustry matters,

Letters of appointment

No D rector has a contract of employment with
the Company. Directors’ terms and conditiors for

appointment are set out In letters of appoirtment whch
are available for nspection at the 1eg'stered office of the

Company and at the AGM.

David Watson

Anrua Report & Accounts 2023
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Report of the Management Engagement Committee

Management Engagement
Committee (the 'MEC")

Chairman: David Watson

Key responsibilities
+ Monitor and rev ew the performance of the AIFM ard
Fortfohio Marager;

+ Review the terms of the Irvestment Management
Agreement;

Annua'y review tre contracts and performance of
each exteraithurd-party service prov'der, ard

+ Review, or ar anraa’ basis, the reruneration of the
Drecters

I~ add ton 1o irvestrent managemrent, the Board
has delegated to externai third part es the depositary
ard custod al serv.ces functions (wricr include the
safeguard ng of agsetsj, the day to day accountirg,
compary secretana’, admoristration and share
registration servces Fach of tnese contracts was
ertered nic after fil ard proper cons deration of tre
quaity of the services offered, includ rg tne control
syster~s in operaticn msofar as ey relate to t-e
affats of tre Compary The MEC determ nes and
approves Uirectors’ fees, having regard to the lever of
fees payabe to 10n- execctive Drectors ntheirdustry
genera'ly the roie that individua Directors fuifiir
respect of Board ard Cormmittee resporsbil ties and
toe time cormitted to tre Corpany's affars. For
further deta’ls plegse see t-e D rectors Remurerat o
Report or pages €310 05

Tre MEC meets at east annca v towards tneend of
tne fimanciai vear and ast met ir Marck 2023

Activity during the year

Altre meet ~g neld - Marcs 2023 tre MEC

rev eved t-e perfor~ance of t-e AIFN a~d Portfoi o
Marager ard cons dered botr Loe appropt ateness
of tme Maragers appont~ertara the cortract.a
arrange~ents i’ wd g tre struciure ard evei of
re~orerationiw th tbe Marager

I~ addition ta tre rev eves by toe MEC t7e Board

revewed a~d cons gered perforrarce reporis

fr"ﬂ" e P”rtfo e Wanager at eacr Board ~eetng
ne Board a sorece sedrege arrepsrts fro toe

Ad“’f ~istrater a7d Lo”‘pam Secretary

Tre Board be ieve trat tre Manager's track record
ard perforrarcere~a s ootstand ”g Asaresot
tne MEC co-firred t~at tme AlFM a~d Fortfo ¢
NMarager shol d be retaired for tre finarc al vear
erdmg 31 Marcn 2024 berg ntre best lerests of

w1
o

all snareno ders A surmmary of the s gn ficant terms
cf the lnvestrent Management Agreement and the
trd-party service providers who sapport the Company
are set out below

Durng the vear the MEC also reviewed the performance
of ali their third party service providers ‘'neied ng BNP
Parbas, Computershare, Columb a Threadneedie acting
as Compary Secretary both firmms of corporate brokers,
PanmLre Gordon and Stifel and PwC {as tax advisors)
The Portfolic Manage! provides reguiar updates onthe
performance of a. third-party prov'ders durng the year
ard atterded this part of the MEC Meeting The MEC
confirmed that 't was satisfied with the "evel of services
delvered by each third-party provider.

Management arrangemenis and fees

Or 11 July 2C14, the Beard appairted BMO Irvestment
Busmess L' ted {row Colunbia Tnreadneedle
[Mvestrieat Boginess Lirited) as the Compary s
Alterrative Investrent Furd Marager { ¢ accordarce
wetn the Alter-ative IMvestment Furd Managers
Directive) with portfo o n anagement delegated to the
[~vestrent Marager Tnares River Capital LLP

Tne sigr.fcant terms of the Investiment Management
Agreement wetn the Marager are as foi'ows

Notice period

Tne Irvestmert Marage rent Agreerert {iMAT)
provides for term rat on of the agreement by either
party w tncut coTpersat o or the provision of ot
iess thar 12 months wr tten notice

Management fees
Trefee fort~e period under revievs was a “ixed fee of
£28950CC plus ar advaicrer fee of 3.20% pa based
o~ the ~et asset va.e {determired 2 accerdance weth
tre AIC metnod of va.uationi o the ast day of Marck
sure September ard December payab e gLartery -
advarce The fee arra-gerents ~ave been rev ewed by
tne Board for tne yvear i 31 Marc~ 2024 a~d t~e fixed
re-toftrefee v noreasetc £4.090.000, wn st
tr*e adva crerratew lirer-a =~ Lckarged

Tne Board cont mues o cons dertrat tre fee stroctore
aigrstre ~terests cf 1oe grarero.der 3~d 1-e Manager
aswe asbe g mgh ycorpett ve

fee ~ertg we gttt oLe o be rer ewed or

i})
Tl

m &

T~ ra
ar bas

w @

w

Performance fees

~ addit 0~ 10 the Maragerent fees e Board ras
agreed 1o pay tne Marager perfor—ance reiated fees »
respect of a~ accoortirg per odif certa - perfor—ar-ce
chiectvesare aceved

TR eroperylr ceztment Trost



A performance fee 15 payable of tre total retur of
adjusted net assets (after deduction of all Base
Management Fees and other expenses), as defined
inthe IMA at 31 Marcn each year outperforms the
total return of the Company's benchmark plus 1%
{the Furdle rate?): this cutperformance {expressed
as a percertage) ‘s known as the ‘percentage
ovtperformance’. Any fee payable wii be the
amoJnt equivalert to the adjusted ret assets at

31 March each year multiplied by tne percentage
cutperformance, tnen muit:pled by 15% The
maximum performance fee payable for a period 15
capped at 1.5% of the adjusted ret assets However,
if the adjusted net assets at tme end of any period
are less than at the beginni.rg of the penad, the
maximum performance fee payable wili be 'mited to
1% of the adjusted net assets,

‘Adj.sted Net Assets’ means the Net Assel Value
after (y exclud' rg any mcreases or decreases in Net
Asset Value attributable to the issue or reparchase of
any Ordinary Snares: (i} adding back the aggregate
amount of any dividerds paid or d.stributions made
in respect of any Ordinary Shares, and (i} excluding
the amount of any Performance Fee accrued for

the period

tf the total returr of sharefolders’ funds for any
performarce penod 1s less than the benchmark

for the relevart performance period, such
wnderperformance (expressed as a percentage) will
be carried forward to future performarce periods.

If any fee exceeds the cap, suck excess performance
{expressed as a percentage) will be carried

forward ard apphed to offset any percentage
underperformance in future performance periods

Ir the event that the bercimark 1s exceeded bt

the hiurdie ‘s not, that outperformance of the
berchrrark can be used to offset past or future
underperforrrarce These amounts car be used

for offset purposes only and therefore cannot have
the effect of creating a fee in a year wrere a fee
would rot otherwise be payable or increasing the

fee inthatyear. Tne -1 5% underperformrarce of

1ne benchrark = the current year nas beer offset
against the brought forward outperfarmarce

as described above As aresult of this, the carry
forward of outperformarce at 31 March 2023 15 0.4%
{2022.1.9%)

Lrnual Renort & Accounts 2023

Management company

On 8 November 20271 BMO's asset immanagemenrt
business i Europe, tne Middle East and Africa becare
part of Columbia Threadreedle Investments, the globa
asset management busiress of Ameriprise Financia’,
Inc The process of integrating the two firms ‘s wel’
advanced and both comparies have confirmed the
impartance of Mmairtaming the stabdity and cortiruity
of the teams which support the Comrpany.

Depositary arrangements and fees

BNP Parbas was appointed as Deposttary on

14 July 20714 n accordarce with the AIFMD.

The Depositary’s resporsiilties include: casn
monitoring, segregation and safe keep'ng of tne
Company's firancial instrumenrts; and montonng the
Company's comphance with investment and leverage
requirements. The Depositary receives for 15 services
a fee of 2.0 basis po nts per annum on the first

£150 mil'ion of the Company's assets, 1 4 bas’s points
per annum on assets above £150 miliion and below
£500 mil'ion and O 75 basis peints on assets above
£500 milien

Review of third party service

providers fees

Custody ard Administration Services are provided

by BNP Paribas and Company Secretanal Services

by Columbia Trreadneedle Investment Bus.ness
Lim'ted The fees foi these services are charged
directly to the Company and are disc.osed witnir other
admmistrative expenses d'sclosed in notes to the
accounts

David Watson

-
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Report of the Audit Committee

Audit committee
Chairman: Tim Gillbanks

Key responsibilities
+ Revew the interna' financial ard nor
coniros,

-financ a'

« Revew reports from key third party service providers,

- Consider and recorrmend 1o the Board for approva. the
contents of the draft Half year ard Arnuai Reports,

- Revew account g policies and s:gr.ficant financia
reporting judgerments;

+ Monitor, togetner with tne Manager, the Cormpany's
complance witn ranc.a: reporting, mainterance of
Irvestment Trust statas ard regu atory requiremerts
and

+ Consider the -mpact of provid g ron-audit servees or

the external Auditar's ndependence ard objectiv ty

Representatives of the Manager's interal aud t and
corpliance departmerts may attend commitiee
meetings at the Committee Crairman's reguest

Represertatives of tre Company's Auditor attend the
Comryttee meet.rgs at wrich the draft Ha f Year ard
Anncal Report and Accounts are rev ewed and are g ven
the cpport.rity 1o speak to the Committee rmembers
without the presence of the represertat ves of the
NMarager.

Tne Board recogn ses tre requiremert for at east ane

Coritiee member to have recent ard relevant firanc’a:

experience and for tre Avdt Cormmitee as awhoe to
bave competerce relevantic t-e sector Tre Co%wtree
Chamma~ Mt Watser ard Ms Sode de are qua’ “led
aocoortatis wth exters ve andrecert éxper encein tre
Erarcia Seryces Indostry Trectrer members cf tre
Committee ~ave a cc™b ~at o~ of property firanc’a
~vest~ent a~d bos ress exper ence IMICLgT se” or
postors e dtrrowgiouttrer careers

Activity during the year
DGur ~gtre yeartre Corrmitlee met twe cew 17 a
~emlers at eacm meet mg and corsidered the fo cw

[{e]

- Cotsderatencfife Psktdap ary cnagesto
theike ~oodcrarpact of r sks a~d corsequertia
crargesregored o Board Montwerrgard —rgatos
orocedures Cors derationaf arv ~ew arerverg g
nsksa~d ~cuson rtoe Risk Map o appronr ate

« Tneirformatior presented

« Treperformanoe

¢ Trgrevewa of the Committe

This tas inciuded cons'deratior of the impact of the

COVID-19 pander ¢, Russias invasior of Ukra ne,
irflat.onary and interest rate increases across a range of
risk categories,

The Groap's Inter~al Controis and consideratior of tne
Reparts thereon,

The ISAELAAF reports or then eqgu vale~t fror BMO
Co.umbia Trreadneedie and BNP Parbas

Whetner the Company shouid have its owr irterna

aud.t furction,

¢ Treexter-a Add tor's panning remorandum setting
oJt the scope of tne annua’ avdt and proposed key
areas of focus,

T4we reports from tne Aaditor corceraing its avdit
of tne Financia) Statements of the Company and
Consideration of S'grificant isstes nieuoniothe
Finarc a' Statements,

[re appropriateness of, and ary cnanges to, the
accounting po'icies of the Company inclding the
reasonab’eness of any Judgerenis required by such
policies,

Tre Long Term Viabil ty staterrent and considerat on
of tre preparat o1 of the Financ al Statements on

a Gairg Concern basis takng accoert of forward
wokirg ~corre farecasts the ige d'iy of the
mvestrent portfol o ard debt profile,

" ine Firang al

+ The firancia: and other d.sclos.ies -

Statemrents,

~the Ha f year and A~nual
Reports e assess wheter take~ as aw~c e they are
farr baarced a~d _~derstardab e and tre wformatior
presented vw'. enat.e share~cders 1o assess tre
Corpanys postior performrarce bus ~ess mode
and strategy

> of tre exterral aLditor (2 approve
trer aLdt fees a~d cosder the agsess et of
~deperdence

Trerev ew a~d suhbsequet proposai to 176 Beard of
tre ~ter o aad g d v deds ard

esterrs of refere-ce,
ensnngirey re~an appropnate a~d comp Aty
tre 2072 UK Corporate Goverrarce Code

TR EBroperty trvesprert Try
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Going concern

In assessing whetner it cortinues to be appropriate to
prepare the Accourts on a Gong Concern basis, the
Comimittee ras made a detalled assessment of the
abiiity of the Compary ard Sroup to meet its hablities
as they fall due, including stress and 1qu'dity tests wh ch
cons dered tre effects of substant al falls ir investment
val.at.ons, substantial reductions ir revenue received
and reductions ir market nguidty

in ‘ght of the testing carred out, the averali levels of

the investment liquidity beld by the Compary and tne
sign:ficant net asset pos'tior, the Parent Company ard
Group, the Directors corfirm that they are satisfied that
the Company and the Group nave adeguate financial
resources 1o cortinue ir operation for at lgast the

next 12 months fol'owing the sigring of the financal
statements and tnerefore it 1s appropriate to continue 1o
adopt the Gaing Concern basis of accounting

The long term viability of the Company was also
assessed as set out on pages 41 and 42,

Risk management and internal control

The Board Pas overal responsibility for the Group's
syster ¢f Risk Managemert and Internal Control and for
reviewing ther effectiveness. Key risks identified by the
Auditor are considered by the Audit Comimittee 1o ensure
that robust mternal controls and monitoring procedures
In respect of these are 1N piace on an orgoing basis.
Furtner details can be found on page 48

The Audit Committee received and considered reports
on Interral Controls from the key service providers No
areas of corcern were high ighted.

The Compary’s R sk Map was considered to idert{y

any emerging risks and wnether any adjustments were
required to existing rnisks, and the controls and mitigation
measures N place in respect of those risks

Eevated ievels of inflation ard nterest rates and the
Russian invasion of Ukraine were also considered and
the r'sks assoc’ated with those events reflected ir the
nsk map.

The legacy rpact of COVID-18 o1 economies arcwnd

tne world and operat onai cnanges made by our service
providers In response to changing workplace practces
were considered and the risk map adjusted according'y

Based or the piocesses and contrels ' place wiihin
Columbia Threadreedle Investments and cther
sigrificant service providers, the Board has concurred
that there 's no current need for the Cempany to have its
cwninternal audi functior

Annag Report & Accounts 2023

Significant issues in relation to the financial
statements

Tke Committee nas considered this report and firancial
statements and the Long-Term Viab:lity statemert

or pages 41 and 42 The Committee corsidered the
Auditor's assessment of r'sk of materal misstaternent
and reviewed the internal contro:s in p ace Iniespect

of the key areas identified and the process by which
the Board monitors each of the procedures to give the
Committee comfort on trose risks o1 an engoirg bass
Those risks are a-so highlighted ir the Committee’s Risk
Nap

. Carrying amount of isted investments (Group ard
Parent Company) — tne Group's investments are
priced forthe daily NAV by BNP Paribas.

Tne quoted assets are priced by tiie Admiristrator’s
Global Pricing P atform wh.ch uses independent external
pricing sources Tre cortrol process surrounding this s
set out 1N the BNP Paribas AAF §1/36 Irternal Controls
Report and testing by the reporting accourtant for the
period reported to 30 September 2022 which did not
reveal any significant exceptions. Tne guartery contro:
report to tne Board from BNP Paribas covering the period
up to 31 March 2023 disclosed no significant issues 1o
report. Ir addition, on eact business day. the Manager
estimates the NAV using an alternative pricing source as
an independent check,

Tre ALditor agreed 100% of the listed investments of the
portfolic to externally guoted prices and independent.y
received third-party confirmations from mvestment
custodians and fourd the carrying value of isted
investiments to be acceptabie.

- Valuatior of Direct Property Investments (GroLp and
Parert Company) — the physical property portforo is
var.ed every six months by professional independent
valuers

Knight Frark LLP value the portfolio on the bas's of

Fair Value ir accordance with the RICS Valuation —
Professiona Standards VPS4 (1.5) Fan Value and VRGA
T Valuations for Inclusicn ir Financia Statemerts,
wh-ch apply the defint.or of Fair Value adopted by the
Intermat ona. Financ'a Reportirg Stardards IFRS 13
defines Far Vaiue as

‘The arrount for wh ch ar asset could be exchanged, a
liabnity settled, or an equity rstrumert granted could be
exchanged. betweer knowledgeab'e, wiling parties in an
arm's lergth trarsaction’

N
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Report of the Audit Committee

continued

I Lrdertaking their vaiuation of each property The Cemm.ttee has approved ard mpemented

K-ught Frank make thei assessment on tne basis of a polcy on the ergagemenrt of tie Aaditor to

g co'lation ard anays:s of approprate comrparable sJpply ron-audit services, tak ng 'rto accourt the

investmerts rerta and sale trarsactions, togetrer recom:mendatiors of tne Accaurting Pract ces

w th ev dence of demand wthin the vicinity of each Board with a view to ens.rng that the extera

property Tr sinformat.on s then appl ed 16 the Auditor does not provide nor-audit services tnat

properties, 1aking into account size, 'ocation, tenms, nave the potential to impair or appear o impair tne

covenant ard otrer mater.al factors ndeperdeace of their acdit role In additon, the
Cormmittee reviewed the actors put i place by

The Board ras reviewed reports from the Maragel tne Auditor to ensure tnere was a c'ear separaticn

and the externar valuer and determred the va'uatior between audt ard advisory services The Comrtiee

1o be reasonable. does rot be/'sve trere to be any impedimert o the

Auditor's objectvity and ndependence
The Auditor ~as set out therr detaied testing and

procedures in respect of the direct property va.uatior Fuil detai's of the Aud tor's fees are provided - note

ard concluded that trey found the Company's 610 e accounts o page 85 The fees for nor

valuation of imvestment properties to be acceptabye audit serv ces for the year to 31 March 2023 were ny
{20227 11].

There has beer nothing brought to the Commitiees

attertion 0 respect of the firarc.a’ staterents for Falowing each aLdt the Comimittee reviews the

the year ended 31 Marcn 2023 that was matena addit process and consders ts effectiveress

or significart or that the Comimittee felt should be and the qua’ ty of the services provided 1o e

breught io shareo.ders’ attent.on. Comrpany. Wihir th s process, the Corittee

takes rto considergtior therr own assessment tie
self-evaiuation of tme a.ditor and the Audt Quality

Auditor assessment and independence Review Report produced by the FRC i order to
Tre Cormrpany’s externa. auditor, KEMG LEP [ KPMG ~ronitor tne progress of the Auditor's performance
was appo rted as tne Comrpanry's avditor at tne 2016 comparable w.th its peers and tne targets set by
AGM The Comm ttee urdertook a review darmng tre FRC Trereview folowing the corrpet or of
2027 to ensure that snarerciders were recev ng the 2C23 aud t concluded tnat tne Comimitiee

the best services and vaiue for monrey A nurmber of was sat sfied win tre ALditor's effectiveness and
firms were nvited to express mterest and respend performarce Tre Committee felt that KPMG I~ad
or asmairomber of key po nts The decisian was rur an effective and efYicient audit process w th
rrade for the audit to remair with KPMG This 's Mr appropriate cha' erge. Areso.ut o tore-appot
Mercnant's secand year as the Cormpany's Audit KPMG | LF ast-e Company's Aud torw be put 1o
Partner sharenc ders at the forticom ~g AGM

Tre Cormm™itiee expecis lorepeal a ferder process
no ater t7an 2026 ~respect oftreacdtfort-e Tim Gillbanks
folowirg 31 March vear erd romew i thecurrent o
aodtrequations

Attre -afyear meet g of tre Comir ttee KPMG
presentedtreraudtp'an for tne year end and the
Co~rrittee corsidered the aud t process and fee
proposa Tre Comrr ttee a.sorev ewed KEMG'S
~deperdence pcic’es a~d procedures ~clud g
0.8 ty assorance procedures Itwas cors dered t1at
t~cse pol cieg are At for purpese ard tre Drreciong
ae sat sfied 1at KRG s ndependent

Tota fees payable totre Avditor ~respect of the
acdtfortre vearto 31 Marcm 2723 were
£OU 0012022 £E8Z2 000w cowere approged by
e Aldt Com ftee

2 TR Sreperty lreestmert Trast



Directors’ Remuneration Report

Introduction

1he Board nas prepared th.s report and the Directors’
Remuneratior Pclicy, ir accordance with the
requiremerts of Schedule 8 of the Large ard Medium
Szed Companies and Groups (Accoants and Reports)
Reguations 2013 Ar ordinary resolution for the
approvai of this report will e put to the members at the
forthcoming Anrua General Meeting

The law requires the Compary's Auditor, KPMG LLF
to audit cortain of the disvusures provided Where
disclasures have been audited. they are indicated
assuch Tne Auditor's opinior s inc:uded in the
Independent Audtor's Report’

Annual statement from the chairman

of the committee

The MEC metir Marcn 2023 and cons dered the resu ts
and feedback from the Board evaluat on. It was agreed
that the Directors’ fees would be increased, with effect
from 1 Apnl 2023, tc the follow rg levels Chairman
£730060, Audit Committes Cha rman £43,000, Senior
indeperdent Director £43 000, and other Directors
F37.000

Directors’ remuneration policy

The Lompany’s poiicy is that the fees payable to the
(irectors should reflect the time spent by the Board on
thie Company's affairs and the responsibilities borne
by the Directors and should be sufficient to enable
candidates of lugh calibre to be recruited The policy is
for the Chairman of the Board, the chairman of the Audrt
Commitiee and the Semor Independent Director to be
pard higher fees than the other Directors in recognition
of thewr mare cnerous rales This policy was approved
by the members at the 2020 AGM. and the Directors’
miention is that this will continue for the vear ending
31 March 2024 In accordance with the regulations,
arnortinary resolution to approve the Directors’
remuneration policy will be put to shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM on 20 July 2023, as required every
three yoars.

The Directors are paid in the form of fees, payable
monthly in arrears, 16 the Director perseonally or to a third
party specified by that Director. There are no long-ternm
ieenive schemes, share option schemes or pension
arrangements and the fees are not specifically refated

1o the Directors’ performance, ether indiaduaiy or
coflectively

Arruz Report & Aczouarte 2023

The Board comprises entirely of non-executive Directors,
whose appointments are reviewed formally every year
None of the Directors have a contract of service and a
Director may resign by notice in writing to the Board at
any time, there are no notice penocds and no payments
made for loss of office The terms of thew appointment
are detaled in an appointment letter when they join the
Board As the Directors do not have service contracts,
the Company does not have a policy on termination
payments The Companys Articles nf Association
currently limit the toial aggregate fees paysble to the
Board to £300,000 per annum

Any shareholders’ views inrespect of Direciors’
remuneration are commurnicated at the Company's
AGM and are taken into account in formufating the
Directors rermuneration policy At the 2022 AGM,

9% 8% of shareholders’ votes cast were in favour of the

resolution approving the Diectors Remuneration Report,

with 0 2% agamst, showing very sigmificant shareholder
support.

The componenis of the 1emuneration package for
Non-executive Directars, which are comprised ir the
Directors' remurneration policy of the Caompany are
set out helow, with a description and approach 1o
determination.

(e}
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Directors’ Remuneration report

continued

Remuneration Type

Fixed Fees

The aggregate limit for
ihe fees for the Board
as awhole s £30C,020
per annum which, o
accordance wiih the
Articies of Assooiation,
Is civioga between the
Direciors as iney oeem
approprate.

Fees are set to reflect
the rp'e of each Board
memkter and 1ne time
comimitment reguirea

to casy oul tner- dut es
and are revieved with
reterence to the fees paid
to Directors of samitar
FTVESTMENT COMEanes

Additional Fees

Additiona' fees may be paid
to any Drector who fulf's the
role of the Cnairman, who
cha rs 37y commitiee o the
Board or who s appointed
as the Sen or independent
Director

Tnese fees zeselaia
competinive level 10 reflect
experence and tme
comm.tment

Annual remuneration report

For the year enaed 31 Marc

under review are as show

12023 Grect
anc all viner Uirectors, £36 00012022
Committee Charman ano Senor INcenennen
v GeIow

ors’
£36,00C)

1 oireciorn,

feeg were paid at the annual rates of
An adm ona £6,000 ’taQ pa
e actual amounts pa

Expenses

The Brrectors are entitied

to be paid all reasonah.e
expenses prope’y Icurred

by them attend.ng mee ngs
Wt shareholoers o other
Directars or otherwise in
connection witn tne discharge
of therr autes as D rectors

jishials]

Amount of each Director's emoluments {audited)

The fees payable in respec

David watson
Simon Marrison
Tim Gillbanks

Kate Bolsover
Sarah-dane Curtis
Andrew Vaughan
Busola Sodeinde -~

Total

tof eacn of The Diectors who servea duning the finane

aryear w

31 March 2023

Cnairman £72 0002022 £7
per annum for each of the roles
ardt Tirectors du

Other

card members are not
e’ gib'e for bonuses, pension
benefits, snare oplions,
long-term incentree schemed

or other won-cash benefis or
~axab'e expenses

.00
of Auct
ng the fingnoial vear

ere 58 ‘oliowse

31 March 2022

3 £
72,000 70.000
14,000 40,000
42,000 40,000
40,069 35000
36,000 35,000
24,000 .

683 -
234900 220000

{] 28y
appo nted Sen o ndependent e
sppc Ntedictne B

- appomtedin e B

f

hrs

crdonzd tanns, 2

TR erozery Irvestiiort Tross



Company perfarmance

The grap™ below comrpares, for the ten years ended

31 March 2023, the percentage charge over eacn period
In the share price total return 1o sharenholders compared
to the share price total retum of benchmark, whicn the
Board considers 1o he tne most appropriate benchimark
for nvestment performance measuremert purposes An
explaration ¢f the performance of the Company 1s g.ven
1 the Chairmar's Stateiment and Manager's Report

Ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return
over 10 years (rebased)

4000 - - S - - - =
3500
3000
2500 -
2000 -

150G -

won L -

Rl 130 84310 M1 L 1o ke 17 Mar 46 a1t tdar 2 Bar I ki-r 200 Riae 2

. TR Property Share Price Total Return . Benchmark Total Return

Share Price Total Return assurning investment of £1,000 on 31 March
2013 and reinvestrent of alldwidends (excluding dealing expenses).
(Source: Thames River Capital)

Benchmark Total Return assuming notional investment into the index of
£1,0000n 31 March 201 3. (Source. Thames River Capital}

Directors’ shareholdings {audited)

Tne interests of the Directors in the shares of the
Company, at the beg'nning and at the end of the year. or
date of appointment, 'f later, were as follows:

Ordinary shares of 25 pence

31 March 2023
or as at date of

appointment 31 March 2022
David Watson 41,864 36,407
Kate Bolsover 2,360 2,360
Sarah-Jane Curtis 10,009 5237
Tim Gillbanks - -
Busola Sodeinde - n/a
Andrew Vaughan 11T o n/a

Since 31 March 2023 to the date of s report, there have
been 7o caanges to the Directors interests in the shares of
the Company

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Relative Importance ot spend on pay

2023 2022

£000 £'000 Change
Dividends paid 47127 453871 3.8%
Directors’ fees 228 220 C36%

Five year change comparison
Over the tas! ve years, Directors’ pay nas mcreased as set
outin the teble be.ow

Change

2023 2018 over Annualised

£000 £'000 5 years Change
Chairman 72 70 29% 0.6%
Audit Committee
Chairman 42 38 10.5% 2.0%
Senior
Independent
Cirector 42 38 10.5% 2.0%
Director 36 33 91% 18%

Annual percentage change in Directors Fees

The talle below sets out the annua) percentage change in
fees for each director who served 1n the year under review

XS EE % change % change
ligely 0o gl from 2021 from 2020
to 2023 to 2022 t0 2021
EILICH M (audited)  (audited)
Director % % %
David Watson +2.9 +1580  451.2°
Simon Marrison -65.00 +4.73 +8.7
Tim Gillbanks +5.0 0.0 0.0
Kate Bolsover +14.5 * 00 +100.0
Sarah-Jane Curtis +2.9 00 +449.3~
Andrew Vaughan n/a-t n/a n/a
Busola Sodeinde nfa® n/a _h/a
Appemnted 22 Casirean o theflect o J8 N 2020 insrease et ents
e nala i
T 2070
1 seoeflertn e nl s port et and subseguent e ves g
Apnomted ag exEt il e [ on " Totober ZUT noresre
Hopke v b tne [ty
Appoented 2g g ncneexe Tty e U ChGE L anne y 20ED  crelae
electetne frar i ces vt ae Corrpan.
Cordeperdent Uorectn et et et e J0 g, DO
T "\cll".’_']f‘ ncosdie o) P ve &
oroedacl e Torentes o VA Lguet SO0
Anor ere Ul oMo e an 04 dene, o0
For and on behalf of the Board
David Watson
65
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation
to the Group financial statements

The Directors are responsible for prepaning tre Arnal
Report and the Group and Parent Company finarcial
statements in accordarce with appiicab'e aw a~d
regulat ons

Company 'aw requires the Directors to prepare Group
and Parent Comrpanry 9rancai statements for eacr
financial year Directors are required to prepare the Group
firancial statemerts in accordance with UK-adopted
nternational accourtung stardards and applicab.e

‘aw and have elected to prepare the Parent Company
firancial statemerts or the same bas s

Under company aw the Directors must not approve

the financial statemeris un.ess they are sat'sfied that
tney g've a true ard fa'r veew of the state of affars of the
Group and Parent Company and of the Group's profit or
loss for that per od. Ir preparnrg eacr of the Group and
Parent Company finarc al statemerts, the Directors are
required {or

se.ect sutable accounting poi cies ard app'y them
congistertly,

make udgements and est.mates that are reasonab.e,
reieva~tard rehable

state wnetrer they have been prepared in accordance
with inter~at.oral accourting standards in conformity
waith e requiremerts of UK adopted interratioral
accounting stardards

© assesstre Group ard Parent Comparys abi ty 1o
contreeasagorgeoncerr disclosg as applicabe,
reatters related to go ng corcern ard

« usetregorgcorcert bass of accounting wnless
they ether rterd o’ guidate the Group or the Parert
Compaty 01 10 Cease Operaticns Cof Nave ~crea 1shc
aterratve but 10 do sa

Tre Drectors are responsitie for keeping adequate
acco.~tngrecords tmat are sufficiert to show a~d
exp:ain the Parert Co™pa~y's tra~sact 0ng a~d d sciose
winreasonable aoccuracy ataryt methe firanc a.
postonoftre Parert Coparyarderabetremto
e~sorethat ts “rarcia statements co~py with the
Cartpares Act 2006 Trev are respons be farsocr
~terma cottro astreyoeler™ e s hecessary 1o enab'e
tme preparat or of firanc 2 statementstrat are free fro-
nrater a: i sstatement wretrerdoe to fracd or errer,
ard ~ave generai resposs oty far tak ~g s steps as
arereascrab y opentc themto safeguard tme assets

cf 1me Group and to presert and detect frand a~d ot-er
rregaartes

[
%l

Under app'icatie law and regulat ons, the Diaectors
are also responsibie for preparng a Strategic Report,
Directors’ Report. D rectors’ Reurerat or Report
ard Corporate Governance Statement

The Duecters are respons.b.e for tre manténance
and mtegnity of the corporate and “inarcial
aformation -rouded o1 the Coimpany's website
Legisatior in the UK governing tne preparation ard
d-ssevatior of frmancial statements may differ
frorr legis.aton 1 other junsdict ons

In accordance with DisciosLre Guidance and
Transparency Ru'e 4.1 14R, tne finarcial statemerts
wll form part of the annua, finarcia  report prepared
us'ng tre sirgle electron ¢ reporting format under
the TD ESEF Regulation The Auditor s repert on
these firaraial statements provides No assarance
over tne ESEF format

Responsibility statement of the Direclors
in respect of the annual financial report
Eacn of the Directors corfirrs that te the best of
the'r know'edge:

- thefinanca stater~ents, prepared naccordance
wththe apploable set of accounting standards
give atrue and farr v ew of the assets, ab nties
firancial posit-on and profit or 'oss of the Group
and Parent Compary a~d the undertak ngs
mc-Jded inthe consolidat on taken as a whoie, ard

+ the strategic report roiudes a far review of the
developr-ent and performance of the business
and e pos tick of the sguer and the Lndertak’ ~gs
mc'uded rthe corsaldat or take” as awno e,
togetrer wiin a descrnpt.on of tre prircipal rsks
ard uncertaint es that t~ey face

Tre Directors cons dertrattre Anrua Report
ard Accoum1s taker as a who e, 'sfar baarced
and Lnderstardab e and prov des the ~forrmat o
recessary for sharenciders to assess the Groups
positior ard perforance busiress ~ade ard
strategy

By order of the Board
David Watson

TR Property Irwastpent Trys:



Independent auditor’s report

to the members of TR Property Investment Trust Plc

01 Our opinion is unmodified

We nave audied the financial statements of TR Property
Inyestirent Trust Pic {17e ‘Company'} for the year

erded 31 Marcn 2023 which comprise the Group
Statement of Cormprehersive Incore, Group and
Comrpany Statements of Charges n Equ-ty, Group and
Company Balance Sheets, Group and Compary Casn
Flow Staterrents and the related notes, .nciuding the
accounting polcies in rote 1

In our opinion:

+ thefinancia statements gwve a true and fair view of
the state of tne Group's ard of tne parent Company’s
affairs as at 31 March 2023 and of tne Group's return
far the year then ended;

« the Group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards,

« the parent Comrpany financ al statements have been
properly prepared n accordance with UK-adopted
rterrationai accounting standards and as applied in
accordance w.th the provisions of tne Companies Act
2006, and

+ the‘irancia statements have been prepared -1
accordance witk the reguirements of the Campan’es
Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted ouraund tin accordance with [nternational
Standards on Audit' g (UK (1SAs (UK)Y and appicable
lawe Our responsibrit es are described beiow We heieve
that the auadit ev dence we bave oblained 18 a sufficient
and appropnate basis for our opinion. Our audit opin-on
IS consistent with our report to the aud't committee

We were first appointed as auditor by the Directors on

2 November 2016 The period of total unmterrupted
engagement is for the seven financial years ended

31 March 2023, we have fulfilled our ethical
resporsibilites under, and we remrain independent of
the Group in accordance with, UK ethical requiremenrts
including the FRC Ethical Standard as applied (o listed
pub.c mterest entites  No non-sudit services prohibited
by that standard were provided

Overview _

Materiality: group £10.5m (2022 £16.8m)
financial statements 19 (2022. 1%) of Total Assets

as a whole

Key audit matters vs 2022 . vs 2022

Recurring risks Valuation of direct property )
investments ) )
Carrying amount of listed )
investments

02 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, 1n our profess’oral judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements and rclude the Tost significant assessed risks of material m sstatement (whether of not due
to fraud) :dentified by us, ircluding those which Fad the greatest effect o0 the overall audit strategy: the allocat on of
resources 11 the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagemernit team We surmmarise below the key audit matters
{Lncnarged from 2022), in decreasing order of audit significance, 1Ir arnving at our avdit op nion above, togetner

wtn odr key audit procedures to address trose matters ard our findings from those procedures n order that tne
Company's members as a body may Lnderstand better the process by which we arr ved at our audit opirion These
matters were addressed, and our find gs are based on procedures urdertaken in the cortext of and solely for tae
pJrpose of, cur audit of the financiai statements as a2 who.e, and in formmg our opriton theleon, and corsequently are
meidertal to that oprior, and we do ot provide a sepalate opirion o these matters

Annual Regort & Accounts 2023
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Independent auditor’s report
continued

02 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement T

e 1S Our response

Valuation of direct Subjective valuation: We performea the cetailed tests beow rather

property investments 7 0% (202205 751 of the Group's, thzn seeking ia ~ely on any of tne Group’s

(Group and Parent) and 6.8% (2022 5 &%) o“the Paret controls, because the nature of the balance

(£74 0 mi i on, Company’s, tota, assets (by vaue) a7e 1S sUCh That we would expect 1o ohtan audit

2022 £96 3mlhan: he din nvesument propertes evdence primarly througn the detared

Refer 1o pages 60 10 Tne far value of each property requires proceaures cescribed

52 (Audit Committes s gn.ficant estmaiion, in partcular witt Ou procecures ¢ uded

Report). pages &1 and 82 regard to the estimated rentai value and ) ) .

faccounting policy), note 10 yield assumgptions The assumptions + Assessing ya!qers credentials: Using our own

oM pages B9 1o 32 if nancial wil be .mpactes by a number of faciors property va'uat on speciglist, we evaluated the

disciosy e’ nciud g quaty and condrtion of the competence, experience and naependence of
buiding ano tenant “nancial sirength e externa’ valuer,
The effect 0f these matters s “hat, - Tests of detail: We comparec the “format on
as part of our r sk assessment, we proviged by tne Croup to s external property
aetermned that the valuaton of value for a sample of propert es, such as
Investmer properties 1as a high ental income and rfenancy data *o supporing
degree of estumaron uncertainty witn a documents Incluc g 12ase agreements,

poten: al range of reasonable cutcomes
greater than our materiay for the
financ al statermen:s as a whole The
fmancial statements (1ote 100 cisc 0se
the sensitraly esiirmeatea by the Group

Methodology choice: vie held aiscussions

2w th the Group's external property valuer 1o
determ ne the valuation methooology used ¢
approprigte Lsing owr own property vaiuat'on
specighst, we critcal v essessed the results
of the valuer's report by checking that the
‘uations were naccordence withthe R 8
Valuaton Professional Stancarcs the Red
300« and .FRS and “hat the methoaology
edopted was appropr.ate by refarence (o
anceptab e valuation practice,

Benchmarking assumptions: v/ith the
assistance of our awn property va
speciais:, we neld discussions

th e
Group's externa propeny valuer o uncersiand
Tovements in property va.ues ~o a sample of
properties, we assessed the key assumpt-ons
useG By Tne vader upon wic the va uaions
a-e baseq, nclucing those "e'zling t¢ estimaten
rental va ue anc v eld by making & comparson
o our own understancing of me market and o
ACustry benchmanks;

Assessing transparency: \We also cons cered
the adecuacy 0 tne Croup's d sciosures abous

he cegree g* estimat o1 gnd 52081 v Ly g ke
assumiptions maas when vz ung the d et
Lroperty Tvestments

Qur findings
dre founc the Croup's «
LroperT

o
€]
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€ TS Qur response

Carrying amount of
listed investments
{Group and Parent)}
£872 1 million,
2022:£1.456 8 m lhon)

Low risk, high value:
The portfolio of istec level 1

Refe o pages 60t 62
(Aud t Commitiee Report),
page 82 jaccounting poicy)
andnote 10 un pages 3910
a2 “nancial disclasures)

mvestments makes up 83.0% (2022

86 4= of the Croup’s, and 80.2% (2022
84 6% of the Parent Company’s, total
assets (by value) and s one of ihe key
drivers of results. We oo not consider
these nvestmenis (o be at a high risk of
material misstatomoent or o be subedt
to & significant level of judgement
because they comprise hquid, guoted

We performec the detallec tests below rather
than seeking te rely on any of the group’s
contrals, beczause the nature of the balance
1S such tnat we would expect to obta'n auait
evicence primanly through the dets lec
procedures cescribed.

Our procedures inciuded

- Test of detail: Agreeng the vawation of 100
of level 1 listed Investments n the portfoao o
external y gucted prices; and

nvestments. However, aue (o therr

materiadty in the context of the
financia, statements as a who'e, they
are considered to be one of the areas
which had the greatest effect an our

* Enquiry of custodians: Agreeing 1007 of
tevel 1 irsted investment hold' ngs 1 the
portfelo to incependently received third party
confirmat ons f-om mvestment custogians

overall audit strategy ana allocation of
resources 1 planaing and completing

our audt

Our findings

we found no cifferences from third party

hold ngs confirmations nor from tne externally
guoted prices of a size to require reperting to the
Audit Comm ttee (2022 no differences’

03 Our application of materiality and an
overview of the scope of our audit

Materiality for the Group financial statemerts as a whole
wassetat £10.9m {2022: £16.8m), determired with
reference to a benchmark of total assets, of which .t
represerts 1 0% (20211 0%)

Materiality for the parert Caompany financial statements
as & whaole was set at £9 §7m (2022 £16.0m) when

IS the corponert mater.ality for the Parent Company
determired by the Group audit engagement team Ths
Is lower than the matenality we wol'd otherw se have
determined wtn reference 1o Parent Company totar
assets of wh'chit represents C 95% (2022: 0.95%)

In i ne weith our audit methodology, our procedures
on mdividual account ba'ances and disclosures were
performed to a -ower thresho d, performance maternaity,
s0 as to reduce to an acceptable level the nsk that
ndividualiy immatenal misstatements in individual
account balances add up to a matenal amount across
the financial statements as a wiole Performarce
mater.ality was set at 75% (2022 75%) of materiality
far the firancial statemerts as a whole which equates
to £7 85m {2022 £12 &) for the Group and £7 45m
(2022 £12m) forthe Parert Company We appi'ed
this percentage In odr deterrminat.onr of performance
satenality because we did not.dent fy any factors
ind.cating an eevated 'ever of risk

Anrga Repor! & Aczounts 2023

We agreed to report to the Audit Comrm ttee any
corrected or uncorrected identified misstatements
exceeding £0.53m (2022 £0.84m) for the Group and
exceeding £0 5m (2022- £0 8m) for the Parent Company.
in additior t¢ other identified misstaternents that
warranted reporiing on qualitative thresholds

The audit team performed tre acdit of the Group as a
single aggregated set of firanciai information rather

than scoping in indvidua components This approach

1S unchanged from the prior year. The audit of the

Group and Parent Compary was perfermed using the
rmateria-ity levels set out above and was perfarmed by a
single audit tea=. The scope of tne audit work performed
was fully substartive as we d'd not rely upon the Group's
interna' contro's cver financial reporting

Group Materiality
£105m (2022 £16.8m;

Total Assets
£1.051m (2027 £71.686m}

£10.5m
Whole financial staterments
materiality (2022 £16.8m)

£7.85m

Whole financial statements
performance materiality
(2022: £12 6m)

£9.97m
Parent Company Materiality
{2022: £16.0m]

£0.5m

Misstaternents reported
to the audit comrmittes
(2022: £0 8m)

| Total Assets
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Independent auditor’s report
continued

04 The impact of climate change on our audit
Ke have performed a r sk assessmert of how the impact
of ¢limate change may affect the finarcia statements
and our audit Leve! 1 Listed investments make up

83 0% of the Group's total assets, for which fair val.ee

s determmined as the quoted market price Trerefore,

we assessed that the finaroai statement estumate that
18 primarny exposed tc crmate sk 1s the investmert
property portfono, for which the vaiuat'on assumptions
and estimates may be irpacted by physicai and pa'icy
ar 'egal climate risks, such as flooding or an increase

1 chmate related compl.arce expenditure. We eld
discussions wiAr our owr ¢l mate change professionals
to cnal'enge our risk assessment. We assessed that,
whilst cl'mate change posed a risk 1o the determimation
of mvestment property vaicatiors n the currert yeat

trs risk was not significart when considening botr tre
naturc and domicile of trne properties and the tenure of
unexpired leases Therefore, there was no signficant
nmipact of trig on our key acdit Matters.

We nave read the discicsure of cimate reated rarrat ve
+ tre front ralf of the fimanciar statements and
considered cons.stency w ik the fingnc.a statemerts
and our acdit knowledge

05 Going concern

The Directors rave prepared the firarcia statements
on the gong concern bas:s as trey do not intend to

i qu date the Gioup or the Comipany or 1o cease (e
opelations, and as tney bave concluded that tre Group's
ardthe Corrpany's finarcia position mears that tris
srea.stc Tneyrave alsc corc cded that there are no
~atenal wncerlammties trat cou'd rave cast s gn ficart
do.bt overther abiity to contirce as a gomg concerr for
at.east a year from the date cof approva of tneiranc a
statements (the going concern perod').

e Lsed cur k-owedge of the Group its rdustry,
a~dthe gererarecora™ cenvron et todent fy

e mrerectnisks 1o tsbos ~ess mode and ana ysed
~ow trose rgks mugnt affect the Group or Compary's
“irancia resocrces or ab ty 1o cortitue operat-ons ovel
tie goog corcers per ad. Tre rgks that we cors dered
~ost ke ytoadverseyaffectire Gro.p o1 Corpary's
asa abe‘ma-cairesources ard ts ab -ty o operate
Over th g per od were.

Tre mpactofasygn L
of ~westveris andine ~p cators fortoe

-~

Comparye debtoover3nts

The 'quidity of the irvestmert portfel o ard s ab!' ty
to meettre hablites of the Group as and when tney
fail due, and

Tne operational resi e~ce of key service organsat.ons

We considered wnetper these nsks could plads by affect
the iqu dity of covenart complance 1 tne going concerr
period by assessing the degree of downside assumption
that, mdiv dually and conectve'y, cou'd result 1= & aqu dity
'ssde, taking nto acccunt the Group o1 Comipany's
current and projected cash ard 1gu d investment
positior {and the resuits of tngir reverse stress testing)

We considered whetrer the gowrg concern disclosare
' rote 1 gives a fuli and accurate description of the
Directors’ assessment of goirg concern. ~cluding the
idertified risks a~d reiated sensitivities

Jurconcies ons based on t § work

- we cons der that the Directors’ Lse of the going
coricern bas's of accounting r the preparatior: of the
fnarcial statererts s appropnate,

- we have ~ot dertified and concur witr the Directors’
assessmrent that taere s not, a matena’ uncertanty
related to everts or corditions that, indiv dua'y or
col'ective'y may cast s gnficart doubt or tne Growps
crComparysab iy 10 cortirue as a go rgconcer
for the gorg congern per od,

we nave notn g matera. 1o add or draw attent-or to
mreation 1o ne D rectors staterenit o the usecf the
Qo g corcern basis of accountng witn ne Mmater a’
arcertambes that ray cast s.grificart doubt gver

thie Group and Cempany's use of t1at basis for tne

a0 rgcorcera penod, and we foard the goirg corcers
d sclosure nrote 110 be acceptable, ard

the re ated statere~t Lnder tne L st rg Ro 25 se1 out
G page 61 s™ater ay cors stent w ththe fina~g al
statemerts ard ouracdit krowledge

However aswecarrat pred ctan fuicre everts ar
cordtorsardas subseguerteveris may reso tr
cotcormestrat are ~ocors stert w i judgeTents trat
werereascab e al ime tme they veere Tade e above
coro'us orsare ot aguarartee rattre Growp or tre

Lot rle tonerat o7
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06 Fraud and breaches of laws and
regulations - ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to fraud

Toidentify nsks of matenal misstatement due to fraud
(fraud r.sks) we assessed events or condit'ons tnat
could mdicate an mcentive or pressure to comirnt fraud
or provide an opportur.ty to com-ut fraud. Cur rsk
assessmert procedures included

Enguining of Directors as to the Group's high-leve!
polic’es and procedures to prevent and detect fraud,
as well ag wnether they have know:edge of any actral,
suspected or al.eged fraud,

- Assessing the segregat on of duties In place between
the Directars, the Administrator and the Group's
Investrment Manager, and

Reading Board and Audit Committee m nutes

As regLired by audting standards, we perform
procedures to address the rsk of managemert overnde
of centrals, in particular to the rigk that management
may be In a position to make inappropriate accountig
entres. We commun:cated identified fraud risk
throughout the audit team and remaired alert to any
ind'cations of fraud threaghout the audit. We evaluated
the design ard implemertatior of the controls over
journal entries ard other adjustments and made
nquires of the Admin:stratar about inappropriate or
unus.al activity relating to the processing of journai
entries and otner adjustments

We substantively tested ali matenal post- clos ng
entres and, hased ontne resilts of our risk assessmert
procedures and understanding of the process, ncludirg
tne segregaticn of duties between tne Directors and

tne Admiristrator, ro furtner Fign-tisk journar entries or
other adjustments were dentified

Cn this audit we have rebutted the fraud risk reiated
torevende recogn.t o0 because therevenue is

non- judgemertal and straightforward, with Im'ted
cpportuity for manipuration We did rot identify any
sigficant Lausual trarsactions or additonal fravd nsks

Anrual Repaort & Accodrts 2023

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and
regulations

We identified areas of laws and reqgulations that cou.d
reasonably be expected to have a material effect on

the financial statements fiom our gereral commerc al
ard sectar experence and througn discussior with

the Directors, the Irvestmert Marager and the
Admmistrator (as required by aaditing standards)

ard d.scussed with the INrectars the polcies and
procedures regarding conmpliance wth laws and
regulations We communicated identified laws ard
regulations throughout ourteam and remamned aiert to
ary indicatons of non-compl.ance throughout the audit
As the Parent Company ‘s regulated, our assessment of
risks invelved gain'ng an understanding of tne contro
environment inciuding the entity’s procedures for
complying with regulatory reguirements.

The potental effect of these laws ard regulat-ons on the
‘inancial staterrents varies considerably.

Firstly, the Group 1s subject to laws and regulations

that directly affect the finarcial statemenrts ircluding
financiai reporting tegisiation {including related
companies leqislat:on), distributable profits leg:slation
ard ts qualification as an Investment Trust under UK
taxation legis-atior, any breach of whicn could lead to
the Group !osirg various deductions and exemptions
from UK corporation tax, ard we assessed the extent of
complance with these laws and requlations as part of
our procedures on the related financial statement tems

We assessed the legality of the distributions made by
the Company n the pericd based or comparing the
dividerds paid to the distribLtable reserves pricr to each
distnibut'on

Secondiy, the Group ‘s subject to Tany other laws and
regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures
inthe financ.al statenents, for Instance through the
impositon of fines or litigat on. We identified the
following areas as those moest kely to Fave such an
effect meney laurdering, data protection, bribery and
corruptior legis.ation and certain aspects of Compary
egislation recognis-ng tne financia. natare of the
Group's activities and its legal form. Audit ng standards
imit the required audit procedures 1o identify nen-
corrphance with these laws and regulations to enquiry
of the Directors and the Administrator and inspect'on of
regulatory and legal correspondence (f any Therefore,
if a breach of operational reguiatiors 1s not disclosed to
us or evident from reievant correspondence, an audit wit
not detect that breach
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Independent auditor’s report
continued

06 Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations -
ability to detect -

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or
breaches of law or regulation

Ow ngto the inherent 'mitations of an audit, there s an
uravoidable risk that we may not have detected some
maternal Mmisstaterments in the financial statements, even
though we have properly plarred ard performed our audn
maccardance with aud\ting standards For exampie the
further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations
1S from the events and transactions refiected 10 tne financ a)
statemerts, thelessiike vy the irherentiy fimited procedures
requred by acditing stardards would idertify it

i addition. as with any audit there remaned a nigher risk
of non-detectior of fraud, as these ray irvolve coliusion,
forgery, intentiona. omiss ons mrsrepresentations o tne
overnde of internal controls Cur audit procedares are
des.gned to detect material misstatement We are ot
respons ble for prevent rg nor-comp ance or frawd and
cannot be expected 1o detect non-compliance with all aws
and reguiations

Q7 We have nothing to report on the other
informaticn in the Annual Report

Tre Drectors are respons.ble for the otrer irfonmat on
presented i tne Annual Report together wit the financia
statements Ouropinicn ontre rarca’ statements
does rot cover the other inforrat on and, accordingly,

we do not express an audit opirion or, except as exp.icitly

stated below, any form of assurance conc usion thereon

Surrespons il ty s to read the other rformation and

M dc ~g so consider whether, based orrour financ a
staterrents audt wark, theirfarmat o0 theren s
~atenaly mosstated or .rconsistent wik tre firanc al
statererts orour andtk-ow edge Based soelyont-at
work we nave not dentied mater al misstaterents 1
t~e other .nforat o-

Strategic report and Directors’ Report
Based scew on our work or tre otrer rformat on

« wengve "ot dent.fied mater a ~ sstaterents - the
strategic repert and t-e D rectors repert,

+ rodaropTontte ~for~atcn guen ~troserepcits
fortrefina~c'alyear scorgstert wthtre g c.a
statemenis ard

a2t o UTose reports mave been prepared ©
aceorda-ce w thtre Compaes Aot 200

Directors’ remuneration report

Ir our opinmicn the part of the Diiectors Remyneratior
Report te be aud.ted bas beer properly prepared 1
accordance wth the Compames Act 2008,

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and
lenger-term viability

We are required tc perform procedures to ident fy
whethertnere s a matenal ncons stency betweep
the Directors disclosures in respect of emerging and
princ pal risks and the viability statemment, and (te
“inaricial staterments and  our aud t krowiedge

Based cninose procedares, we Pave nothing matera; 1o
add or draw attention toin relat.or to

+ the Drectors’ confrmation withir the Long-term
Voab! ty staterrent on page 41 that they have carried
out arobust assessmert of the emergirg ard principa
rsksfac ~gthe Group nciudirg these tnat woudld
threaten 1s business mode  furure perforrance,
solvency and l'guidity

» the Princpal ard emergirg nisks ard uncertainties
d.sclosares describing these nsks and ~ow emerging
rnsks are ideqtified, and expairing Fow ey are berrg
managed a~d rmitigated, and

- the Direciers expiarator in tae Lorg termr Viab hiy
statermert of how they have assessed the prospects
cf tve Group. over wnat period they mave done so a~d
vy ey considered that per od to be appropriate, and
they staterert asto wretner they nave a reasorabie
expectatcr tnattre Group v beableto cortirue
noperation and reet 1s liab tes astheyfa. due
over tre per od of the r assessment .nc ud ~gary
re‘ated dsclosures drawing attertiar {o any necessary
gua’ ficaticns or assurmpt ors

W 8.85C reg.red (e review the Long-teri Viab . ty

terrent set oot o page 47 ana 42 erderthe Lst g

cles Based o e above procedures we nave

orciudedirat the above d sciosuies are matena v

coms stertw tr e firgncia stater-erts ard our acdit

k~ow'edge

cdre
ater”

¥
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Jorwerk s ted 1o assess ~g inese Matters ~ {re
cortext of o~ vime krowledge acquired dar ~g our
fmarcia statemeisandt Aswiecanrotpredcetal
fture everts orcona t o7s and as sLbsequent eveis
Tayresdt roJcemestrat are reons stent witn

sedgemerts trat werereasorabe attne tme tney

wele ~ade t-e abserce of arytnirg toreport or t-ese
statermerts s "ol agearartec asiotre Groups ard
Corparys onger-terr v ab oty
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Corporate governance disclosures

We are required to perform procedures 1o ident fy
whetber there 1s a materia inconsistercy betweer the
Durectors’ cerporate governance disclosures and the
firancial statemnerts and our audit knowledge

Based or those procedures, we Rave corcluded that
each of tne following s materia’ly corsistent with the
financial statements and our aud t krowledge:

e Dveciors’ statement that they cors:der that the
arnual report and finarciai statemenits iaken as
awnocle s fair, balanced and understandab'e, and
provides the information necessary for sharenolders
tecassess Ine Group's position ard performance,
bus'ress model and strategy,

- the section of the annual repert descr:bing the wark of
the Audit Committee. includ'ng the sigmficartissues
that tre audit commrittee cors.dered in relat.on to
the financial statements, and "ow these issues were
addressed, and

+ the section of tre annual report that describes
the review of tne effectiveness of the Group’s rnisk
management arnd interna control systems

We are reguied to review the part of tne Corporate
Governance Staterent relating to the Group's
compharce with the provisions of tne UK Corporate
Governance Code specified by the Listing Rules for our
review We have notring to report 1 this respect

08 We have nothing to report on the other
matters on which we are required to report
by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required o report
toyo. finour oprion

adeguate accounting records have not been kept by
the parent Company, or retumns adequate for our aud't
have not been received from branches rot visited

by us, or

+ the parent Company financial statements and tne part
of the Directors” Remunerat-or Report to be aud ted
are rotin agreemert with the accounting records and
returns, ar

certain d'sclosures of D rectors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made. or

- we have notrecerved ali the nfarmat.on ard
explanations we require for our audit

We Fave nothing to report in these respects

Anmag Report & Accounts 2023

09 Respective Responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities

As expamned more fully nithe r statement set oLt

on page 66, the Directors are responsible for: the
preparatior of the financial statements ircluding being
satisfied that they give a true and fa't view: such interna
control as they determene s necessary to enable the
preparation of fmancial statements tnat are free from
materia! m'sstatement, wnether due to fraud or error,
assessing the Group and parent Comnpary's ghility 1o
continLe as a gaing corcer, disclosing. as app!icable,
matter s related to gong eoncern, and Jsing the go g
concern basis of accounting Lniess they e ther intend (o
iquidate the Group or the parent Cempany or to cease
operations, or have no reasstic aiterrative bat to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities

Our objectives are 1o obtain reasonab e assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whoie are
free from mater'al misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to 1ssue our opin o1 N an auditer's report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurarce,
but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with |SAs (UK) wiil always detect a material
musstatement wher it ex'sts Misstatements can arise
fromn fraud or error and are considered matenal if,
individualy or in aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected ta influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the financia statements

A ful er description. of our responsibilities is
provided on the FRC's website at wwwe frc org.uk/
aLditorsresponsibiities

The Compary 's required to include these finarcial
statements in ar annual financial report prepared using
the single electronic report ng format specified i1 the
T ESEF Reguration Tris additor's report provides no
assdrance over wretner the annual finarcial report nas
been prepared in accordarce with that format
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Independent auditor’s report
continued

10 The purpose of our audit work and to
whom we owe our responsibiiities

This report s made solely 1o the Company's members,
as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Cor-panes Act 2006 ard the terrs of our engagement
by the Company Oor atdt work has beer undertaker so
that we might state to the Company's members thcse
matters we are required to state io therr n an auditor s
report, and the further matters we are requ red 1o state
to ther™ naccordance with the terms agreed with

the Company ard for no other purpose To tne fulest
extent perritted by law we do not accept or assurme
resparsibility to anyone otrer thar the Company and the
Company's members, as a body, for our audit work for
this repert, or for the opimiors we have formed

Vo Wt LA

Philip Merchant (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP Statutory Auditor

KPMG

TF Proper:yr.oestmert Trust
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Group statement of comprehensive income

Year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 371 March 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital
Return Return Return Return Total
Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Income
Investment income 2 52,077 - 52,077 44170 - 44170
Other operating income 4 255 12 267 5 - 5
Gross rental income 3 3,513 - 3,513 2773 - 2773
Service charge income 3 946 - 946 1103 - 1103

(Losses)/gains on investmeants
held at fair value 10 - (549,430) (549,430) - 249,038 248038

Net moverment on foreign
exchange; investments
and loan notes - (2,780) {2,780) - 1,136 1136

Net movermnent on foreign
exchange, cash and cash

equivaients - 2,016 2,016 - 637 637
Net returns on contracts for

difference 10 9,462 (45,556) (_36,094) 5701 16,361 22,062
Total Income 66,253 (595,738) (529,485) 53,752 - 2067172 320924
Expenses

Managemment and performance

fees 5 {1,560) (4,680) {6,240) (1,663) (29,477) (31,140)
Direct property expenses, rent

payable and service charge costs 3 {1,660) - {1,660) (1,435) - (1,435)
Other administrative expenses 6 {1,163) (542) (1.705) (1,621 (608} (2.229)
Total aperating expenses ) (4383}  (5222) (9,605} (4,719} (30,085} (34,804}
Operating profit/{loss) 61,870 (600,960) {539,090) 46033 237,087 286,120
Finance costs ) 7 {1,146) (3,438) (4,584) (629} (1.886) {2515}
Profit/(loss) from operations

before tax 60,724 (604,398) (543,674) 48,404 235201 283,605
Taxation 8 (6,087) 2495 (3,592) (4,967) 3049 {(1918)
Total comprehensive income ) 54,637 (601,903) (547,266) 43437 238250 281687
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary

share g 17.22p (189.67)p  (172.45)p 13 69p 75.07p 88.76p

He Tona coumn of T s <iaterment represents the Group s Siztement of Comprenensive Incomie, prepared I @coGr0ance & 1N
K-aoopied intetztional acoount ng standa cs The Revsenue Return anc Cap e Retur o Umng 876 supp emeniany 1o tn s
i

|

et

and gre preperes Unger guh-dance pub shec by 1ie Ass0n aton of nvestment Compan es A tems 1 e above statemen:
der ve from continung operatans

“he Group cces ot 5.2 57y OTher RCome cr e
Comprenens e INcome’ s & sothe poflanc Cs

3 0

Aulmzome g a8t bulah 270 ne snarenoloe s oF e parent company

= motes Compages 80t Y04 formopart of thess
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Group and Company statement of changes in equity

Group

Share Capltal
Share Premium Redemption Retained
Capital Account Reserve Earnings
For the year ended 31 March 2023 Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,396,268 1,562,739
Total comprehensive Income - - - (547,266) (547,266)
Dividends paid 17 - - - (47,127) (47,127)
At 31 March 2023 79,338 43,162 43,971 801,875 968,346
Company
Share Capital
Shate Premium Redemption Retained
Capital Account Reserve Earnings
For the year ended 31 March 2023 Notes £000 £'000 £000 £300
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,396,268 1,562,739
Total comprehensive income - - - (547,266) (547,266)
Dividends pald 17 - B - - (47127  (47127)
At 31 March 2023 79,338 43,162 43,971 801,875 968,346
Group
Share Capital
Share Premium Redemption Retained
Capital Account Reserve Earnings Total
For the year ended 31 March 2022 Notes £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43162 43,971 1,158,962 1,326,433
Total comprehensive income - 281687 281,687
Dividends paid 17 ) - - (45381)  (45381)
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43162 43,971 1,396,268 1,562,739
Company
Share Capital
Share Premium Redemption Retained
Capital Account Reserve Earnings Total
For the year ended 31 March 2022 Notes £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43162 43871 1,159,862 1,326,433
Total comprehensive income 281,687 281,687
Dividends pald 17 (45,387} (45381)
At 31 March 2022 79338 431672 43,971 1,396,268 1,562,739

The notes from pages 80 1o 104 foriri part of these Fingaciz Statements

Annual Repor: & Accounts 2023
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Group and company balance sheets

Company Group Company
2023 2022 2022

MNotes £'000 £000 £'000

Non-current assets

Investments held at fair value 10 948,672 948,672 1,506,436 1.506 436
investments in subsidiaries 1 - 36,292 - 36,297 .
Investments held for sale 1o L - - _ 48,980 _ ABORG
948,672 984,964 1,555416 1,561,713
Deferred taxation asset 12 903 903 903 903
949,575 985,867 1,556,319 1562616
Current assets
Debtors 12 65,287 65,293 97673 97 208
Cash and cash equivalents B 36,071 36,069 32,109 32,107
101,358 101,362 129782 126,215
Current liabilities 13 (23,654) (59,950 (66,709} (101,939}
Net current assets 77,704 41,412 63673 27576
Total assets plus net current
assets/(liabilities) 1,027,279 1,027,279 3,619,892 1,619,892
Non-current hiabilities - 13 (58,933) _ (58933) (57,253) o (57.283)
Net assets 968346 968346 1562739 1,562,739

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 14 79,338 75338 79,338 79,338
Share premium agcount 15 43,162 43,162 437162 43162
Capital redemption reserve 5 43,971 43971 43,971 43971
Relained earmings 16 801,875 801875 1396268 1396268
Equity shareholders' funds 968,346 968,346 1,562,739 1,562,739
Net Asset Value per:

Ordinary share 19 305.13p 305.13p 492.43p 492.43p

Trese fnanc & statements sereappro.ed by e direntars oF TR Proper Ty nLeatment Trust plo rCompany No 84482 gne
: k arn:

author sed ‘ot ssue o 1 fune 2023

2D Watasn

D Watson

Director

Tre ~gtes fro pages 80 o 102 far part of these F ngac a Statererts
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Group and Company cash flow statements

Company Group Company
2023 2022 2022
£000 £000 £000
Reconciliation of profit from operations
before tax to net cash outflow from
operating activities
(Loss)/profit from operations before tax {543,674) (543,674) 283605 283,605
Finance costs 4,584 4,584 2,515 2,515
Losses/(gams) on investments and
derivatives held at fair value through profit
or loss 594,986 594,990 (265,399} {258,387}
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash
and cash equivalents and loan notes (336) {336) (977) (977)
Scrip dividends included n investment
income and net returns on contracts for
difference (6,325) (6,325) {10,839) (10,839}
Sale of Investments 448,587 448,587 544370 544,370
Purchase of investments (427,509) {427,509) {430,830} (430,8317)
{Increase)/decrease in prepayments and
accrued income (978) (978) 8 8
Decrease/(increase} in sales settlement
debtor 30,399 30,399 (3287M (32,871
increase in purchase settlernent creditor 3,172 3,172 5170 5170
Decrease In other debtors 1,419 1,413 2957 2,951
{Decrease)/increase in other creditors (22,265) (21,797) 13806 6.798
Net cashflow from operating activities
before interest and taxation 82,060 82,526 1115172 111,512
Interest pald (4,584) (4,584) (2,515) (2.515)
Taxation paid B ) _ (3,403) - {(3,869) {1,258) (1,258)
Net cashfiow from operating activities 74,073 74,073 107,739 107,735
Financing activities
Equity dividends paid 47,127) (47,127) (45,381) {45,381)
Repayment of loang ) ~ (25,000) _ (25,000) (60,000) {66,000
Net cashflow from financing activities_ (72,127) (72,127) {105,381} {105,381)
Increase in cash 1,946 1,946 2,358 2358
Cash and cash eguivalents at start of year 32,109 32,107 29114 29,112
Net movement on fareign exchange; cash
and cash equivaients 2,016 2,016 637 637
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 36,071 36,069 32,109 32107

The noies from pages 80 to 104 form part of these Financial Statements

Annual Rezort & Accounts 2023
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Notes to the financial statements

01 Accounting policies

“he fnancial statements for the year ended 31 Ma-ch 2023 nave been prepared on z going concer basis 11 accordance wth
JK-agopted intermationa: accounting stancards anc in conform Ty witn the requrements of the Companes Act 2006 Thefinancz
staternents have a'so been prepaed 1n accorgance with tneg Statemen: of Recommended Practice Financal Statements o
Investment Trust Companies anc Venture Cap’al Trus's {SORPN, 10 the extent t1al it s consistent with cK-aoopted inte nat anal
accounting standaras

1 assessng Gong Concern tne Boarc has made a detalled agsessment o° the atii'ty of the Comipanv ana the Group to meet
its hatulines as they fall due, 1Inciucing stress ana hicuidity tests wnich cons cered the efects of substanual fa ls in nvestment
valuations, revenues rece vec and market lguidity as the global economy contimues to sufer disruption due o inflationary
pressures, the war 1n Ukraine anc the after-effects of the COV'D-19 pandemic

In light of the testing carr ed out, the licu 6 ty of the -evel T assets held by 1he Company and the s gnificant net asset veiue,
and the net current asset position of the Sroup &nd Parent Company, the Jrectors are satisfied tnat tme Company ang
aroup nave adecuale financizl resources to cont.nue .1 operztion for at'east tne next 12 months ‘ollow ng e s gning of
e financig’ siatements and inetefore ts appropriate to adopt the go'ng toncern basis of accountng

The Group and Company financial statements g-e expressec n ster’ 1g, wnich 18 1neir functional and presentational
curency Sterling 1s the functional currency because it s the currency of tne primary economic envronment 1 wn.c7the
Group operates Values ge rounced 1o the nearest thousand pounds [£'000) except where otherwse indicatec

Key estimates and judgements

T ne preparation of the fingncial statements necessar’y recuires he exercise of judgermient. bothin agpphcaucn of
cocounting policies, which ae set out below, anc -1 te select on of assumpuicns used n the ca culat on of estimates

These estmates and Judgemeﬁts are reviewed on anongoing bas's ana are continually evawsted bhased on histoncal

experience anc othe” “actors Fowever, actual resulis may lefe ‘rom these estimates The only <ey estimiate

15 cons de"ed to be the valuation of iInvestment gropert es See sect onifiof th s note There a'e not cons dered

to be any key jJuccements

a) Basis of consolidation

The Group financ.al statements consol-cate the fingncia. statements of the Company ana s subs d ares 1o 31 Ma'ch
2023 Altne subsicianies of tne Company have been conso dstec inthese financizl statements 1 acco-dence with
IFRS10 the Company has been des.gnatec gs an nvestmen: entity on the hasis that

+ It obtalis fundgs from investors and provices these nyesiors @atn investment management servizes,

<1t commits toots investors tngtits bus ness purpese s o nvest funcs sokely for returns from capia, appreciation and
‘nyestiment ncome. and

+ tmeasures and evauztes per‘ormance of subsiant e yall of its1nvesimenis on 2 fair va ue basis
P ¥

Fach of e subs car es of the Company was estab.shec for the so'e purpose of operating o suppo-ung the nvestmen:
operstions of the Company (N ud.ng rassing addr ona fnancing:, nnc ws 1ot tseif avnvestment entity 'FRE 10 sets cut
that 'n the case of cotro ed entit es that support the investmen: v of tne Investment ent iy, TNoSE ent nes snould be
consonceted ratner tnan presentec 25 nvestments &) fa - value Ace acly 1ne Compeany Nas conso dztec e resu ts
anc fingncia posit 01s of those subsiaianies

Subsidanes gre consolaated fam tne date of their acguis © on. be 1g Tne aate on whran the Cempany obta ns contol, anc

soninue 1o he consol aatea Ut - the cate tat such conto! ceases The fInanc & statemens of subsidanes used in the
preparalion of the consol'dated f nancia statements ave basec 01 CONS stent accounting polioies Al 1a-group baances enc
T"&MSaCT ON8, T UCIng untes 1set profis ans ngerefam, are el minated
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Accounling policies )
c) Expenses

Al expenses and finance costs are accounted “o7 an an accruais basis. An analys's of retained earmings broken down into
revenue and cap ta:items s given i ote 16 naTiving at this breakdown, expenses have been presented asrevenue
items except as fo lows.

* Expenses which are nordenta to the acguisi on or d sposal of an investmens,

' Expenses are presenied as capital where a connection with the maimtenance or enhancement of the vaue of the
“wesiments can be demonstrates. tis inc udes irrecoverable VAT incur-ed on costs relating to 1he extens.on of
residential eases as premums recervea for extending or terminating leases are recognisec 10 the capital account

- One quarter of tne base management lve s charged Lo revenug, w th Thiree cuarters a 'ocelec 1o capital return to reflec:
the Board's expectat.ens of ong term imvestmen: returns Al performance fees are chargea to capte returm,

+ The func adm ristration, depositary, custody and company secretanal serv ces are cnarged directly to the Company and
are incluced wthin 'Other adm msirative expenses 10 note 6 Trese expenses are charged on the same basis as the base
management fee, one quarter 1o income and three quariers o capital

d) Finance costs

Tnefinanze costin respec: of capital nstruments other than equity shares is calcu ated 50 a5 10 give a consiant rate
o return on t1e outstand ng balance. One quarter of the finance cost is charged to revenue and three quarters to
capita retumn.

e} Taxation

Current tax assets anc habil'ties are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authortes, basec on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substanuve y enacted by the balance sheet date

ncome tax s cnarged or credited airectly to eguity 1If 1t relates o items that are credited or chargec to ecuity
Otherwise Income tax s recogrised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive income.

Tae tax effect of different items of expenditure 1s akocated between capita. and revenue us'ng the Group's effective rate
of 1ax for the vear. The charge for taxation is hased on the profit for the year ang takes into accoun taxation deferred
hecause of temporary differences between the teatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purpeses

In accordance wth the recommendations of the SORP the allocat'on method used to calculate tax relie® on expenses
presented against capital returns in the supplementary Informaticn n the Statement of Comprehens’ve income 's the
‘marginai bas:s” Under s bas’s, if taxable ncome s capabie of being offset entirely by exgenses presented in the
revenue return column of the Statement of Comprehensive ncome, then no tax relief is transferred 1o the capita: column

Defer-ed tax is the tax expecied 10 be pavable or recaverable on differences between the carying amounts of assets
and lab |.ties inthe Balance Sheet and the coresponding tax bases used 17 the computation of 1axable prof 1, and s
accounted for using the ba.ance sheet | abiity method. Deferrec tax liabilit'es are recognised for a. taxab e temporary
differences and deferrec tax assets are recogn'sed 10 the extent that it is probab-e that taxable profits wili be available
agalnstwhich deduc: ble temporary differences can be ut'lised.

The Company 1s a0 mvestment t-ust under s 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 ang, as such, 15 1ot habie for tax on
caprral gams Capital gains ans ng Iin subsidiary companies are subject 1o capia. gains tax

f) Investment property

Investment propanty 1s measured initally at cost cluding transact.on costs. Transaction costs nclude transfer taxes,
profess’onal fees “or legal services and intial ieasing comm ssions to bring tnhe property tohe condimion necessary for
1110 be capabie of operating The carrying amount also includes the cost of replacing part of an existing invesiment
property at the time trat cost is nourred ©* the “ecogition critenia are met The purchase and sale o properties
recognised 10 be effectec on the cate uncondimional contracts are exchanged

Subseqguent to inimal recognition. investment property 1s statec at fair value CGains or losses ansing fram changes in the
fair values are included n the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which they arise

investment property s derecognised when it has been disposed of or permanenty witharawn from use and no future
economic henefis 1s expectec from its d'sposal Any gains or osses on the retirement or disposal of vestment property
are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income m the vear of aisposal

Gans or losses on the dsposal of investmen: property are cetermined as the difference hetween net cisposal preceeds
and the carrying value of the asset at the gate of disposal

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carres 18 nvestmen? propert’es at ‘air value in accordance vath (FRS 13, revaised twice g vear, wih cnanges
1 fair va ues being recognised nthe Group Statement of Comprenensive ncome The Group engagec £n ght ~rank as
ndepencent valuation speciausts to determime fas value as at 31 March 2023
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

a1

o0

[RW]

Accounting policies

valuations of investment properties

Deterrmination of the fair value of invesiment properties nas been pregarec on the basie cefinec by the RICS Valuation -
Ciobal Standards (The Red 3ook Globe Stangards) s “oliows

"The estimatea amount for whicn a propecty should exchange on e agate of vaiuaion between z w i ng buyer and a
woling seter inan arm’s length transacton afier proper marketing wesein the paries hac eacn acted kncwleageably,
prudently and without compu' sien”

The va'uation takes inte account future cash flow from assets (sucn as 1iettings, tenants' prof es, ‘uture revenue streams,
capital values of fixtures end fittings, p ant and machinery, any envi-anmentd’ matters anc the overall ~epa r and condion
of the property) and discount rates zpphcable *o those assels ~nese assumptions are basec on 'ocal market concrions
existing a1 the balance sneet date

M arrving &t their estimates of fair values as a2 31 Marcn 2023, the va'ue s Mave uset therr market k1owiedge and
pro* essqu\ judgement ana have not anly “eliec solely on v stonca transaciiona. comparables Examp es of inputsto tne
valuzt on can be seen in tne sensit vity analys-s cisclosed 1 ricte 10 (e

Hela for szle investmen? are presented separate y on ine face of the Balance Sheet

Held for sale

Imvestment property classifiea as neld for sa e 13 measurea “a - vaiue

Tnscendtion g regarded as met onty wnern the Invesiment property s avelabe for mmeciate sale .n 18 present
condrtion anc the sale s n ¢hly probable

Managernent must Ce comm-tted to a plan for sae vw'th an actve programme todentify a buyer at a reasonab e price n
celation to s fair value which should be expected te cug fy ‘or recognit onas a comipleted saie witin one vear from tie
date o class fication

Rental income
Rental mcome recevabie under operai ng eases s recaognsed 0N & straignt- ne basis over the term ot tne ease, except
for contngent rental Income whicn1s recognisen wnen 1« arses.

Incentives “0° essees 1o enter iNto lease agreements or ather negoniated -ent free pe- cus agreed are spread even v aver
tmelease term, even it the payments are "ot made on such a bazis. “he legse tenm s the non-cancellable penad of the
lease together with anv Tfurther term for wnch the tenant has 17€ Opt on 1o cont nue the ease, where atthe mcept o1 of
the lease the d rectors are reascenably certain that 1ne tenant o exercise that opt.on Premuums received 1o Termuingte or
exiend leazes are recognisea nthe capital account of the Group Statemen: of Comprehens ve ‘ncome when they ar se

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants

income a7 si0g from expenses rechargec Lo tenants s recagnised nithe penod nswhicn the expense can be contrectua v
“ecovered Service cnatges and oiner suchreceipts arenc.uded gross o the re “‘ed osis 1IN revenue as the directors
cons der thal tne Group acis esprinc pa ntn s respect

g) Investiments

Viien g ;_,ur(,hese 0" ga:@ '3 mage uncer corttact the terms o winizn reguire ceiivery watn nthe wmerame g7 e “e'evan:
marke?, the nyestments concened are "ecogn sed or 2eecogn sed on the rade date

[t1e Group's nvesiments a e cef nec unce” “RS as invesimenls ¢
4 80 aescr bed fal tnege Inanc al Stalements 28 vesTMeEnts NE ¢ &?

Almeestmenis a7e ces gnated Upon
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Accounting policies -

Derivatives continued
CFDs are syrthetic equities and are valuad by reference 1o e ‘nvestrments’ undenying market vaiues,

“he sources of the returns under tne dervative contract te g notional dividends, “nancing costs, interest returns and
capita. cnanges) are allocated to the *evenue and capita. accounts in alignment with the nature of tne under y ng source
of income and In aczordance with the gudance givenin *he AIC SORP Notona div dend mcome or expenses arnsing on
long or snort pas-tions & e appartioned whol y 10 the revenue account Notionai interest expense on long pesitions is
apportioned between revenue and capital in accordance w.th the Board's long fenm expecied returns of the Company
rcurrently determined to be 75% 1o the revenue account and 75% 1o capital reserves!. Changes in value "e'ating o
underlying price maovernents of zecurit.es nreiation 1o CFD expesures are allocatec wholiy to capital reserves.

h) Borrowings, loan notes and debentures

All'oans and debentures ave initia 'y "ecogrisec at the fair value of the considerai-on rece ved, less ssue costs wnere
applicable Afteminitial recognition, a'l inzerest beanng loans ana borrowings are subsequent y measured at amortised
cost Amortised cost s calculated by taking nto account any ¢ scount or premium an settiement T1e costs of arrangng
any interest bearng lnans are capitalised anc amort sed over the [.fe of the [oan on an effective interest rate basis

i} Foreign currency translation
Transactions involving foreign currencies are converted at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction

Fore gn currency monetary assets and | abilities are translated into ste= ng at the rate “u ng on the balance sheet date
Foreign exchange differences are recogn.sed :n the Group Statement of Comprehensive 'ncome

j) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost and comprise cash in hane and demand deposits
k) Dividends payable to shareholders

ntenrm dividends are recognised 1n the perodg in which they a“e paid ana fina’ div-dends are recognised when approved
by shareholders

I) Adoption of new and revised Standards

Standards and interpretations effective in the current period
The accounting policies adopted are consistent w:th tnose of the previous consolidated fnancial statements

Tnere were no amendments to International Financial Reporting Standards or interpretations that had an effect during the perod

Early adoption of standards and interpretations

Tne standards issued before the reporting daie that become effective after 317 March 2023 are not expected to have

a matenal effect on equity or profit “o- the subsequent period The Group has not early adopted any new Internatianal
Fancial Reporting Standard or Interpretat-on Stangards, amendments anc aterpretations issued but not yet efective up
to the dete of issuance of 7ne Group's financial statements are ‘isted helow

A2 1 Amendments - Classification of Lighinties as Current or Non-Current (effective cate amenaed t0 1 January 2023).
The amencments specfy the recuirements for ¢ assify ng iabilities as cur-ent or non-current Thne amendments are not
expectec to have a matenal impact on the Group's financial statements

IAS 1T Amendments - Disciosure o Accountig Policies (effective 1 danuary 2023) The amendments “equire an ent'ty 1o
disclose 'ts matenat accounting poiicy infarmaton nstead of its sign'f cant account'ng poiicies The amendments contain
gudance and examples on icentifying matenal accounting policy in‘ormation

IAS 8 Amendments - Def 11 Lion of Accounting Zstimates leffective T January 2023) The amendments def.ne accounting
estimates as ‘monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty’ The amendiments
alsa clanify the interaction between an account ng policy and an accounting esumate.

IAS 12 Amendments - Deferred Tax relatec 1o Assets and Liab ™ t'es ar'sing ‘rom a Single Transaction (effective 7 January
2023) The amendments mequire entities w.ih certam assels o tecogrise de‘errec tax on particular transactons that, on
‘nitial recogrition, give rise 12 equal amounts o 1axable anc deductib.e tempaora-y aifferences

'AS 1T Amendments - Non-current Liabilities with Covenaniseffective 1 January 20247 The amencements requre disc.ose
of information when 1ere s a - gt Lo de'er sett ement of 2 nabilty for at lzast twelve months
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

02 investment income

Dividends from UK listed investments
Dividends from overseas listed investments
Scrip dividends from histed investments

03 Netrental income

Gross rental income

Service charge income

Direct property expenses, rent payatile ana service charge costs

Operating leases
The GfOup g8 enterec Nto CcomMmMecia  eas

o
terms between b and 15 vears andnciucde ¢'a

o
prevalling ma-ket conditions Some 'eases cont

Future minimum renta s under non-cancellab e operating

within 1 year
After 1 year but not more than & years

More than S years

04 Other gperating income

Interest receivable
Interest on refund of overseas withholding tax

Income received to capital

e8]
[N

[

2023
£'000

3,084
30,891
6,325

52,077

2023
£000

3,513

(1,660)

31 Macnare as follows

2023
£'000

2,900
9,900
14,150
26,950

2023
£000
255

12
267

a7

2,799

on tspropesty pertfone Commers a property leases Ty
Uses to enab e penoc.c upweara revsion of thererta cnar
anoptions 1o hreak before tne end of the lease term

2022
£'000
3,101

21,349
10693
9027

44170

2022
£'000
2,773
1103
(1.435)
2,441

w

on
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05 Management and performance fees

- 2023 2023 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue
£'000 £000 £'000

Management fee 1,560 4,680 6,240 1,663

Performance fee - - -
1,560 4,680 6,240 1,663

2022 2022
Capital Total
£'000 £000
4988 6651
24,489 24,489
29477 31,140

A summary of the terms of the management agreement is given in the Report of the Directors on page £/,

Under the terms of this agreement the manager is not entitled to a performance fee for the year to 37 March 2023

06 Other administrative expenses

2023
£000

Directors’ fees (Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 63 to 65) 228
Auditor's remuneration:

- for audit of the consolidated and parent company financial

statements 97
Legal fees 1
Taxation fees 90
Other administrative expenses 187
COther expenses 532
Irrecoverable VAT S ) i 28
Expenses charged to Revenue 1,163
Expenses charged to Capital S o » 542
1,705

2022
£'000

220

Other acministrative expenses nclude depositary, custocy and company secretanal services These expenses are
charged on the same bas's as the base managemen: feg, 25% to income and 75% to captal Total other administrative

expenses chargec ta both income and cap tal are £721.000 (2022 £8C7,0C0)

Other expenses inciude broker fees marketing ana PR costs, Directors’ National Insurance anc recruitment. Reg:sirass
anc hstng fees, and annual repor: anc other publication printing and dist-bution costs These expenses are charged

solely ~o the revenue account

Annug Report & Accounts 2073
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

07 Finance costs

2023 2022
£000 £000

Loan notes, bank loans and overdrafts repavable within 1 year 3,189 1,162

Loan notes repayable between 2 - 5 years 837 814
Loan notes repayable after 5 years . 558 . 539
4,584 2,515
Amount allocated to Capital o - (3,4_3_8)_ {1.,886)
Amount allocated 1o Revenue o 1,146 629

08 Taxation

a) Analysis of charge in the year

2023 plive 2022 2022 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000

UK corporation tax at 19%

(2022 19%) 4,221 (3,521) 700 2,832 (2832}

Overseas taxation 2,148 1,026 3,174 2,135 - 2735
6,369 (2,495) 3,874 4967 (2,832} 2135

Qver provision inrespect of prior

years (282} T (282) ; ’ )
6,087 (2,495) 3,592 4967 (2,832} 2135

Deferred taxation - - - - (217} (217

Current tax charge for the year 6,087 (2,495) 3,592 4,567 (3,049} 1918

[=8)
[
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08B Taxation

b} Factors affecting total tax charge for the year

The tax assessed far the year 15 iowe (2022 lower) than the standard rate of corporauon tax in the JK for a

company of 1972022 1G% ]
The difference s explainec below

2023 2023 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue
£'000 £000 £'000

Net profit/(loss) cn ordinary

activities before taxation 60,724  (604,398) (543,674) 43404
Corporation tax charge at 19%

(2022:19%) 11,538  (114,836)  (103,298) 9,197
Effects of:

Non taxable logses/(gains) on

investments - 104,392 104,392

Currency movements not taxable - 145 145

Tax relief on expenses charged to

capital - (1,878) (t,878)

Non-taxable returns - 8,656 8,656

Non-taxable UK dividends (586) - (586) (603)
Non-taxable overseas dividends (6,791} - (6,791} {5810}
Overseas withhgiding taxes 2,148 1,026 3,174 2,135

Deferred tax movermnent - - -

Over provision in respect of prior

years (282) - (282)

Cisallowable expenses 131 - 131 26

Ceferred tax not provided (71) - {71) 22
6,087 (2,495) 3,592 4967

c) Provision for deferred taxation
The amounts for deferred taxation provided at 25% {2022, 25%) comprise

Group
2023 2022
Revenue Revenue
£'000 £000
Unutilised losses carried forward - (903) (903)
Shown as.
Deferred tax asset - {903) (903)
Company 2023 2023 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue
£000 £'000 £000
Unutilised losses carried forward _ - (903) (903}
Shown as:
Deferred tax asset - (903) (903)

Anrual Report & Accounts 20073

2022
Capital
£'000

235,201

44,688

(47317
(337)

3243
(3.109)

(217)

{3,049)

2022
Capital
£000

{903)

{903)

2022
Capital
£'000

(903)

(903)

2022
Tota!
£'000

083,605

53,885

(47.317)
(337)

3,243
(3,709)
(603)
(5810)
2,135
(217}

26
22
1,818

2022
Total
£000

(903)
(903)

2022
Total
£'000

(903)

(903}
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

08 Taxation

09

[on]

[he)

¢) Provision for deferred taxation continued

The movement in provision in the year is as foliows:

Group 2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Provision at the start of the year - (903) (903) - (686) (686)
Unutllised losses carried forward - - - - (217 (217)
Provision at the end of the year - (903) (903} - (903) (903)
Company
2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Provision at the start of the year - (903) (903) - (686} (686}
Unutilised losses carned forward - - - - (277) (217)
Provision at the end of the year - (903) (903) - (963) (903}

The Group has not recognised defer-ed 1ax assets of £5601.017 (2022 £8,0C7769) ansing as a resu't of osses carmed
forward. s cons.cered 100 uncertain *hat the Group vl generate profits 1 the relevant rompanies that the osses woud be
avalable to o'fser against anc, 01 tis bas s, the deferred tax asset nrespect of INese expenses has not heen recogn sed
Jue 1o tne Company's sTatus as an 1mvestiment Trust company and the tention 1o conunue meet.ng the conditions
required to obtain approval for the foreseeab e “uture, the Company has not providec deferred tax on any capital gans
ansing o0 the evaluat on or dsposal of investiments

Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share

The earnings per Ordinary share can be analysed between revende and capital. as below.

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

£'060 £000

Net revenue profit 54,637 43 437
Net capital profit (601,903) 238250
Nettotalproft (547,266) 281687
Weighted average number of shares in 1ssue during the year 317,350,980 317 350,280
Revenue earnings per share 17.22 ©3.68
Capital earmings per share (189.67) 75.07
Earnings per share . (172.45) 8876

The Group has no securities ir issue that could dilute the returr per share Therefore the basic and druted return per share
are the same

TR Proper: ¢ Ireestrent Trus:




10 Investments held at fair value

a) Analysis of investments

Company Group Company

2023 2022 2022

£000 £'000 £000

Listed in the United Kingdom 383,303 383,303 516,076 516,076

Unlisted in the United Kingdom 2,573 2,573 2,341 2,347

Listed Overseas 488,839 488,839 G40,744 940744

Investment properties 73,957 73,957 47,275 47275

Investments held for sale - - - 48,980 ) 48980

Investments held at fair value 948,672 948,672 1555476 1,555416
Investments in subsidiaries

at fair value ) - B 36,292 - 36,297

948,672 984964 1555416 1591713

Investments hetd for sale. mixed use property, the Colonnades, London, W2, was under offer at 31 March 2022 with a
sale expected to compiete by the end of June 2022, Ultimately, the residential element of the Colonnades was sold and a
decision was made to retain the commercial element for the foreseeable future. There are no investments held for sale as
at 31 March 2023.

b) Business segment reporting

Gross Gross

Valuation Net Net Valuation revenue revenue

31 March  additions/ appreciation/ [EEEIRE ) 31 March 31 March

2022 (disposals) {depreciation} 2023 2023 2022

£000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Listed investrments 1,456,820 {52,597) (532,087} 872,142 51,450 43775
Unlisted invesiments 2,341 - 232 2,573 627 395
Contracts for difference 7,657 42561 (45,556} 4662 9,462 5,701
Total investments segment 1466818 {10,030) (577.417) 879,377 61,539 49871
Direct property segrment 96,255 (4723) (17,575) 73,957 4,459 3876
1,563,073 {(14,753)  (594986) 953334 65,998 53,747

I seeking ic acnieve (s mvestment objective, the Company invests 'n the shares anc securities of property companies
and property related businesses internat onally and 1so inmvestment prope-ty located intie UK The Company
therefore considers that there are two distingt reporting segments, investments and direct property, which are used

for eva uat ng perfermance and allocation of resources 7he Board, which is the prncipal decision maker. rece'ves
information on the Two segments on a ~egular basis. Whilst revenue streams and cirect property costs can be attnibutec
to the reporting secments, general adminisirat ve expenses cannot be split to allow @ profit for eacn segmen: to be
cetermimed Tne assets anc gross revenues for each segment are shown above

The property cozts Inctuded wthin note 3 are £1.660,000 (2077 £1,435,00C) anc deducting these costs fram the crrect
property gross revenue above wou'd result mnet ncome of £2.799,000 12022 £2.441.06C for te direct prope-ty
reporting segment

Annua’ Repor & Accourts 2023 80

MIINIBAD

wodar mbaens

FBUIDADD

SRS [Buty

3INso|2sIp GW4IY pue AlESsopn

IOV JO 33ll0N

UONRULIOMI SDPIOYBIRYS



Notes to the financial statements
continued

10

[ke)
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Investments held at fair value

c) Geographical segment reporting

Gross Gross
Valuation Net W= Valuation revenue revenue
31 March  additions/ appreciation/ SEECIETEY] 31 March 31 March
2022 (disposals) (depreciation) 2023 2023 2022
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
UK listed equities and convertibles 516,076 46,351 (179164) 383,303 15,941 11,737
UK unlisted equities 2341 - 232 2,573 395 395
UK direct property’ 96,255 (4,723) (17,575) 73,957 4,459 3,876
Continental Eurppean listed eguities 940,744 (58,982) (352.923) 488,839 35,741 32,044
1,555,416 (57,314) (548430} 948,672 56,536 48,046
UK contracts for difference? 1,627 31,268 (33831 (936) 3,425 1616
European cortracts for difference? 6,030 11,293 (11.725) 5,598 6,037 4085
1,563,073 (14,753} (594,986) 953,334 65,998 53747

inciudea nthe above figures ave purchase costs of £881.000 ;2822 ££80.000 ano sa es costs of £238.000 {2022

£25% 000;

These comprise mainly sl@amp quty ana commission

“he Compam\, receivec £512.155002 (2022 £544,082 0CC; from nvesimen's, mc\udmc drect property, goldin the

year The boox cost of these imvestments when they were purchased was ££12.279,000 (2022 £356,428.000; Thnese

rvesimen:s have been “eve.ued over ime and unt. they were sold any unreglised gans: osses were ihcluced .nthe fa -

value of the mvestments

! Net ecdit onss/idisposea.siincludes £48C 00012322 £386000: oF cap “al expenciture Net appreciztionsidepres 2400!
mcludes amounts i respect of rent free pernicas

*  Grossrevenue ‘or contacts for gifference reiates to crvidoncs recewvable onanex o cend basig, on the uncerly g
postonsneld The appreciationsiceprec 2o in CEDs re ates 1o the movernent 1 farr vaiue in the year

The deprec at.on nthe TRS relztes to tne movement 11 fair vaiue 11 2he yeas untl matur ty

d) Substantial share interests

The Creup he cinterests n 3+ ormereof ey cass of ceprta n b compenes (25022 2 compan-es: inwmch im nvests
None of Tese nvestments s consideres signf cant 1 the context of tnese Tancai statemients See note 21 onpeages 102
=1d 124 Yo furtner detads of subsidiary invesiments

e} Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

F nancaizssets ganc fanciell abihties a7e car-ec i the Ba:ance Sneeterner 27 tner far va we anvestments) ¢ th
ba-ance shee amount 12 a reasanakle approx mat o7 of ‘e rvalue “due from trocers, div cends anc intetest rece v
due to bro<e s, zcoruans #nd cash at bane

—

W
o T
~

Fair value hierarchy disclosures

ceioTe s

411

Leve- T vz U US NG CUQTEC pUCes 1 271 a0t v Marker "o centle assels
_e.e' 7 - s dec by eference 1o vz UugT o0 teCTN.QuUes UsINg chsenvabe MpLis otnes then cuotes prices ot T _eLe ]
_eve Z-iauedtby eferente 10 .a Latontecnn cues us g Npuis thals'e ~ot basen o obser.eb e

AL 3 U0 Tennt Cues USen Ty 1ne Grolp ate ex
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10 investments heid at fair value

e) Fair value of financial assets and financiat liabilities continued
Tne tabie below sets out farr va ue measurements using IFRZ 13 fair value h'erachy

w
Financial assets/(liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss o
1]
Q,
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 3
At 31 March 2023 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 3
) ) 2
Equity investments 861,611 10,531 2,573 874,715
Investment properties - - 73,957 73,857
Contracts for difference - 4,662 - 4,662
Foreign exchange forward contracts - (3s6) R (386)
o o 861,611 14807 76530 952,948 &
g
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totat
Al 31 March 2022 £000 £000 £000 £000
Equity investments 1,456,820 - 2341 1,459,161
Investment properties - - 96,255 96,255
Contracts for difference - 7657 - 7.657
Foreign exchange forward confracts - 273 - 2736 3
. S - 1,456,820 10393 98590 o 1.565809 é
The 1able above represents tne Group e fair va ue hierarchy The Company's fair value hherarchy s icentica’ except for the §
nciusion of the fa.r value of the investment in subsidiaries which at 31 March 2023 was £36,292,000 (2022 £36.287,000) 3
These have been categorised a5 level 3 in botn years. The movement inthe year of £5000 (2022: £7.0150C0% is )
w

the change n “air valuein the year The total financial assets at fair va ue for the Company at 31 March 2022 was
£4984,964,060 (2022 £1,591,713,0001.

Reconciliation of mavements in financial assets categorised as level 3

@
31 March appreciation / IR EIG L ]
2022 Purchases Sales (Depreciation) 2023 2
At 31 March 2023 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £
o . o o I >
Unlisted equity investments o 2,341 - - 232 2,573 =
Investment properties ;
~ Mixed use 48187 387 (5,203) (6,746) 36,625 §7
[~
- Office & Industrial 48,068 93 - (10,829) 37,332 o
96,255 480 (5,203) {17.575) 73,957 =
- > vk . =z
) 98,596 480 (5,203) {17,343) 76,530 &
Q
All appreciation ‘{depreciation) as statea ahove 1eiates to movemens 11 fair value of unhsted equity investments and x
investment properties held gt 31 March 2023 =
The Group neld one uncuoted mvestment at the year end (see 11 & overleaf)
Transfers between hierarchy levels
There were no transfers cunng the vear between any of the evels
o
g
@
=
Y
5
)
3
ES
5
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Notes to the financial statements
continued
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11

Investments heid at fair value

Sensitivity information for Investment Property Valuations
The s'gnificant unabservable inputs used N the “ar vaiue measurement categor sed w thin Level 3 of the fair value
aerarchy of nvestmen: properties are

- Cstmated renta’ value £7 3 -165 per sg (12022 £6.5-£65)
- Capnaisatonrates. 3 0% - € 0412022 20 -6 0%}

Significant \ncreases idec-eases) in s matec rental value anc rent growtiimisolation woula resu tin a significantiy
higher (lower} fair value measu-ement. A s gn fican: mcrease (decrease) In ong-term vacancy rate Inisolation wou d
resuit ima signfoanty ower (hrgher! fair value measurement.

There are Imierelationships between the yewds anc rental values as ey are partiaay ceterm ned by ma-<etrate
condit on The senstivity of the valuation to changes .1 the most signifcant inputs per ciass of investment property ave
shown be.ow

Estimated movement in fair value of

investment properties at 31 March Industriat

2023 arising from £'000

Increase inrental value 5.0% 289 1,732 - 2,001
Decrease inrental value 5 0% _ (289) (1,712) ) - _(2,001)
Increase in Yield 0.5% (3.538) (3,466) - {7,004)
Decrease in Yield 0.5% 4,343 ) 4,261 ) - 8,604
Estimated movement in fair value of Office &

investment properties at 31 March Retail Industrial Other Total
2022 arising from £000 £000 £000 £000
Increaseinrental value by 5% 306 2266 145 2,717
Decrease in rentai value by 5% B (284) (2.266) i (2560
Increase inyeld by 0.5% (3.865) {6.343) {832) (11.040}
Decrease nyield by 0 5% - 4841 o 711 1100 14,653

Ne mpaltment .0sses have heen recogrised as a7 371 Margn 2023

Financia!l instruments

Risk management policies and procedures
Tne Croup nvests i ecwties 21d other imstruments for the ongermin e pursu tof tne nvesiment Ob ective set out
onpage 33 Tne Group 1S exposec *0 a varely 0° 7.5KS That cou C tesu T i aither 2 “ecuct 07 or anincease intne profts
zvarab'e for costnbuton by way of 2videndas

Tnepricpa ns<s e Group fates nis portoio mansgement 20T vlies e
< Market gk LOmpr s Mg ETIIEe rer ey T sk ans inierest rate gL
s Laudyrs«

Creotrak

The 'Mang
TNTOUCTIDUT e

nCopreoesses for mraneg

aor

TP Property Inyestment frast



Financial instruments

11.1 Matket price risk
By the very nature of its act vities, the Group s nvestments are expogec 1o market price fluctuations

Management of the risk
The Manager runs a & versified portfolio and reports 1o the Board on the portfolio activ'ty and performance at each Board
meeting ~he Board manrors e investment activity anc strategy to ensure t1s compat be wth the stated ob,ect ves

The Group's exposure 1o changes in market prices on 118 quoted equ.ty nvestments, CFDs and investment progerty
portfoho, was as folhows.

2023 2022

£0800 £'000

investments held at fair value 948,672 1,555,416
134,906 144,642

CFD long gross exposure

Concentration of exposure to price risks

As setout in the Investmen: Policies on page 34, there are guide ines o the amount of exposure 1o & snge company,
geographical region or direct property These guidelines ensure an appropriate spread of exposute to incviduai or sector
price nsks As an investment company cecicated to nvestment in the property sector, the Group 1s exposed to price
movements across 1ne property asset class as a whole,

Price risk sensitivity

The fol'owing 1able llustrates the sensitivity of the profit after taxation for the year anc the vaiue o sharehaicers’ funds to
an increase or decrease of 15% 1n the far vaues o the CGroup's eguity, fixed interest, CI 2 and ¢ rect property Investments.
The leve of change s consistent witn the illustration shown 1 the previous year " he senstivity is based on the Croup's
equity, fixeq nterest, CFC and direct property exposure at each balance sheet date, with al other vanab es held constant

2023 2023 2022 2022
{ncrease Decrease Increase Decrease
in fair value in fair value in fair value in fair value
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Statement o_f"Coﬁwpreheﬁswe ” 7
Incorme — profit after tax
Revenue return 7N 71 (115) 115
Capital return o 142,826 (142,826) 234,176 (234,176)
Change to the profit after tax for the
year/shareholders’ funds 142,755 (142,755) 234,061 (234.0867)
Change 1o total earnings per Ordinary
Share 44 98p (44.98)p 7375p (73.75)p

11.2 Currency risk

Aproportion of the Group's portfolio s invested In oversess securit'es anc thei- sterling value can be significantly affected

by movements in foreign excnange rates

Management of the risk

Tne Boare receves a report at each Board meeting on the proportion of the investmen: portfo.o held in sterling,
furos of otver currencies The Group may sometimes hedge foreign currency movements putside the Eurozone by
funding mvestrments noverseas securties with unsecurec loans denaominated nthe same currency or through

forward currency contracts

Cash deposns are held nster ¢ anc. or Euro genominated accounts

ArnualReport & Accounts 2023
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

11

Financial instruments

Foreign currency exposure

At the reporting date the Group had the fallowing exposure:
{sterling has been shown for reference)

Currency

Sterling

Euro

Swedish Krona
Other

2023

34.0%
42.0%
14.0%
10.0%

2022

34,07%

42.0%

16.0%
80%

The foliovang table sets out ine Group's total exposure to foreign cuirency risk anc tne net exposu-e to foreign currencies

of the ne: maonetary assets and nabilities

Sterling

2023 £'000

Receivables (d'ue from brokers,

dividends and other income recaivable) 16,534
Cash at bank and on deposit 8,226
Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafts {10,000)
Payables (due to brokers, accruals and
other creditors) {10,573)
FX forwards i (118,592)
Total foreign currency exposure on net
monetary items (120,405)
Investments held at fair value 459,832
Non-current agsets 903
Non-current Liablilities B (15,000}
Total currency exposure 325,330
Sterling
2022 £000
Recewab@egu(_dhe from brokers, S
dividends and other incorne receivaule) 53,912
Cash at bank and on deposit 20,341
Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafts {35,000}
Payables (due to brokers, accrua s and
other creditors) (25,642}
Fx forwards (83.280)
Total foreign currency exposure on net
monetary iterms {74,669}
Investments held at fair value 614,672
Non-current assets Q03
Non-current habil:ties (15000}
Total currency exposure 525906

Foreign currency sensitivity
“mefo owinglabledusirates e sens L Ty

escnance "gtes for ster ngrEuro Ena stETong S

Tassumes TNe o 10w Ng Shanges n exTNange g

s Stenngozuto - - 18- 020722 15
sie g 'Soeec sn rons - 5 Y2070 15
s oslerng other +0- 05 2000 1804

51,105
20,620

(1,221)
52,283

122,787
330,586

(43,933)

409,440

"11;
{10.996)

16898
680755

(42253
658400

Tine Tnurs egquty o

2,811
4,299

(1.474)
39,628

45264
88,592

133,856

Swedish
Krona
£'000

12,659
2883

73785
187455

255240

837
2,926

26,295

30,058
69,662

99,720

Other
£000

608
5638

13.722)
42735

44,659
78.524
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Financial instruments
Foreign currency sensitivity continued
If steri' g had strengthened against the currencies shown. this woule have had the following effect
Year ended March 2023 Year ended March 2022

Swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Euro Krona Other
£'000 £'000 £000 £°000 £'000

Staterment of Comprehensive
tncome - profit after tax

Revenue return {4,080) {354) (370) (3,215) (399} (252)

Capital return (53,496) (17,442) (12,993) (72110)  (33.256) 116,053)

Change 1o the profit after tax for

the year/shareholders’ funds (57,576) (17,796)  (13,363)  (753725) {33.655) (16,305)
2023 2022

Change 1o total earnings per share - . _ . (27.96)p L (39 48)p

If sterling had weaxenec against e currencies shown, this wouid have the folowing effect

Year ended March 2023 Year ended March 2022

Swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Euro Krona Other
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Statement of Comprehensive
income - profit after tax

Revenue return 5,392 446 475 4418 475 314
Capital return 72,392 23,608 _ 17,586 136,656 45017 4,777

Change to the profit after tax for

the year/sharehoiders' funds 77,784 24,054 18,061 147,075 45492 5,085

2023 2022

Change to total earnings per share 7 .. . 3178p L 6039

11.3 Interest rate risk
interest rate movemen:s may affect

- the fair value of any nvestments n f xed interest securities,

- the fair value of the loan notes,

« the level of iIncome recervable from cash at bank and on deposit,
« the leve| of interest expense on any variable rate bank loans, and
- the prices of the underlying secunties held in tne portfol-os

Management of the risk

The possihle effects on fair value and cash flows that could anse &s a result of changes innterest rates are taken nto
account when making .nvestment decisions Property companies usually have Eorrowings themselves and e level of
gearing and structure of ts debt portfolio is a key factor when assess ng the mvestment in s property company.

The Group has fixec anc has haa vaniable rate bor-owings dunng the year The interest rates on the loan notes s fixed,
details are set out .n "ote 13 In addis on to the oan notes the Group has unsecures, multi-cusrency revolving loan
‘acil'ties which carry variab.e ~ates of inteves basen on the cur-encies crawn, p us a margn The unusec ‘ac' ues (otal
£120,0C6.00C 12022 £95,000,000)
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

11 Financial instruments

Management of the risk continued

Tne Manager caonsiders both the leve of debt o1 the balance sheet of the Group 1 e.he loan notes and any bank oans
drawnj ana the 'see-through’ gearing, taking into account the assets and liabilities ¢ the underlying Investmenis, wnen
considerng the mvestment portfol 0. These gearing levers are reported regularly 1o the Board

The ma onty of the Group's 1Mvestment portfolio 18 non-inierest bearng As e "eguit the Groups f nancial 2gsets are not
drect'y subjeci to s.gmficant amounts of risk due 1o fluctuztions in the prevailling leve's of market mterest rates

Interest rate exposure

The exposure at 21 March of financig assets and financ gl habiities 10 ~lerest rate ~'sks shown by reference tor
- floating interest rates when e interest rate 's due 1o be re-set

- fixed interest rates when the financ:al Msrument is cue 2o be repaio

The Group's exposure to loatng lerest rates on gssels s £81.170,0000 2822 £70,242 500)

The Group's exposure to fixed interest "ates on ' abilines s £58,933,000 (2022, £57,253,000

The Group's exposure 10 Toalng interest rates on habaties s £15,000,000:2022 £35.003.00C

Interest rece vable and finance costs are a7 tne following rates

+ Interest rece ved on cash balances, of paid on bank overorafis, 1s al s margin over SON.A o715 fore gn currency
equiva ent 12027 same)

+ Interest pa.d on horow Ngs under te multi-cur-ency loan facilit es, is at a margin over SCNIA or 17s foreign cu-rency
equiva.ent for the type ol 1oan (2022 samei

- Thefinance charges on e £50m and £15m loan notes are at terest rates of 1.92- and 3 59 respectivery

Tre year end amounts are no! representative of the exposure o interest rates dur ng e vesr as the leve’ of exposure
changes as investments are maoe 0 fxeq nterest secu es, borrowings a“e drawn cown and repa d, and tne mix of
barrowings between float.ng and f xec nteres: rates changes

Interest rate sensitivity

A cnange of 2 on nterest rates gt the report ng date would have nac the followang grect impact

2023 2023 2022 2022

2% 2% 2% 2%

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

£'000 £000 £000 £'000

Change to shareholders' funds (198) 198 (243} 243

Change 1o total earnings
per share - (0.06)p 0.06p _(cosp _Cosp
n s ievel of cnange s notrepresentative of the year g5 2 who:e, s e the exposure cnanges thiougnodt the yea

This @55€53mMenT Coes 101 18Ke 1IN0 &80T “he mpast of nterest "ale ¢nanges on the marke! v ue ¢F the nvestments

the Group nolds

11.4 Liquidity risk
SNCUOTES vesTmeENS S the potifo o zresub ect o how oy r8< T e Groop he'c one Licunied 1Uestment al ine vea”

endisee 11 o keloes

UG t; ot direct propeTy |.ebtm~ e may te recucec AT 2T Maon 2028 B L0226
yas nelc n Crect propety nvestmen's
e GIoups vesTMenT porc o gned N hisleg serun 88N 0 ETE PECOITI NETT

em

W
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Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Fimancial instruments

Debt and Financing maturity profile

Within Within Within Within Within More than
Tyear 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 45years Syears
At 31 March 2023 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bank loans* 10,000 - - - - - 10,000
Loan notes - - 43,633 - - 15,000 58,933
Projected interest cash flows on
bank and loan notes 1,382 1,382 1,241 539 539 1,585 6,668
Securities and properties
purchased for future settlement 8,536 - - - - - 8,536
Accruals and deferred income 2,053 - - - - - 2,953
Other creditors i 141 - - - - - 141
23,012 1,382 45174 539 539 16,585 87,231
Within Within Within Within Within  Mare than
1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year 3-4 year 4-5 year 5 year Total
At 31 March 2022 £'000 £'000 £'600 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Bank loans 35,000 - - - - - 35,000
Loan notes - - - 47 2573 - 15,000 57,253

Projected interest cash flows on
bank and loan notes 1,350 1,350 1,350 1.241 539 2,124 7.954

Securities and properties

purchased for future settlement - - - - 5,364
Accruals and deferred income - - - - 25,523
Other creditors ) - - - - ) - ) 222
1,350 1,350 43424 539 17,124 131,316
N DT o Pb‘-’LIE-’_} S f'liJ"f‘n“"‘--"' ERTI— rav ‘ fan b Lt et date
e Nl e 2007 Foi 2022 onow
e 007 ER ‘LdZE TinsaasdiEan

Management of the risk

“he Manager sets guideines for the maximum exposure of the portfolio 1o unquoted and direct property nvestments Trese are set
out ‘nthe Investmeni Poicles o page 34 Allunguoted investments with a value over £1m ana direct property investments with a
value over £5 million miust be approved by the Board for purchase,

“he Company maintains reguiar contact with the banks proviaing revaiving facliies anc renewal discussions commence
well ahead of facility renewa. dates n addition new opportunrities for the provision of defit are explored on an ongong
basis

11.5 Credit risk

The fa'lure of 5 counterparty 1o a transaction to discharge its obhgations under that transaction could resuit in the Group suffering
& loss Atine period end the largest counterparty -isk. which the Group was exposed to was within Cebtors anc Castand cash
equivaients where the total bank balances held with one counterparty was £56 326,000 (2022 £50101000)

Management of the risk

investment transact ong are carr ed out witn a number of brokers, wnose credit stanaing 15 reviewed penodically by the
Manager, and mits are set on the amount thal mav be cue from any 01e broker Cash at bank s only held witn banks with
h.gh qua ity external credt rat ngs

2
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

1

Nel

o

1

Financial imstruments

Credit risk exposure
'n summary. comipared *o the amounts 'n the Balance Sheet, tne maximum exposure 10 2redit ns« 2t 31 March was as folows

2023 2023 2022 2022

Balance Maximum Balance Maximum

Sheet exposure Sheet exposure

£000 £000 £000 £000

Debtors 65,287 65,287 97673 87673
Cash and cash equivalents ) 36,07 136,071 32,109 32,109
101,358 101,358 129,782 - 129,782

¥Where the recenvahles of the Group are exposed to crec 1 risk, The requirement for impa rment 1S assessed at easn vear
ena Foraiirecevables 'nthe table abhove no mpairment has been recogn.sed nrelation 10 expecied crecit losses as the
impact of these losses s 'mmaterial 2s a1 31 Marcn 2023 (31 March 2022 no mpa rmenti

Offsetting disclosures

norder 1o define its contractua nights better anc to secure =Iignts that w . help the Group mit gate 'is counterparty nsk
the Croup may ente” Into an iSCA Master Agreement o- similar agreement with its O7C cervatve cont-act counterpact es
An 'SDA Master Agreement 1s an agreement between the Group and the counterparty that governs 07 C der vatives and
fare.gn exchange contracts and typically contains, amang other tnings, co'ateral posiing terms anc Mett ng prov 81ons

n the event of & default andrsor termimation event Under an [SCA Master Agreement, 1he Group has a contractua. nght

10 offset with the counterparty certain gerivat ve “inancia, mstrumenis payah 3 and-or ece vabies wih corateral

1e'a ancror posiec énd create one sing'e net payment in the event of default inc.uding the bankruptey o nsolvency

of the counterpary Howeves hankruptcy or asowvency laws 0 a pari cu'as u-sdioT onmay Impese restrct.ons on or
profbrbioas aga nist the night of offset 1 bekruptey, misolvency 6r othier events

The cisclosures set cut i the fo lowing tabes imcluce fmanc'al essets anc financial ekl es that e sub,ect to an
entorcezb'e masier 1eitng artangement or sumilar agreement.

AL 3T Mach 2023 and 2022 tne Group's cervat ve agsets anc habines (by type and counterparty were as follows

Year ended 2023 Year ended 2022

Net amounis Net amounts
of financial of financial
assets/ assets/
(liabilities) liabilities
presented in presented in
the Balance Cash collateral the Balance Cash collateral
Sheet pledged Sheet pledged
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000

CFD nositions

Goldman Sachs 4,662 65,117 7657 AL 33
4,662 65,117 7657 45733
FX forward contracts:
HSBC (386) - 2,736
(386) - 2736 -

Tk oeropernty Investrent Trast



11 Financial instruments

11.6 Fair values of financiat assets and financial liabilities

Excep® for tneloan niotes whicn are measured at amartised cost {refer to Note 13), the farr va.ues of the f nancial assets
ana financial hab ey gre eitner catried " the balance sheet a7 their fair value (Investments) or the balance sheet
amount is a reasonable approximation of far va'ue tdebtars, crecitors, cash at bank and bank overdrafis, acoruas anc
prepaymentsi

The fair values o’ the listad :nvestmenss are derived from the closing pnce or last traded price at which tne secur.ties are
quoted on the _ondon Stock Exanange and aiher recognsed exchanges

The farr value of contracts for difference are based on the underying I'sted mvestment value as set out above anc the
amount gue from or 1o the counterparty under the contract 1s recorcec as an asset or hab | ty acoardingly. whionis
disulused inNate 13 for the cur-en? yea:

The farr values of the propert es are derived from an open market {Red Book} varuation ¢ t9e properties on tne Balance
Sneet date by an indepencent frm of valuers (Knight Frank).

There was Gne unauotec investment at the Balance Sheet date, Atrato, with g total vawe of £2,573,000 12022 Atrato,
£2,341,000)

nthe Parent Company accounts tnere are investrments of £36,336,000 (2022 £36,297 300] in unhisted subs'diaries whicn
are ¢’assified gs lever 3.

The amounts of change in fa r value for Investments inc uding net returns or CFDs recognised in the consolidates profit
orioss for the year was g loss of £594,986,000 (2022 £2653990C0 gainl

11.7 Capital management policies and procedures

The Group's capital management ob ectives are

+ toensure that 17 wiil be able to cont'nue as a going concern, and

- tomaxmise the total return to ts equity shareho ders through an appropriate baiance of ecuity capital and debt

The equity capital of the Group a1 31 March 2023 consisted of callec up share capital, share premium, capiia “edempiion
and revenue reserves tosalling £968,346 000 (2022 £1,562,739,0001, The Group does not regard the oan notes and 10ans
as permanent captal

Tne loan notes agreement requires comp’ ance with a set of financial covenants, ncluding
+ Tota SBorrowings shall not exceea 33°% of Adustec Net Asset Value,
- 1he Adustec Tolal Assets shaliat all times be equivalent to a minmum of 300% of Tota Borrowings: and

- the Adiustec NAV shzll not be less than £260,000,000.
12 Debtors

Company Group Company
2023 2022 2022
£'000 £'000 £'000

Amounts faling due within cne year.
Securities and properties sold for

future settlement 2,739 2,739 33,138 33,138

Foreign exchange forward contracts

for settlement - - 2,736 2,736

Tax recaverable 3,857 3,857 3,344 2,879

Prepayments and accrued income! 6,146 6,146 5168 5168

Amounts receivable in respect of

Contracts for Difference 5,598 5,598 7,657 7,657

CFD margin cash 45,099 45,099 45133 45133

Other debtors 1,848 1,854 497 497
65,287 65,293 97,673 97,208

Non-current assets
Deferred taxation asset 903 903 903 903

neludes amaounts nrespert of rent fiee per ods

Annua Report & Accounts 2073 9
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

13 Current and non-current liabilities

Company Group Company
2023 2022 2022
£000 £'000 £'000

Armounts falling due within one year

Bank loans and cverdrafts 10,000 10,000 35,000 35,000

Securities and properties purchased

for future settlement 8,536 8,536 5,394 5364

Amounts due 1o subsidiaries - 36,336 - 35,869

Amounts payable inrespect of

Contracts for Difference 936 936 - -

Tax payable 702 700 - -

Accruals and deferred income 2,953 2,925 25523 25,523

Foreign exchange forward contracts

for settlement 386 386 - -

Other creditors 141 131 222 183
23,654 59,950 66,109 101,939

Non-current habilities’

1 92% Eurc Loan Notes 2026 43,933 43,933 42,253 42253
3.59% GBP Loan Notes 2031 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000

_ 58,933 . 58933 57,253 57,253
Loan Notes

IRlalalel

On e 10mn February 2016 the Company issued 1.92% Lnsecured Zure 50,000,300 Loan Notes anc 3 59+ Linsecured
Nk

GSP 1L 000,036 Loan Notes wrch are dus to be receemed at par on the 10tn Sehruary 2076 and 1010 Februaty 2031

respectively

The far value of the 1 92% Zurg Loan hotes was £42.979,00012022 £42,320.000) 810 the 3 39~ GBP _ozn Notes was
© 143380002027 £14.878 0060 a7 3V Mach 2023

Lsngthe IFRS 1215 - va ue hieraohy the _oan Notes are ceemec (¢ be categorises w inin Levei 2

Tne 'can noles agreement requites COMEBraice w i a set of tnanciz' covenants, -nouding

*Tola Borrowings snall not exceed 23+ of Adjustec et AsseT Valueg,

«the Adjustec Tota! Assets she . atad 'mes he ecuva entto a mimmum ol 3030 o Tola Borrow gs and

e Adjustec NAY sha ' notbe less than 260 D00 000

Multi-currency revolving loan facilities
Tne Croup 'S0 180 UNSeCUien, Mu'tl-curre
1322000001 31 Meron 2023 A7 310

The mzturi of thiese fal tes s o 1 nates

ac “FProperty Incestmert TrueT



13 Current and non-current habilities
Recoenciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Laong term Short term
debt debt

Group and Company £000 £000
Opening habilities from financing activities at 31 March 2022 57,253 35,000 92,253
Cash flows
Repayment of bank loans - (25,000) (25,000)
Non cash-flows
Movement on foreign exchange ) 1,680 ) - 1,680
Closing liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2023 58,933 ) 10,0600 68,933

14 Called up share capital

Ordinary share capital
The balance classfed as ordinary share capinal Ine udes the nome-nal value proceeds on theissue of the Ordinary ecuity
share capital comprising ordinary sha-es of 25p

Issued, allotted

Number and fully paid £'000
Ordinary shares of 25p
ALT April 2022 o ) - 317350980 79338
At 37 March 2023 317,350,980 79,338

The voting r.ghts are disclosed inthe Report of the Directors on page 48.
bunng the year, the Company made no mearket purchases for cancellation of Ordinary shares of 25p each (2022 none)

Since 21 March 2023 0 Grdinary shares have been purchasec and cance led.

15 Share premium account and capital redemption reserve

Share premium account
The halance ciassified as share premium wicludes the prem’um above nomnal value from 1ne proceeds on issue of the
eguity share capital comprising Greingty snares of 75p

Capital redemption reserve
The cap tal reaemprion reserve 1s usec ta record the amount eguivalent 'o the nomina. value ¢f purchases of the
Company s own shares n orderto ma'ntain the Company's cap-tal

16 Retained earnings

Company Group Company

2023 2022 2022

£'000 £000 £000

Investment holding (iosses) / gains (99,771) (81,449) 412,934 431,260
Realised capital reserves _ B28,859 N 802,597 918,057 891.806
Total capital reserves 729,088 721,148 1,330,991 1,323,066
Revenue reserve ) - 72787 ) - 80,727 ) 65277 73202
Total retained earnings ) 801,875 801,875 1,396,268 1,396,268

The rearseq capiial reserves are distributable by wey of 2 dividend o sharenolders or utilised for the repurchase of share
capital, net of a1y unrealised losses on investments eld Tnetevenue ~eserve represents sccumulated revenue profits
frorm whic annug! divicends are pad

Anrual Report & sccounts 2023 R
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

17 Dividends

18

19

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£'000 £'000

Amounts recognised as distnbutions to equity halders in the year.
Final dividend for the year ended 371 March 2022 of 9.20p

{2027 9 00p) per share 29,196 28562

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 of 565p

(2022 5.30p) per share - 17,931 16,879
47,127 45,387

Amounts not recognised as distributions to equity holders
inthe year:

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 37 March 2023 of @ 85p

(2022 9.20p) per share 31,259 o 29,196

The fimal ¢ vinend has not beenincuded as a labidity in thege finanoial statements in accoraance win AS 10 Events
afiertne report fig perod

Set out beiow s the tota cw cena to be paid n respect of tne year This s the basis o1 which the requirements of s 1158
of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 are consideren

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£'000 £'000

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 of 5.65p
(2022 5 30p) per share 17,931 16819
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023

of 9 85p (2022 9.20p) per share _ 31,289 29196

49,190 46015

Company statement of comprehensive income
Secton 408 of the Compan es Aot 2006, the Company has not preseniec its 0w/ Slatemen: of

Aspemlted by &
Compreneas ve ncome.  Me tet 1ess after texation of the Company dea’twith i 1ve accounts of 1ne Group vwas
7L 281887 000 profi

NS AT T p g e,
1547 26600012

Net asset value per ardinary share

Nel zsse! value per Orc nary snere s basec or the net 2sseal T putable: na7y shares of 968,546,000 2022
- S o
L1562, 3¢ 000 ane on 217 380,680 2027 A1V RECABT O

S U (S e

20 Commitments and contingent iiabilities

.
3

~J

A3 Marcn 2l G e Croup el LER e CommiTments of

TR Property frcestmer Trus)



21 Subsidiaries

The Group has the forowing prncipa subsdiares, @1 of which are registered anc operating in Scotlane, England ana

Waes.
Name
New England Properties Limited

The Colonnades Limited
Showart Limiteg

Trust Union Properties Residential Developments Limited

The Property Investment Trust Lid

The Real Estate Investment Trust Limited

The Terra Property Investment Trust Limited
Trust Upion Property Investment Trust Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Five) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Six) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Seven) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Eight) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Nine) Limited

Trust Union Properties (Nurmber Ten) Limited

S
Trust Union Properties (Number Eleven) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Twelve) Limited

(
(
(
Trust Union Properties (Number Thirteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Fourteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties {(Number Fifteen) Limited

Trust Union Properties {(Number Seventeen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Eighteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties {(Bayswater) Limited

Trust Union Properties {Cardiff) Limited

Trust Union Properties (Theale) Limited

Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Twe) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Three) Limited
Skillion Finance Limited

Trust Union Finance {1997} Plc

FGH Developments Limited

FGH Developments {Aberdeen) Limited

FGH {Newcastle) Limited

NEP (1994) Limited

New England Developments Limited

New England Investments Limited

New England Retail Properties Limited

New England (Southern) Limited

Sapco One Limited

Trust Union Properties Limited

Trust Union Finance Limited

TR Property Finance Limited

Trust Union Properties (South Bank) Limited

Anndal Repert & Accourts 2023

Reg. Number

768895
2826672
2500726
2365875
2415846
2476015
2415843
2416017
2415839
2416018
2415836
2416019
2415833
2416021
2415830
2416022
2415818
2416024
2416026
2416027
2415768
2416030
2415772
2416037
2415765
2416036
2420758
2663561
1481476
SC68799
1466619
977481
1385909
2613905
1447221
1787371
803940
2134624
1233998
241591
2420097

Principal Activities

Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Mon-trading company
NMon-trading company
MNon-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Nen-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
MNon-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Property investment
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Mon-trading company
Non-trading company
Investment financing
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Investment holding and finance company
Investment holding and finance company

Non-trading company
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

21

22

Subsidiaries

The Company has pravided & guarantee for each of these subsigar es m ocer for tneim 1o take the exernpt on from e
requirement of anaud't, n ine with the requrements of S 4704 of the Companies Act 2006

Al the subsicianies are fully owned and ail the no.a'ngs are ordingry snares

A companies nave the registered office of Excnange House, Prmrose Streey, Lonceon, ECZA 25NV with the exception of
FGR Developmeris tAberdeent Limited which s registereg 2o 50 Lothvan Roaa, Festiva Soua-e BEdimbuigh £-3 9BY

Related party transactions disclosures

3alances and :ransactions between *ne Company ana 1s subsio ares, wh'cn gre réialed parties haye been elminated on
cansclidat on. The baiances are interest free, unsecurec and “epayab’e on aemand

Amounts due by the Company to subsidiaries per note 13

The Colonnades Limited
TR Property Finance Limited
New England Properties Limited

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of tne Direciors, who are e key manzgement personnel of the Company ‘o

2023
£'000

23,101
13,255

(20}

36,336

2022
£000
22619
13270
(20}
35,869

reach of The refevant

categories specfieq n'AS 24 Reated Party Disclosures s provoed in tne aucred part of the Directors Remuneation

Report on pages 63 anc 65

Directors’ transactions

Drrectors t-snsactions =1 the Company s shares are considered to be a re ated pariv ansacton due to the nature of ther

“cle as Drecio' s

Movements .n Direstors’ shareholdings are dist'os

23 Subsequent events

Theteare

S/ents nEr

weozcued suhsequsnt T

~

L

the fnance’ vear end o "eport

thathe O reciors Remuneraton Feno T onpace 6

(3]

TR Sroperty e esinert Trgs:






Glossary and AIFMD disclosure

1.0 Alternative Performance Measures
Aiternative Performance Measures are numer cal
~eascures of (ne Compary's curent or nistoncal
performance. firancial positior or cash flows, other
than tne financial measures defined or specified In the
Financ al Statements.

The measures detined below are corsidered to be
Atternative Performance Measares. Trey are viewed as
particu'arly reievant and are frequently quoted for cosed
ended nvestmenrt companes

Total Return

The NAY Total Return s calculated by rervestirg the
dividends in the assets of the Company from the relevant
ex-dividend dale Div dends are deemed to be remvestad
antre ex-dividend date as this ‘s tre protoco. used

by the Company's benchmark ard other ind ces. Tre
Srare Price Total Return is calcelated by reinvest rg the
dwidends in the shares of the Comrpany from tre relevant
ex-dividend date

Year to
31 March

2023

NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2022 (pence) 492 43 4565
NAV /share price per share at

317 March 2023 (pence) 30513 2760
Change in year (38.0%) (389%)
Impact of dividends reinvested 25%  26%
Total Return for the year (35.5%) (36 3%)

Year to
31 March

2022

NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2021 (pence) 417.97 392.50
NAV./share price per share at

371 March 2022 (pence) 492.43 456.50
Change in year 17 8% 16.3%
Impact of dividends re.nvested . 36%  36%
Total Return for the year 214%  1909%

Ongoing Charges

Tre Ongoing Charges ratic has beer calculated In
accordanrce w th the gudance 1ss.ed by the AIC as the
total of nvestmert maragemenrt fees and admuristrative
experses expressed as a percertage of the average

Net Agset Va ues throughodt the year. The defirition of
adm n.strative expenses does include property e'ated
expenses, the Ongoing Charges ca.culation § showr
nclusive and exciusive of these expenses ta 8 ow
comparisor of the direct administrat ve ard management
charges with tne majority of Investment Trusts which do
not hold any drect property investments

Excluding
Including  Excluding  Performance
Year to Performance Performance Fees & Direct
31 March Fees Fees Property Costs
2023 £000 £3600 £000
Management
Fee (note 5) 6240 6,240 5,240
Other
Administrative
expenses
{note 6} 1,705 1,708 1705
Property
Costs 714 714
Less: Non
recurring
expenses B B . -
- 8659 8659 7945
Average Net
AsSets 1184,462 1,184,462 1,184,462
Ongoing
Charge 2023 0.73% 0.73% 0.67%

Excluding
Inciuding ncluding  Performance
Performance Performance  Fees & Direct
Fees Fees Property Costs
£000 £000 £000
Marnagemert
Fee (note 5) 31.14C 6,651 6,651
Other
Admiristrative
expenses
(note 6) 2,220 2,220 2220
Property
Costs 332 332
Less: Nor
recurring
expenses o . -
- B 33692 9203 8871
Average Net
Assets 1536825 1,536,825 1,536 825
Ongeing
Charge 2022 219% 0.60% 0.58%

TR PropertyIrvestment Tryst



Net Debt

Net debt s tne total value of loan notes, i0ans (ircludirg
not.oral exposure to CFDs and TRSs) 'ess cash as a
proportion of net asset val.e

Trenet gearing has heen calculated as follows:

Loan notes 58933 577253

Loans 13,000 35,000

CFD positions {notional exposure} 130906 144642

Less: Cash (36,071)  (32,09)

Less: Cash collateral (included within

‘Other debtors’ in Note 12 {45.099)  (457133)
118,669 159653

Equity shareholders’ funds 968,346 1,562,739
Net gearing 12.3% 10.2%

The Ongoing Charges ratio provided in the Company's
Key Information Documert s calculated in line with
the PRIIPs regulations which is different to tne AIC
methcdology above

Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses tne performance of tre Manager
T meeting the Company’s objective against a number
of Key Performance Indicators, which are cors dered to
be Alternat've Performance Measures Deta’ls of these
calcu ations are set out above

Compound Annual Dividend Growth

This is ca-culated by taking tme “inal dividend - 1 the time
senes, dvided by the mitial dividend * in the perod, raised
to the power of 1 divided by the rumber of years  nthe
series

5year penod.

2 ° gy 15500 L ao%
b 12.20p

Premium/{Discount)

The amount by wh'ch the market price of 3 share of an
investmert trust company is higher or lower than the Net
Asset Value per share expressed as & percertage of the

NAV per shiare H tne share price s iower than the NAVY per
share the shares are trading at a discount and If the share

price is nigher than the NAV per stare the shares are
trading at a premium.

2023 2022

pence pence

Net Asset Value per share (a) 30513 492 43
Sheare price per share {by 27900 456.50

Premium or (Discount) (c= (b-;)/a (o) (8.6%)  (73%)

Annual Report & Accounts 2073

An average premiumm or discount is calcutated by takmg
the sum of each dally prem L and d'scourt for the
period under review, d'vided by the number of days in the
given period.

2.0 Glossary of terms and

definitions AIFMD

The Alterrative Fund Managers Directive 's ELropean

iegisiatior which created a Europear wide framework
for regurating the managers of "a ternative investmert
funds” (Alks) It s desgnedtoreguiate ary furd which
is not a UCITS (Undertak'ngs for Collective Investment
in Transferab e Secunties) fund and wh'ch is managed
or marketed in the EU.

AlC

The Associatior of Investment Companies, the
representative body for closed-ended nvestment
Ccompanies.

Alternative Performance Measure

A firancias measure of financial performance or firancia:
posit.or other than a financia. measure defined or
specihied i the accourting statements.

Key Information Document

Under the PRIIPs Regulations a short, consumer friend'y
Key Information Document is reguired setting out the
key features, risks, rewards and costs of the PRIIP and
Is ntended to ass’'st nvestaors to better understand the
Trust and make comparisons between Trusts

The document includes estimates of Investment
performance under a number of scenarics These
ca.culations are prescribed by the regulatior and are
based purely or recert nistor cal data. ltis impertant
for investors to note that there s no Judgement applied
and these do rot in any way reflect the Board or
Marager's views.

Key Performance Indicator (KPI')

A KP1is a guantiflabie measure tnat evaluates how
successful the trust 's i meeting its object'ves Tne
Company's KPIs are discussed on pages 35 and 36.

MIFID

The Markets n Finan¢ial Instrurments Directive is the EU
legislation tnat regulates firms who provide services to
chients Inked to "finarcial rstruments” (shares, bords,
ur'1s ncollective investment schemes and derivatives)
and the venLes wheare those instruments are traded

Net Asset Value (NAV) per share
Tne value of total assets less liabilties {Inc uding
boriowings) dvided by the number of shares nissue

MBIAIBAN
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure
continued

3.0 Alternative investment fund managers
directive (AIFMD")

In accordance w th the AIFMD nfermat.on rreat on
te the Company's leverage and remuneration of the
Companys AIFM. Co'umibia Tareadneedle Investmert
Bus ness Limied, 'srequired to be made ava lable to
mvestors Detalded regu.atory disc'osures .raiuding
those on the AIFM's remuneration poicy are availabie or
the Co.Lmb.a Trreadneedle website or from Courba
Threadreedle on reguest. Tréenomenca! remureration
dsclosdres inrelation to the AIFM's first re.evant
accounting period w ' be rrade ava'abie in due course.

Leverage

Under the AIFM Driective, it 1s necessary for AlFs
to disclose thed leverage in accordarce wth
prescribed calcu ations

Although leverage is often used as ancther ter for
gear~g .nderthe AIFMD weverage s specificaiy defined
Two types of everaqge ca'culatiors are defined, the gross
a~d commitmert metnods. These metrods soirmarily
express everage as a rat'c of the exposure of the AIF
aga nst 1s net asset value, Exposure typically includes
debt, tre value of any prysical properties subject to
mertgage, non stering cJrrency, equily or currency
hiedging at absolute rotional va Les (ever tose held
purely for risk reduct.cr puiposes. sacr as forward
foreign exchange cortracts held for currency hedgirg)
and dervative exposure iconverted irto tre equivaert
anderly ~g postions) The comrutrrent method nets
off dervat ve ~strur-erts whi e the gross method
aggregates ther

Tretab-e beiow sets out tre carrert rax ™Mum permitted
It and the actual evel of leverage for the Compary as
at 31 March 2023

Gross Commitment

Leverage exposure method method
Maximum permitted limn 200% 200%
Actual 138% 130%

Tre everage - tsare set by tre AIFN and approved
bytreBoardardare ri~ewi tre! s setolt o the
Co~pany's Artc es of Assoc ato-

Thesnood-ctbeco-fused vt tregear ~gsst oot
~t-eF rarca Hgn ghts wh o s ca oo ated Lnder
tretrad t'ora ~etnod set oot by the Assoc at o of
imvest~ert Compan es TreAlFM saiscreqgoredic
LOYp Vet e gear g para T eters set hy tre Board
re at o~ to borowngs

[
[*}]
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

This Notice is important and requires your Special business
immediate attention Ordinary resolution
If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take 12 THAT, insubstitution for a' seen existirg adt-ont-es,

you should seek your own advice from a stockbroker,
solicitor, accountant or other independent professional
adviser who is authorised under the Financial Services
and Markets Act 2000 if you are resident in the

United Kingdom or, if not, from another appropriately
authorised independent financial adviser.

I you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your
shares, please pass this document, together with
the accompanying documents, 1o the purchaser or
transferee, or to the person who arranged the sale
or transfer so they can pass these documents to the
person who now holds the shares.

Notice 1s hereby gven that the Arnaa General Meeting
of TR Property Investment Trist pic (the 'Corpany’] wiil
be held at the Royal Automnobile C b 89791 Pa | Mail,
Loendon SWIY SHE on Thursday 20 ouly 2023 at 2 30 pro
for the purpose of trarsact.ng tne fol owing business

To consider and. fthought Tit, pass the fol owing
Reso utiors of whicr Reso.Jtiors 110 12 wiil be
proposed as Crdinary Resolutiors ard Resalutors 13
and 14 sha!l be proposed as Specia, Reso' utions:

T Torecewe ne Report of the Directors and the
Aud ted Accounts for the vear erded 31 Marc~ 2023

rJ

To approve the D rectors’ Remureratior Pof cy.

3 Toapprove the Directors' Remruneratior Report
{excudimgtre Directors’ Remuneratio™ Po! ey for

A~

the yvear ended 31 Marcn 2023

4  Todecarea firal dividerd of @ 85p per Ordirary
snare

(@A

Tcre-elect Kate Bo'scver as a Director

& ToreeectSarar-care Curtsasalbrecter

7 Toreelect T G barksasabrector

8 ToreeectBusoa Scdeindeasalbrector

9 Tare-eect Ardrew Vaograr asa Drector

15 Tore-appo ~tKEMG LLF itre A dtor as Ludtor

af tre Compary o ~odofice ut thecorrius ar of
tre vext Arroas Gerera, Meetimg of the Corpany

11 Toacthorset~e D rectors to deter~— e the
reronerat gn of tre Aod tor

e
VL

the Drectors be general y and uncond tiorally
acrhorised pursLart to and in accordance with
Sect.0n 557 of the Companies Act 2006 (the ‘Act)

1o exerc se a:l the powers of the Company to allot
shares rthe Company and tc grant rights to
subscribe for or to corvert any secur ty Irto shares
mtre Company ap to a nomiral value of £26 187,455
(being approximately 33% of tne tota' issued share
capital of the Campary as at the atest practicable
date prior to publicaton of this Notize) prov ded that
this authonty sha' expire at tne conc'usior of the
Annual General Meeting of tne Corrpany ir 2024

(or «f eari er at the close of business on 19 Octaber
2024}, save trat the Compary shal be entitled to
make offers or agreements before the expiry of this
authonty wricn would or might require snares to

be allotted ar rights to be grarted after suck expiry
and tre Directors snall be entitled 1o a 10t shares
and grartrignts pursuant to any seen offers or
agreerme~is as [fth s authority Fad not expired

Special resolutions
13 THAT »nsubstitctor for all such existing actharities

a~d sublect to the passing of Reso ution 12 set

Cut above, the Directors be enrpowered purseart

to Secton 570 ard Section 573 of the Act to a.iot
equ ty securties [as defired in Secton 560 of the
Act) for cash purstart 1o the acthor 'ty conferred by
Resolution 12 above and/cr to sed shares neld by tie
Compary as treasery shates for casn as -f Secto-
567 oftre Act did rot apply to a~y such 3 iotrment or
sa e, provided that t~is power snal be 1 ted

{a) totneaiotmenrt of equty secart es ard sa:e
of treasury shares for cash ' correct onw ta
ar offer of or nviat o~ toappy for equity
secunt es

i) o snarengaers T proporicT 1as near y
3¢ ~ay be practcable; tother ex stirg

“odrgs and

¢ ~oders of otmer equ iy secartes as
requ red by tre ng-ts of trose securt es or
as tre Board otrervy se cersders mecessary

a~d scthat the Board may mipaseary s or
restrctorg ard ~—ake aov arrgrge~erts wh oot
cong dors necessary or approprale to deg o te
treasury snares fract oma erttieerts record
dates £Qga regu atary of pract.ca probierts 1 or
~rdertheians of any e tory or 8y cther ratter

ard

TF =raperty Inezirment Trost



(L2} v the case of the authority granted under
Resolution 12 and/or in the case of any sale
of tfreasury shares for cash, to the allotment
(otherwise than u~der paragraph (1) above)
of equity securities or sale of treasury shares
upto arommal amod-t of £3 966,887 (be'ng
approximatery 5% of the total issued share
caprta of the Compary as at the latest
practicable date prior 1o pubiicat.on of the notice
of meeting),

the power giver by this resoiution shall expire Lpor
the expiry of the authonty conferred by Resc'ution 12
above, save that the Corpany sha | be entitled to
make offers or agreements before expiry of such
power wh'ch wouid or might require equity securities
1o be allotted after such expiry and the Drectors
shal' be entitled to allot equity securlies pursuant

to any sucr offer or agreement as if the power
conferred nereby had not expired.

14 THAT the Company be and is hereby genera ly and
unconditiorally authonsed in accordance witn
Section 701 of the Act to make one or more market
purchases {witnir the meaning of Section 693(4) of
the Act) of Ordinary shares of 25p each 1 the capital
of the Company cn such tenrs and ir such manner
as the Directors may from time to time determine
provided that'

{ay the maximu number of Ordinary shares rereby
authorised to be purchased shall be 14.99% of
the Company's Ordmary shares in issue at the
date of the Annual Genera' Meeting {equivalent
to 47 570,911 Crdinary shares of 25p each at
30 May 2073, the latest practicablie date prior to
pubication of this Not ce);

{b) the maximun price (exclusive of experses)
whicn may be paid for any such share shall not
be mcre than the higher of:

(1} 105% of the average of the middie market
quotations for an Ordirary share as taken
from the London Stock Exchange Daily
Cfiical List for the five bus' ness days
immediate:y preceding (ne date on which
t1e Company agrees {o buy the shares
concerned; and

(i) the higher of the prce of the last
independent trade and the i .ghest current
mndependent b'd for ar Grdinary share nthe
Company on the trading verue where the
purchase ‘s carr ed out at the relevant time,
and

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

{c) the minmum price (exclusive of expenses) which

may be paid for an Ordinary share shall be 25p,
being the nomiral value per Ordirary shae,

the autnerity hereby conferred shall expire at

the conclusion of the Annual General Meetirg of
the Companyin 2024 (or if earlier, at the ¢close

of business on 19 Cotober 2024), save that the
Company shall be entitled to enter inte a contract
to purchase Ordinary snares wa.ch will, or may, he
completed or executed wnolly or party after the
power expires and the Company may purchase
Ordinary shares pursuant 1o sucn contract as if the
power corferred hereby nad rot expired

Q) Latten

@/y Order of the Board
Forardonbecaif of
ColLr-bia Tareadreedle
[Mvestmient Busness L ted
Compary Secretary

12 oLre 2023

Reg'stered Office

Campany registered in Englard and Wales
Company rumber 84492

13 Woodstock Street

Lordon WIC 2AG
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

Notes

Shareholders intending to attend the AGM are asked to
register their intention as soon as practicable by email
to the following dedicated address:
trpitagm(@columbiathreadneedle.com.

Sharenolders wno are not ab e or do ~ct wish 1o attend

the meeting in persar wil be able to watch a | ve webcast
ofthermeetryg Thsw. nciude the formal business of

the meeting. the Manager's presentatior and questions
ard answers The webcast will not erable snareha ders to
participate r the meeting or 1o vote However shareholders
will De invited to sLbmit quest'ons thiougr ocur wehsite,

by 12 00 1001 o1 Tuesday 18 Luy 2023 Questiors

imay be sentto the folovwing emral address trptagmi@ 3
cotumbiathreadreed e com Questions of a very simlar
nature mMay be grouped together to ensure te orderly
rnning of the AGM

1 Arrember enttled to atterd and vate at tie meeting
convered by e above Notice 1s entit ed to appoint ore
or mMore proxies o exercise all or ary of the ngnts of the
member o attend, speak and vote in his or ~er place

Shareholders are strongly encouraged to submit ther
proxy vote im advance of tne reeeting and to appoint
the Cranrrar of the meet ng as their proxy, rataer than
any other named persor wno mav not be perritted 1¢
attend the AGM r tre event of restrictions ar imits o1
attendarce A proxy ~eed not be a sharehalder of tre
Corrpany Toappont maore 11a 0Ne proxy e proxy
form shoL d be protocop ed ard the narre of the proxy
tobe appo rted nd cated o eacn praxy form togetrer
w ik the narber of srares trat suck proxy s appointed
nrespect of Completion ard ssbrusson of a proxy
nstructionw i not prec ude a MeTber from atterding
andvot rg rpersen at the AGM (subject to ary
restrnctions or physcar attendarce)

T bevahd ary proxy for— or other imstraent

apporit rga proxy Mmust be returred by post by cour &
orbyrardtotre Comparys Regstrars Coputersrare
I~sestor Serv ces PLC The Pav. ors Br dgwater Road,
Br stoi BSQ9 67Y or aterratve y Dy goirg to www
eproxyappo "trect comand fo ow ngtre ostructors >
prov ded A proxes most be appo rted by ~o atertrar
48 nocrs Defore tne time of the AGN 1= tre case of
jortno ders where more than one of 1nejo rtho ders
pUrports to appo tta proxy. oy the appo mtert
s.hmitted by the most sen or rolder vy be accepted
Sernorty: s deterrimed by treorder ~ vt e ire raTes
of tne ot noders appear 7 tre Lor-pa~vs Reg ster of
lerbers i~ regpectof thejo ~tro d g it-e rst ~a~ed
be ~g dee~ed tre most senor

I~ order 1¢ he abye to attend a~d vote at the LG o
aryado.rred eetngiand a sofortne putpese of
ca ouathing how ~ary votes a parson ~ay 2ast) A

[

.

person Must nave Nis or her rame entered on the
Comparys Reg ster of Merbers by 2 3C prron 18
Juy 2025 (or £.00 proor the date two days before
ary adjcurned meeting) Changes fo ertnes on

the Reqister of Members after th s tivre shal. be
dsregarded . deter~umirg the rignts of ary persor to
attend arvote at the ™eeting

voting will be caonducted on a pod at the meeting Or
a po'lvote every shareholder wli trougn their proxy

have one vote for every Ordinary share of waichhe o
sheistre balder

Sharelciders shouid note that 11s poss ble that,
pursua~t to requests made by shareholders of the
Company under Seclior 527 of tre Act, the Compary
may berequired 1o pub1sh 01 a webs'te a staterent
sett ng out any ™Matter relating to {1 the avditof the
Comparys accoJris (nciuding the Auditor s Report
and tme condact of the aLdit; that are to be ‘aid before
tne AGM, ar (1) ary circuirstarce connected witn

ar auditor of the Company ceasing tc Foid office

s ncethe prevous meeting at wh o aniualaccodrts
and repons were la:d in accordarce with Sect o-

437 of tre Act Tne Corpary may not require the
sharehclders requesting ary sucn webste publ catior
1C pay 1S expenses in comp'yirg witn Sectiors 527 or
528 of tne of the Act Where the Comipary 1S required
to place a statenert on a website ander Section

527 of tre Act, t must forward the staterent to

tae Company's aud tor ot later tnar tme time when

it makes the staterment avaiable on the website

The busitess which may be dea t witi al the ASM
rclades any stater-ert that tre Company has beer
requred under Sect o~ 527 of the Act o pub 'shon a
website

Arycorporathion whign s arvember of tne Cormpany
ca- appoint one or rore corparate representatives
whorayvexerc sec tstenafal of tspowersas a
meTher prov ded tmattrey do not do so rreatonto
17E 83T S Ales

Trerngritoappo nta proxy does rotapp'y to persers
whose smares are held o~ trer behat by anotrer
persorn a~d wnc fave beer o rated to receve
corun caton frem tre Compary naccorda-ce
vt Sector 146 of tre Act { Nom ~ated Persons
NoTitated Fersons may navear gt wnder an
agreeert v - tne regstered snagrenoder wig o ds
sraresor trerhenadtobe appo ~eg lorto vave
Soec e eise appo ~ted  as a proxy Aternateely f
=0 tated persors do ot ave seenarght ordo
ot vast o exerc set trey ~ay nave a gl urder
ST anagreemienttc give mstruct orsto the person
Codngtne shares as to 10e exerc se of vatrg nghts

TR FrogeryInsestment Trust



6 CREST members who wisn to appoiml a proxy
or proxies thiougn the CREST e ectronic proxy
appontment service may do so for the AGM 10
be held on 20 Juy 2023 and any adioumment(s)
therecf by using the procedures described in the
CREST Manual CREST personal members or other
CREST sponsored members, and those CREST
members wno Fave appointed a vot ng service
provider should refer to ther CREST sponsars or
votng serv.ce provider(s), who wil be ab.e to take
lhe approeprate action o~ their behalf Inorder fora
proxy appo niment or :nstructior made by mears of
CREST to be vald, the appropnate CREST message
(A CREST Proxy Instruction’) must be properly
autnent cated ir accordance with Euroclear UK &
heland Limited’s specificaticns and must cortain
the informatior: required for such instructions, as
descrnibed inthe CREST Manual The message must
be transmitted 5o as tc be received by the Company's
agert Compuatershare Investor Senvices PLC (CREST
Participant 1D: 3RAL0)}, no later than 48 hours before
the time appoirted for the meeting. For th's purpose,
the time of receipt will be taken to be thetme (as
determned by the t me stamp applied to the message
by the CREST Apphcation Host) from which the
Comrpany's agent is able to retrieve the message by
enquiry to CREST ir the manner prescribed by CREST,

CREST mrerrbers and, where appiicable, ther
CREST spansor or voting service provider shou-d
rote that Euroc.ear UK & Ireland Limited does nat
rmake avaiiab e special procedures ir CREST forany
particular mMessages.

Normal system timings and imitations wili therefore
appy Ir re-atior to the input of CREST Proxy
Instructions. It1s the responsibility of the CREST
rmember concerned to take (or, If the CREST member
‘5 a CREST personal member or sponsored member
Or nas appoirted a voting service provider, to procure
that his or ner CREST sponsaor or veling service
provider takes) such action as shall be recessary

to ersure that a message is transmitted by mears
of the CREST systen by any particular time. In th's
conrectior, CREST members and, where appiicable
therr CREST sponsor or voting service provider

are referred in particular 1o thase sections of the
CREST Manval concerning practical mitatiors of
the CREST system and timings Tae Company may
treat as nvalid a CREST Proxy Instructior in tne
circumstances set out N Regulation 35(5)(a) of the
Uncertificated Securities Regulatiors 2007,

|

Any member attendirg the meeting (subject to any
restnetions in place at the time of the rreeting) has
the nghtto ask guestiong The Company must cause
to be answered any such question reiating to the

Arnug Report & Accounts 2023
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12

business being dealt with at the meeting but no such
arswer need be given If (a)tc do sc wou d intertere
Lnduly with tne preparatior for the meeting or invoive
the disclosure of confidential information, (b) the
answer has a ready been given or a website in the form
of an answer to a gdestion; or (¢) 1t 1s Lndes.rable in

te nterests of the Conrpany or the good order of the
mMeeting that the gueston be answored Questions of a
very similar nature may be grouped together to ensuire
tae order y running of the AGM

Unacceptable hehavicur on the part of ary shareholder
attending the AGM w'li not be tolerated and the
Chairman has the right o deal with such behaviour as
appropriate

Urder sect:or 338 and section 338A of the Act,
~members meeting the thresnold requirements in those
sect'ons have the rngnt to require the Company (1} 1o
give, to members of the Compary entited to receive
“otice of the meeting, notice of a resolution which
may properly be moved and 18 imended to be moved
at the meeting and/or (11 to ‘nclude n the business to
be dealt witn at the meet'ng any matter (otherthan a
proposed resolution} which may be properly included in
the bLsiness A resolution may properly be moved ora
natter may properly be inc'uded in tne busiress urless
{a) (in tne case of aresolution only} it would, \f passed,
be netfective {(whetner by reason of incons stency
with any eractment or t1e company’s corstitution or
otherwise). (b it is defarratory of any person, or () it
Is frivolous or vexatiods. Such a request may be in
hard copy form or in electronic form, must idertify the
resolution of wnich notice 15 to ke given or the matter
to be included in the business, must be authorised by
the person or persons making it, mLst be received by
the cormpany "ot later than six clear weeks before the
meet.ng, and (ir the case of a matter to be included
In the business oniy) must be accompanied by a
staterment setting out the grounds for the request

As at 30 May 2023 (being the latest pract.cabie day pricr
to pubication of this Not ce}, the issued snare capital

of the Company was 317 35C 980 Ordirary shares of
25p each and no ordinary snares were held intreasury
Therefore, the total rumber of voting nights .0 the
Company at 30 May 2023 was 317,350,980

The terrmis of reference of the Audt Committee, the
Management Engagerrert Cormmittee, the Normination
Committee and tne Directors’ L etters of Appointment
wilr be ava'labie for inspection for at least 15 mindtes
prorto and dur ng the Company’s AGM

You may not use ary electronic address provided
elther ir this Notice or any related docLments to
cormun cate for ary puposes other than those
expressly stated
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

13 The Compary may process persoral data of attendees
at the Annal General Meetrig This may irclude
webcasts photos, recordng and avdio and vdec links,
as well as other forrs of persoral data The Corrpany
shall process such personal data in accordance with its
privacy policy, weich can found at wiwe Trpraperty com
egal.

v
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Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting

Resolutions 1, 2, 3 and 4: Accounts,
Directors’ remuneration policy, Directors’
remuneration report and dividend

These are thereso utions which deal with the
presertatior of the aud.ted accounts, the approval
of tre Drectors’ Remuneration Policy, the approval
of tne Directors’ Remuneration Report and tne
declarat:on of the fira dividend

e voto toapprove the Remunerat.on Poncy must
be putto shareholders every thiee years The vote
to approve the Rerrureration Report is advisory
¢nly and w 'l not require the Company to alter any
arrargernents detalled in the report should the
resciution not be passed

Tre Board is proposirg a final dividerd for the year
ended 31 March 2023 of 9. 85p per Ordinary share

If approved at the AGM, the Cormpany will pay the
chv.dend on 1 August 2023 to those shareholders on
the Company's Register of Members at the close

of busiress on 30 wune 2023

Resolutions 5 to 9; Re-election of
Directors

These resglutions deal with tne re-election of Kate
Bolsover, Sarah-_ane Curtis, Tim Gillbanks, Busola
Seodeinde and Andrew Vaughan In accordance win
the UK Corporate Goverrarce Code a't Directors
retire on an annual basis and have confirmed that
they wit offer themselves for re-election, with the
exception of Dav'd Watson who will retire at the
conclusion of the AGh

A performance evaldatior has been completed ard
the Board nas determred that each of the Directors
contirues to be effective and demonstrates therr
commitment 1o ther role.

Ther biographical defails which are set out on pages
44 and 45 demonstrate that tne Board has the
approprate balarce of ski ‘s, experience,
‘ndependence and knowledge to lead the Company
According'y, the Board unanmimously recommends
the:rre-electior

Resolutions 10 and 11: Auditor

[rese dea w.th the reappoirtment of the Aud-tor,
KPWMG LLP and the authonsatior for the Directors 1o
determine therr remuneration

Annuar Report & Accounts 2075

Resolution 12: Allotment of share capital

The Board considers it approprate that an autkority
be granted to allot shares -n the capital of tre
Company up to a maximum nomina! amount of
£26181,445 is stated ir the resolut’on {representing
approximateiy one third of the Compary's 1ssued
share cap tal as at 30 May 2023 being the latest
practical date prior tc publ cation of this Not ce of
the meeting). As at 30 May 2023 the Company dces
rot hold any shares in treasary

Tne Directors have rno present irtention of exercising
this authority and would only expect to use the
authority if shares could be 1ssued at, orat a
premium tg, the Net Asset Value per share

Trus acthonty witl expire at the earlier of the
conciusion of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be hewd in 2024 and close of business
on 19 Octeber 2024

Resolution 13: Disapplication of statutory
pre-emption rights

This Resoclution would give the Directors the
autrornty to aliot shares (or sell any snares which

the Company elects to hold in treasuary) for casn

w thout first offering them to existing shareholders 'n
proportion to ther ex'st ng shareholdings.

Tnis autharity would be imted to allotments

or sa es In connection with pre-emptive offers

and offers to holders of ¢lner equity securities if
required by the rights of those shares or as the
board otherwise considers necessary, or otherwise
up to an aggregate nom'ral amount of £3.966,887.
This aggregate nominal amount represents 5% of
the total issued share cap'tal of the Company as

at 3C May 2023, the iatest practicable date prior

to publication: of this Notice If the powers sought
by Resclution 13 are used r relation to a non-pre-
eTptive offer the Drectors canfirm ther intention
to fo low the snarehoider protections ir paragiaph 1
of Part 2B of the Pre-emption Group’'s Statemert of
Principies pubished in November 2022

Tnis authonty will expire at the earher of the
conclusion of tne Anrual General Meeting of the
Companyto be heldin 2024 and close of busness
o 19 October 2024
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Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

Resolution 14: Authority to make market
purchases of the Company’s Ordinary
shares

At the AGM neld in 2327, a special resoiLt-on was
passed whch gave the Directors avtnorty Jrt the
conclus'on of the AGM 1 2023, to make market
purcrases of the Company's ownissLed shares L 1o
a maximum of 14.99% of the ssced share capital.

Tne Board s proposing that tney should be g.ver
renewed authority to purchase the Comrpary's
Ordinary shares ir the rmmarket. It be: eves tnat to make
sLch purcrases in the market at approptiate times and
prices 1s a su'table method of enharc ng shareha der
value. The Compary would, wihin guidelires set

from time tao t'me by the Board, make e thet a sirgle
purchase of a series of purcrases, wner market
condtions are suitable, woth tre arm of mraxem sng the
benefits to srarekoliders.

Where purcnases are made at prices below tae

preva Lng Net Asset Value per share, this will enf*ance
the Net Assel Value for the rer-ainirg sharero ders
Therefore purcnases wolld orly be made at prices
he'ow Net Asset Value The Board considers that it
will be most advantageods to sharehclders for the
Company to be able tc make swch purchases as ard
wien it considers the trmirg to be favourabie and
thercfore does not propese to set a t metabe for
making ary sucn purchases

The Companies tAcqwe s o of OSwr Srares) Treasdry
Shares) Regulatiors 2003 enabe corpan es ir t-e
Urited Kingdom to no d .0 treasary any of ther owr
shares they have parchased wit~ a view tc possb e
resa e at @ fulure date, rather than cance 1 g tre™

If tre Cor~pary dees re-purchase ary of 1s shares,
the D rectors do not current v ntend to ~old any of

the sharesre-porcnased ntreasory Tre shares so
re-purchased w o cortrue to be canceled

Trel strg RuesoftreF narc.ai Corduct Autnor ty

T itte maxic o pree iexc ug ve of expensesy wr o
~avy be pad for ary suck s~are 1t sta ot be ~ore
artre s grer of
105% of te average of tre "1 ddie Tarket
quctat o-s far a= Ord ~ary share as taker fro™
tre Lordo~ Stock Excharge Daw Offica (st for
tre “vebos ness days ~edateypreced-gt-e
date o~ wrcrtre Compay agrees 1o h_y srares
concerred, and

v tre migner of tre prce of the -ast indeperdert
trade and the m ghest current dependert b d for
a~ Lrdrary share ~tre Copacy on thetrad ry
deruewhere tte purchase s carred oot

-

T1e M- Tu price (o be pad wil be 25p per

Ord nary share (be'~g t~e 1arunal value) The Listing
Rules also imit a | sted company 10 purchases of
shares representing up to 15% of 13 ssLed share
capital ir the market pursuart 1o a gengrai aLthorty
suct as this For tI15 reason, the Company s miting
its authonty to make such purcnases 16 14.69% of
the Compary's Ordinary shares im 'ssue at tne date
of the AGM thisis equivaiertto 47 570,911 Ordinary
snares of Zop each {nominal valLe £11,892.727)

at 30 May 2023, the Iatest pract cable date pricr to
pubslcationtb s Netice. The aatnonty w llast urt
the corc usion of the Anncal Genera: Meeting of tre
Comrpany tobe held 1 ZC24 ar, if earl er, at the close
of basinesson 19 October 2024

Recommendation

Tre Board believes 11at ire reso 11-01s contaed
nt1 s Notice of Arnual Genera, Meetirg are inthe
best interests of tre Corpany and srarehoiders as
awnole ardrecommends that yo.. vote -n favour
af trerras your Drectors interd to do - respect of
then owr berefic’a shareho d'ngs

TR Erores e eslrert Triost
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Directors and other information

Directors

O watson 'Chairmari
K B0isover

S-o Curtis

T Gilnanks

3 Scae nae
Aaaghan

Registered office
12 Woodstock Street
London WwiC 2805

Registered number
Registerec as ar rvestment comgany in
Eng'and and Wales No 84462

AIFM and Company Secretary
Columbiz Threadneedle [rvestiren:
Business Limited

Excharge House

Primrose Streer

Lordon EC24 ZNV

Plegse contact vorattan Latier for
Company Secretanal and admr r sirative
matters

Partfolic Manager
Thames River Canital LLP author sen
and reguiatec by the Finarciai Condust

Authority
12 \Woonstock Street
Lordor W C 2,06

Fund Manager

M & Phayre-liucge MRIZS
Finance Manager and
Investor Relations
_LEIGHACA

Deputy Fund Manager
L Lhonreur

Direct Property Manager

G2 CaylRICS

a.
The Association of
Irvestmert Companmes

Registrar

Comoutershare nvesior Senvices PLE
“he Pavions Bricgwiater Road

Bricto BS9G 622

Teiephone 1370707 73255

Sharekolders wheo bolo therr shares n
certificated forr car check their holo'ngs
with the Reg strar, Compdtershare Irvestor
Services PLC, vig www. nvestorzertre co.uk
Please note thatto gan access 1o your cetalls
on the Computershare sie you wilneedthe
holder reference number stated or the op lef:
hand corner of your share certificate

Auditor
KPNMGLLP

15 Cerada Square
Loncon 714 3GL

Stockbrokers

Fanmure Gorden (LK) Limited
Ore New Change

Loncon EC4M GAF

Stifel Nicolaus Europe Limitec

50 Cheapside
Lordor ECZVEET

Solicitors
Slaaghrer ard May
one Bunb | Row
Loraor ECTY B>

Depositary, custadian and fund
administrator
3NP Par pas Securities Services

"0 Harewooo dverus

Londor N7 642

Website

SN ITSroperty Lom

Tax advisers

Scouzre Soatk Drobars Sueer




General Shareholder information

Announcement of results
The half year resuits are announced 10 late November,

The fuil year results are announced in eariy June

Annual general meeting
The AGM s held in Lordon in saly

Dividend payment dates
Diviclerds are sualy paid on tne Ordinary shares
as follows.

Interim January
Fina:Aug.st

Dividend payments

Dividends can be paid to shareholders by means of
BALS (Bankers' Automated Clearing Services), manrdate
forms for this purpose are avallable from the Registrar,
Alternatively, shareho.ders can write to the Reg strar
{the address is gwven or page 114 of this report) to give
their nstructions, these must include the bank account
number the bank accourt title and the sort code of the
ba~k to which paymrents are to be made.

Dividend re-investment plan ('DRIP’)

TR Property Irvestment Trust plc offers shareholders the
opportanity to purchase further shares in the Compary
thro.gh the DRIFP Piease note that folowing Brexit
shareholders i the European Eccnomic Area {EEAT

are ~0 lorger able to participate In the DRIP DRIP forms
mMay be obtained from Computershare Investor Services
FLC through therr secure website www. rvestorcentie
co.uk or on 0370 707 1694, Charges apply, dealirg
corrmission of 8.75% (subject to a minimun of £2 50)
Goverrrment stamp duty of 0.5% also apples.

Share price listings

The estrmated Net Asset Vaiue and market price of the
Company’s Ordinary shares, as well as the d'scount/
premium, are pablisked daily in The F narcial Times
They can also be found or tne Gomrpany's website at
www trproperty.com

Share price information
ISIN GBOODS0/4097

SEDDL 0906400

Bloorberg

TRY LN Heuters

TRY L

Datastream TRY

Anndal Report & Lccounts 2003

Benchmark

Detans of the bencnmark are given in the Strategic
Report on page 22 of th s Arnua: Report and Accounts
The benchmark index is published dary and car

be found on Bloorrberg,

FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Deveinped Europe Capped Net Total
Retuin index in sterling
Bloomberg TRIRAG Index

Disability Act

Copies of this Report and Accounts and other
documerts issued by the Compary are ava'lable from
tne Company Secretary. If needed, copies can be made
avaldable 11 a vanety of formats, -ncluding Bra lle, audio
tape or larger type as apprapr ate.

You can contact the Registrar, Computershare Investor
Services PLC, whicn has instal ed textphones 1o allow
speech and hearing impaired peop e who nave their own
textphore to contact thern dinectly, without the need
for ar irtermed ate operator, by diailing 0870 702 0005
Specialy trained operators are available durng normal
business houis to answer queries v.a this service
aiermatively if you prefer to go through a typetalk’
operator (provided by the Roya Natianal Institute for
Deaf People) you should d'al 180017 followed by the
rumber you wish to dial

114
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General Shareholder informaticon
continued

Nominee share code

Wrere natification has been provided in advance,
the Compary wil arrange for cop.es of shareholder
commuricat.cns to be provided to the operators of
norrinee accoJants Narminee mvestors may attend
genera. meetirgs and speak at meetings when
mvited lo do so by the Chairran

CGT base cost

Taxation of capital gains for shareholders who
formerly held Sigma shares

Upon a disposal of all or part of a shareholder's
ho ding of Ordinary shares, the immpact on the
sharenolder's capital gainstax base cost of tre
convers'on to Sig-ma snaresir 2007 ard the
redesigration o Ordinary skares in 2012 shouid
e considered

Ir respect of the convers'or to Signma in 2007,
agreerment was reacned with HM Revenue &
C.stoms (HMRC') to base the apporticrment of
tne capita gains tax base cost on tne proportion
cf Ord nary shares that were converted by a
snarenolder into Sigma snares or 25 suly 2007

Therefore, if ar Crdinary snarencider converted 20%
of therr existirg Ordinary shares irto Sigma snares
on 25 Juy 2GC7, t-e capital ga s tax base cost of
the new S'gma shares acgured wou d be equa to
20% oftre or ginai capita. ga s tax base cost of
tre Ordirary shares tnat they e d pre-corversion
I-e base cost of treir rerrairng nolding of Ord nary
shares wou d then be 80% of tne or g na capial

ga s tax base cost of their Ord nary snares reid
pPre-corversion

As part of the re-des'gration of the Sigma srares
Aato Ord.rary shares 1 Decermber 2012, a fortner
srarenolder's agreeert was reacned w th HMRC
that a s~arenoiders capita gars tax base cost
ther ~ew Ord nary shares erod d be equ vale-t

to e captal gains base cost i tre pre-ex strg
Sqrrashares e thercaptal ga ns basecost o der
te exist ~g agree~ert fappicable

If indoobtastotre conseqoerces of 1~ s agreemert

witm HIARC share~oders emoud corsot witr trerr

owr professo-a adveors

TR Properyir.estrent Trus:
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Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc

Market purchases

Tne Company's shates are listed and traded or the
Londen Stock Exchange Investors may puichase
shares thraugh the r stockbroker, back or other financial
rtermediary

Holding shares in certificated form

Irvestors may hold their nvestment ir cert ficated form
Ourreg-strars, Computershare operate a dealing serv.ce
which enables investors to boy and sell shares quickly
and easly onhre w.thout a broker or the need to oper. a
tradirg accounrt. Aternatively tne Investor Centre allows
mvestors 1o manage portfolios quickly and seccrely,
Lpdate detans and view balances without anrual
charges. Further details are available by contacting
Cormrputershare on 0370 7C7 1355 or visi

www Investorcentre co.uk.

The Company offers shareholders the oppartun.ty

to purchase further shares ir the company through

the Divdend Re-imvestment Plan (DRIP) through the
registrar, Computersktare Sharehclders car obtain
further information on tne DRIP through their secure
website www, nvestorcentre co uk, or by phoning G370
7071694, Charges do apply Please note that to gain
access to your details or register for the DRIF on the
Computershare site you will need the holder 1eference
number stated on the top left ~and corer of your share
certificate

Saving schemes, ISAs and other plans

& number of barks and wealth management
organisations provide Savings Schemes and ISAs
trough wnich UK clents can imvest in the Company

ISA and savings scheme providers do charge deaiing
and other fees for aperating the accounts, and investors
should read tne Terms ard Condit'ons provided by these
companies and ensure that the charges hest su't therr
planned investment profile. Most schemes carry annual
charges but these vary between provider and product.
Where dealing charges apply. in some cases these are
appled as a percentage of funds invested and ctners as
aflat crarge The optimum way 1o hold the shares will be
different for each irvestor depending upon the frequency
ard size of investments to be nrade.

Deta s are given below of two providers offerirg
shares in the Company, but there are many other options

Arndan Report & Accounts 2023

interactive investor ('ii"}

irteractve nvestor provide and adm.nister a range of
self-select investment plans, Including tax-advaniaged
ISAs and SIPPs (Self-Invested Personal Pension), and
Trading Accounts. For more informatior, interactive
irvestor can be contacted on 0345 607 6001 or by
VISITING WwWw 1, CO Lk

Interactive investor offer nvestors .0 the Company and
otner nvestment trusts a free anlne sharehaolder voting
and mformat on service trat enab es irvestors to receive
sharenolder communications and, if they wish, to vote on
the sharekoldings he d ntherr account

Tne Company is alsc on tme interactive super 60 rated list.

Columbia Threadneedle Management Limited ('CT’}
Columbia Threadneedle offer a number of savings

plans for adults and children, from general nvestment
accounts ta a range of investment ISAs and a Child
Trust Fund. Each product gives you the ability to

nvest in a range of iInvestment trust companies For
more information see inside the back cover. Columbia
Threadneedle can be contacted or 080C 136 426, or visit
ctinvest co.uk.

Please remember that the value of your investments and
any incore from them may go dowr as well as up. Past
performance Is rot a gusde to future performance Yol
may not get back the amourt that you mvest. If you are in
any doubt as to the sutabicty of a plar or any investrment
availab'e with.n a plar please take professioral advice

Saving Schemes and I1SAs transferred from Alliance
Trust Savings ('ATS') BNP Paribas

Following the acgu-sition of A liance Trust Savings by
nteractive ‘nvestor, ATS self-drected acccounts were
transferred 1o the interactive investor platform on
14th October 2019

In 20712 BNP Panbas closed down the part of their
business that operated Savings Schemes and 1SAs.
Investors were given the choice of transferring thew
schemes to Alance Trust Sav ngs (ATS)ortoa
provider of their own choice, or to close thew accounts
and seli t1e holdings.

If nvestors did not respondio the letters from BNP
Par bas, the r accounts were transferred tc ATS

Foitowing the acgu sit'on of A liance Trust Savings by
teractive nvestor ATS self-directed accounts were
transferred to the ~teractive 'nvestor platform on

14 October 2019
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Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc
continued

Share fraud and boiler room scams

Sharehoders in g number of investment Trusts nave
been approached as part of a share fraud where tney
are \nformed of ar cpporturity 1o sel their shares as the
company 1s subject to a takeover bd This s rot true and
5 an attempt to defraud shareholders Tne snare fraud
a'so seeks paymert of a commiss on by sharenolders
to the parties carry.ng oct the fraud

Shareholders stould rermain alert 1o t7 s type of scam
ard treat with suspic'on any contact by telephone
offerng an attract ve investment oppartunity, such

as a prem'um price for your snares, ar an attempt 1o
cornv nce you trat payment :s required ir order (o re-ease
a settiemert for your snares These frauds may aiso
offer to sel, vour sihares In compar-es wrich have lttle o
nG value ar may offer you bonus shares These so cated
‘boiler roor’ scams car also invalve ar attempt to obtain
yoLI persona’ and/or banking nformation witk which 1o
corrm .t dentity fraad

The calier may be friendly and reassar rg or they may
take a more urgerttore, ercourag g you to act guick.y
ctrerw.se you could lose maney or miss oLt on a deal,

If you rave been contacted by ar unactror sed firm
regardirg youor srares the FCA would ke to hear
fro'r you You canreport an Lnagthonsed firmr us ng
the FCA ~elpine on 0BQC 111 6768 ¢ by vis't g tmer
webs te, whenalso has other csefulinformation,

at www fca orgLk

If you rece-ve ary .rnsolicited irvestment adv ce
~ake sdre you get the correct rame of the persor
ardorgan sat on Hftnecals persist ~ang wp. \f vou
deaw th ar snactionsed firm yoo w | not be e g.ble
to recerve payrert under the Franca: Serv.ces
Co~persator Screme

[0}

F ease be adyv sed that the Board or tre
~ever Take (nse Ciedieephorena s
te share~o ders

Marager wou d
of sccha-atare
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How to invest

One of the most convenient ways to invest in TR Property Investment Trust plc is through
one of the savings plans run by Columbia Threadneedle Investments.

CT Individual Savings Account

You can use your I1SA allowance 1o make an annual
tax-efficient investrnent of up to £20,000 for the current tax
year with a lump sum from £100 or regular savings from £25
a month. You can also transfer any existing {SAs to us whilst
maintaining the tax benefits.

CT Junior Individual Savings Account (JISA)*

A tax effirient way to invest up to £2,000 per tax year
for a child. Contributions start from £100 lump sum or
£25 a month. JISAs or CTFs with other providers can be
transferred to Columbia Threadneedle.

CT Lifetime Individual Savings Account (LISA)

For those aged 18-39, a Lifetime ISA could help towards
purchasing your first home or retirement in later life, Invest
up to £4,000 for the current tax year and receive a 25%
Government bonus up to £1,000 per year. Invest with a lump
sum from £100 or regular savings from £25 a month.

CT Child Trust Fund (CTF)*

if your child already has a CTF you can invest up to £5,000
per birthday year, from £100 lump sum or £25 a menth,
CTFs with other providers can be transferred to Columbia
Threadneedle.

CT General Investment Account (GilA)

This is a flexible way to invest in our range of Investment
Trusts. There are no maximum contributions, and
investments can be made from £100 lump sum ¢r

£25a month.

CT Junior investment Account (JIA)

This 15 a flexible way to save for a child in our range of
Investment Trusts. There are no maximum contributions, and
the plan can easily be set up under bare trust (where the child is
noted as the beneficial owner) or kept in your name if you wish
1o retain control over the investment. Investments can be made
frorma £100 lump sum or £25 a month per account. You can
also make additional lump sum top-ups at any time from £100
per account.

Charges
Annua managernent charges anz other charges appiy according to the
typeof pan
Annual account charge
Tl iiaT
FADEVAL
CDZne VAl
You can pay the arnual charge fro vour secoant, or by cirect deot
unademonte any annda- subscr phion hmis)
Dealing charges
£12 per fund {reduced to £C for deals piaced through the orline
Calumbia Threadreedle Investor Portal] for ISAGIA/LISASJIA
and JISA. There are no dealing charges ona CTF

Dealing charges apsly when skares are bought or so d but not
on the remvestment of divioends or the investment of monthly
direct debits. Government siamp duty of 0.5% also appres or
the purchase of shares {(where applicable).

The value of investments can go down as well as up and you
may not get back your original investment. Tax benefits depend
on your individual circumstances and tax allowances and rules
may change. Please ensure you have read the full Terms and
Conditions, Privacy Policy and relevant Key Features documents
before investing. For regulatory purooses. please ensdare you have
read the Pre-sales Cost & Charges disclosure related to the produc:
you are applying for, and the relevant Key Information Documents
{KIDs) for the investiment trusts you want to invest into.

How to invest

"o open a rew Columzia Threadneedle Investrrents plan, apoly
online at ctinvest.co.uk

Onl ne appications are not avallable f you are transferning

ar existing plar with another provider to Co.umbia Threadneedle
Investmerts or fyou are applying for a new plar in more than one
name but paper applications are avallanle at ct.nvest.co.uky
docurments or by contacting Columbia Threadneedie Investments.
New customers

Cail: 0800136420 - - ¢~ = - i Ly
Email.  investfocolumbiathreadneedie.com

Existing plan holders

Cail: 0345600 3030** - 7~ e
Emali  investorenadresicolimbiathreadreecie com

Sypost.  Columbla Threadneedle Management Limited, - - - »

investorenguries:i colurmbiathreacneedie.com

Yo can alss nves' inihe Corwany through o e deang p atforr.ston pvare svesio sthar ofer share deal ng and15As Cormpanes no i Barclays
Stockbrokers, EQi, Halifax, Hargreaves Lansdown, HSBC, Interactive Investor, Lloyds Bank, The Share Centre

= The CTF and JISA accounts are opened nthe chid's name and they have access tothe money al age 18

** Cal's may be recorded or monttored for train ng and qual ty purposes

To find out more, v.git etinvest.co.uk

03456003030, 90041 5000~ weokdsvs ca seay e reco ded or rmon tored for i g ans gua oy purpescs
SO023 Coumb a hieadneed e nvestmien s Cooarila Threadneed e Invesimentsis the g oba randname
ofshe Cownrit i and Thieadneedic group of cormanes | anc a pror e ssued o marke g anid
nfernanon purposes by Courin s Tmeadrece ¢ Managemient s rresh acahon sedaediequ aied oo UKDy
, e B % COLUMBIA
e Fooronic Condoe Arehiormy sk 2 T LK = THREADNEEDLE
]
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